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Our water efficiency
campaigns save an

estimated 15 milion
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We delivered £10
mullion of sustainable
operational efficiencies
this year

8%

We beat our leakage
target by over 6%
this year

32%

Intelligent design
has delivered a
32% reduction In
embodied carbon
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BUSINESS REVIEW At a glance

ANGLIAN WATER
AT A GLANCE

Serving our
customers

OUR GOAL 1S
100% CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION

6 3 million water and
wastewater customers
rely on us

Over 125,000
businesses depend on
our water supply

Customer call centres in
Huntingdon, Lincoln and
Hartlepool

Taniffs to support
our more vulnerable
customers

Investing:

£74
MILLION!'

to enhance levels of
cusfomer service

@ rs51

Read more about our focus
on delivering excelient
customer service

Gross sums assumed by
Ofwat (in 2007/08 prices)
before deducting grants
and coentributions

Anglian Water

Annual report and accounts 2012

Investing for
the future

Investing:
a total of

£2 3
BILLTION!

1588
MILLION!

meeting the needs of
our growing region

£1,224
MILLION!

to maintain the region'’s
water and wastewater
infrastructure

£390
MILLION!

on enhancing quality
and environmental
improvements

Supporting regional
growth to bolster
supplies, and build
pipelines and new
treatment works

@ P38 and 39

Read more

Safe drinking water
is our priority

24 hours a day, 365
days a year 142 water
treatment works,
treating, monttoring
and safeguarding public
drinking water

Supplying 11 billion litres
of huigh-quality drinking
water every day through
over 37500 kilometres
of water mamns

Safeguarding supplies
through our water
efficlency campaigns -
delivering a saving

of 15 million litres
every day

Managing demand to
meet the needs of a 20%
Increase In population in
our region since 1990

99 96% overall drinking
water comphance in 207

Beating our leakage
target (set by Ofwat)
by over 6% - the lowest
ever level of leakage

Investing:
£14 million every year on
driving down leakage

@ 40 to 47

Read more

Sustainable collection
and treatment of
wastewater

Every day

927 million
[1tres

of wastewater 1s
flushed through 76,200
kilometres of sewers
to our 1,119 wastewater
treatment works

Collecting and treating
waste from 2 44 million
households and over
10,000 businesses

Committed to reducing
sewer blockages in 'hot
spot’ areas with our
award-winning Keep It
Clear campaign

Working towards
no serious pollution
incidents

Our environment
stewardship inihiatives
focus on healthy water
and nutrient cycles and
learning from nature

Recyclng waste
products for fuel
and fertiliser

@ p47

Read more about our
wastewater services




Protecting the
environment

Committed to reducing
operational and
embodied carbon

22% of the energy

we use comes from
renewable sources, such
as gas and biosolids

We're responsible for
47 Sites of Special
Scientific Interest

17 Biue Flags fly at
beaches along our
coastline

We've agreed our
Biodiversity Action Plan
to 2020 and published
an award-winning
biodiversity guide

Our award-winning
RiverCare project (with
Keep Britain Tidy) has
17,000 volunteers litter
picking and carrying out

biodiversity checks along

our riverbanks

Published ocur Smail

Steps Big Impacts report

into the hink between
energy and water

@ pgy

Read more about
how we protect the
environment

Welcoming visitors
to our water parks

Salling, cychng, walking,
picnicking, fishing,
wildlife watching

Events like the Great
East Swim, Europe’s
largest Birdfair, and
open-air cultural events
help attract over two
million visitors

every year

Access across our

eight water parks
includes wide pathways,
purpose-built boats,
ramps and Iifts and a
sensory garden

@ r55

Read more about
how we welcome
visitors to our big
back garden

Valuing our partners:
the big picture

Building valuable
relationships regionally
and nationally is central
to our way of working
We bring together and
work with leaders and
organisations from

our communities and
the world of pohtics,
regulation, land use,
business and science

We're contributing to

a number of projects
with the University of
Cambnidge’s Sustainable
Leadership Programme,
including their Climate
Change Leaders’ Group

We enjoy Business

in the Community’s
‘Platinum’ status, which
places us In the Top

10 of the UK’s most
sustainable companies

®rss

Read more

At a glance BUSINESS REVIEW

Working for
our region

Our infrastructure
underpins economic
development across
the east of England

3,800

direct employees

In addition, many
thousands of people
are employed directly
and inchirectly through
our supply cham

Contributing over

£100
MILLION

a year to the regional
economy in direct
employee salaries, and
significantly greater in
the context of indirect
employees with our
business partners

@ p74

Read more
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BUSINESS REVIEW Performance highlights

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 2011/12

The driest winter for over
100 years

The 12 months up to the end of March 2012
were the driest in the Angtian Water region for
over a century, with rainfall of just 403mm

- 68% of the long-term average.

Qur priorities have been securing customers’
supplies, iInvesting in leakage reduction, driving
down demand by increased metering and
enhanced water efficiency campaigns, and
developing investment programmes for water
sharing to safeguard resources In the long term

- Beaten our leakage target by over 6%

+ Water efficiency campaigns have delivered
estimated saving of 15 million litres a day

+ Dramatically reduced the time between
finding and repairng leaks - down to
48 hours In many cases

Read more@ P23, 24 and 26

Improving our efficiency
and flexibility

Our focus has been on finding more efficient
ways of working.

* Delivered around £10 million of incremental
operational cost savings, helping to offset cost
factors such as rates, the Carbon Reduction
Commitment and our adoption of an extra
31,200 kilcmetres of private sewers

+ We have benefited from realising the
link between cutting operational costs
and reduced the embodied carbon in our
processes and operations

= Achleved a 32% reduction in embodied
carbon, delivered through inteligent design

Read more @ PS¢ and 57

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

Focus on customer service

Constantly improving results from Ofwat’s
Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) gualitative
satisfaction survey.

» Ended the year second in the customer

qualitative satisfaction survey of Water and

Sewerage companies - having topped the

table in the fourth quarter
» SIM customer satisfaction score for the year

was 4.54 out of 5 (qualitative) I
» Unwanted calls (dissatisfaction) reduced

by 47% :
= Written complaints reduced by 15%
* Repeat complaints reduced by 77% with

98% first-time complaint reduction
» Proactively contacted over 30,000 customers

during the year to ask for feedback on

Qur service

Read more @ P25 and 51 10 55

Meeting the challenges of
growth and climate change

Climate change remains one of the biggest
chalienges facing our business.

= We met our energy efficiency targets this
year, delivering savings of over 9 GWh

« We now generate over 5% of our own
electricity needs through renewable power
plants based on our own sites

» This year we generated 45.9 GWh of
renewable energy

» Commutted to reducing operational carbon
emissions by 10% In real terms by 2015 and
to halving our embodied carbon in new
assets we build in 2015 from a 2010 baseline

= Our longer term aspiration 1 a 50% reduction
n emissions by 2035 from a 2010 baseline

Read more @ P58 1o 64



Planning and investing

Dealing with the impacts of a growing
population remains a key focus.

= Investing £2 3 billion’ to 2018 - £407 milhon
In 2011/12

+ Work began on several projects supporting
regional growth - bolstering supplies, new
pipelines and new water treatment works

+ We continue to work with the University
of Cambridge Programme for Sustainability
Leadership, contnibuting to The Prince
of Wales's Corporate Leaders Group on
Climate Change

« We were placed in the top 10 of the UK's
most sustainable companies by Business in
the Community

Read more @ PES to 68

Maintaining drinking

water quality

Our record on drinking water quality remained
excellent in 2011 with an overall compliance
score of 99.96%.

Our five-year programme of investment in
drinking water continues as we nvest In
proactive catchment management as well
as increasing the capabilities at our water
treatment works

To date, we have completed the installation
of 22 new phosphate dosing processes across
our region to reduce the amount of lead that
15 dissolved n water Our industry-leading
integrated strategy to lower the leve! of lead
in tap water in our region also includes the
replacement of lead pipes and a programme
of work with local authorities, housing
associations and health professionals to raise
awareness and encourage the replacement of
domestic lead pipework

Read more @ P47 to 49

' Gross sums assumed by Ofwat (n 2007/C8 prices) before
deducting grants and contributions

Performance highlights BUSINESS REVIEW

Wastewater treatment
works compliance

An exceptionally cold winter followed by
a record dry spring in 201 put significant
pressure on our wastewater operation Despite
this, performance remained within target.

Our bathing waters achieved 100% comphance
with the Bathing Water Directive for a record
Nth year - over 85% of them also achieved the
higher standard, with 17 beaches now flying the
coveted Blue Flag

Qur innovative and award-winning Keep 1t Clear
campargn was launched in October, helping us
towards our business goal of ‘'no pollutions’ with
blockages reduced by some 40% in pollution
hot spots

Read more@ P29 and 31

Consulting on pension benefits

During the year, we had to make some changes
to our defined benefit (final salary) scheme to
keep it healthy and sustainable, and protect
our customers from the rising costs and risks
of our pension arrangements.

After detalled consultation, we reached
agreement with our recognised trade umons,
and separately with the Trustees, on changes
that took effect from 1 Apnil 2012 These
changes affect the way pensions build up In
the future, and still provide a better quality
pension arrangement than that offered by
many other employers

Read more @) P31 and 78

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW KPis

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KP1s)

Operational Environmental

Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM)

Leakage?

Cubic metres

of water lost per
kilometre of main
per day

Drinking water
quality'

Qur overall mean
zonal compliance
performance in
the calendar

year against the
required standards

Carbon footprint
COo emissions
equivalent In

tonnes COze

' A comparative measure
1 of customer service

¢ ntroduced by Ofwat In
¢ 2010/7 It s made up

1 of qualitative customer
i satisfaction and

v guantitative customer

' contact elements

l_-iqw El@is KPI relates to our strat_egy

A resilient and secure Managing water resources ! Excellence in customer
supply of safe drinking efficiently I1s a key business y  service is at the heart of

E This key measure
)
)
)
water 15 a top prionty ! goal Our leakage rates are everything we do SIM helps us
:
1)

helps us

* Manage our
environmental impact

» Deliver cost savings

consistently almost half understand how to continually
the industry average IMprove cur service

1 L} :
L} [} 1
% i m3/km/day i Combined score i Tonnes COe
1 1 1
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Our 2011/12 performance in context '
e e e — L. . .
Our drinking water Industry average 2010/11 Our overall score has Our longer term

quality continues to improved by 18 points from aspiration s a

] O . 5 m3/km/day

be excellent 2010/1 Our gualtative 5 o o/
h hieved customer satisfaction score o
@ P47 to 49 1S year we achieve improved over the year, with reduction n emisstons by

our best ever performance
on leakage to reflect
our commitment to

o
)
:
E 2035 from a 2010 baseline
E securing supply to our
'

We have already achieved a
10% reduction in this asset
management period alone

@ pe1

Read about how we have
generated enough energy
to power 11,500 homes
this year,

@ Pe2 to ¢4

Read more about our
carbon goals

Read more about water
quality initiatives

o

Download our Drinking
Water Quality Report at
www.anglianwater.co uk/
dwq

us ranked first water and
sewerage company in the
fourth quarter and second for
the year as a whole

@ ps51

Read more about
meeting the needs
of our customers

custormners and protect
our environment against
potential drought
Leakage 1s being
maintained at these
very low levels while
the drought continues

@ p2¢

Read more

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012



KPis BUSINESS REVIEW

Employees
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CHasPI®

The Health and Safety
Executive (HSE)
corporate performance
index Sceored out of 10

Accident
frequency rate

Number of accidents per
100,000 hours worked
Data includes both direct
employees and key
contractors

Capital
expenditure £m

Tota! spend from

1 April 2010 to 31 March
2015, increased by
construction-related
inflation

Operating
expenditure £m*

Cperating costs .
(excluding depreciation |
and exceptional :
operating costs) ;
incurred during the year

How _t!\i;_ KPf _relatgs to 6_“[ ét_rg_tp_sn_r

Total investment delivered |
so far in this five-year asset:
management period

The cost of running Anglian
Water cperations and
achieving our objectives

Indicates how safely
we work

Aims to help assess how well
an organisation manages
health and safety risks and
responsibilities towards

its workers, the public and
other stakeholders

o _ __Our performance

L]
! 1]
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Our 2011/12 performance in context
Up 9 2% on 2010/1,
principally due to
increases in rates, the new
carbon emissions tax and
the cost effect of adopting
private sewers, as well as
relatively high inflation
Despite the additional
costs of the Carbon
Reduction Commitment
and the private sewers
transfer we remain broadly
on Final Determination

Qur certified health and
safety systems are now
effective throughout the
company Our BS OHSAS
18001 certificated health and
safety management systermn
15 embedded throughout the
company We are particularly
proud this year to have been
commended by the Royal
Society for the Prevention

of Accidents for 'Excelience
in Health and Safety in the
Water Industry’

Delivening our regulatory

outputs but with lower

spend than assumed in

Final Determination due to

« Higher efficiencies

* Reduced demand for
new connections

@ pa?2

Read more about finance

@ r79
Read more about health
and safety
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' Drinking water results published in 2012 for the 2011 calendar
year measured as mean zonal complance with the regulatory
qualty standards

2 Lost water from Jeaks in our network and our customers own
pipes 2011/12 result subject to formal confirmaton from Ofwat
" autumn 2012

Scheme adjustment basis in 201142 prices
* For the appointed and non-appointed businesses Final
Determination adjusted to 201,/12 prices and for non-appointed
business and pensicn deficit payments to ensure consistency
% For more information see www hse gov uk or
www chasp! Info-exchange com
Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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“ At a time of considerable
debate about the future
shape of the water
industry, and the regulatory
framework in which it
operates, the company
has contributed 1deas,
expertise and experience
to this important public
policy discussion ”

® L REGULATORY ACCOUNTS , \ STATUTORY ACCOUNTS ' i GOVERNANCE '
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Annual report and accounts 2012

CHAIRMAN'S WELCOME

At a time of continuing economic uncertainty, and with
customers being rightly demanding on the quality and cost
of goods and services, companies around the world are
having to adapt to the increasing scale and speed of social,
environmental and economic change.

To succeed In this environment, companies must demonstrate
active leadership and the abihty to retain the confidence of
customers, government and regulators alike This has been
the sohd achievement of Anglian Water during the year as
the company has stayed true to its strategic vision, making
significant progress against its ambitious business goals

At a time of considerable debate about the future shape of
the water industry, and the regulatory framework in which it
operates, the company has contributed 1deas, expertise and
experience to this important public policy discussion - always
with a focus on the long-term interests of customers as well
as on maintaining investor confidence

We continue to address a number of the big challenges facing
the industry, most notably unpredictable weather patterns, the
impacts of climate change and managing population growth
in the region We have pursued a wide range of innovative
campaigns and projects that have encouraged productive
collaborative working with customers, regulators, stakeholders
and other water companies, and have won recognition and
respect Thanks to the leadership of Peter Simpson and his
team the strong financial results and operational performance
we have achieved demonstrate the underlying strength and
capability of the company, and as such there 1s every reason to
be confident about the future

Sir Adrian Montague CBE, Chairman



Managing Director’s statement BUSINESS REVIEW

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT

Qur challenge to the business at the start of this year was to
drive excellence and ever-improving standards of customer
service. It was also to demonstrate visible leadership through
a period of significant challenge and change, while setting
new standards for water stewardship in the 21st century.

We responded to this call to action in a vear that has been
dominated by the operational challenges brought by drought,
and by a public policy environment that anticipates significant
changes to the structure of the water industry and to the way
it 1s regulated

So at such a time of challenge and change, | am particularly
grateful for the hard work of our employees and contractors,
and for the help and support of our customers Throughout,

it has served to remind us all of the precious resource we
manage and of the iImportance we must continue to place on
its fundamental value to families, communities, businesses and
the environment

Having experienced the driest 18 months in ving memory,
our priority has been to recognise the potential for a third
dry winter We took an early lead in working with others

to explore how best to secure supplies for the long term
within our region and beyond This included government, the
Environment Agency and other water companies as a result
of which innovative schemes and collaborations were quickly
identified and developed to move water to the driest, most
vulnerable areas

In Apnl 2012, in common with six other water companies in the
south and south east of England, we introduced a temporary
ban on the use of domestic hosepipes This was not a decision
taken hghtly, but was important in our drive to raise awareness
about the seventy of the drought and to encourage customers
to reduce their water use

We also launched a number of high-profile water efficiency
campaigns, and we are grateful to the Royal Horticultural
Society who encouraged their members and to B&Q who
worked with their customers to give these campaigns such
splendid support

Recent rainfall has helped many of our surface water supplies
to recover, with groundwater supplies alsc beginning to
be recharged

“At such a time of challenge
and change, | am particularly
grateful for the hard work
of our employees and
contractors, and for the
help and support of
our customers ”

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Managing Director’s statement

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

We are acutely aware of our responsibility to lead by
example, which is why additional resources have been
targeted at finding and fixing leaks This has resulted in our
lowest-ever level of leakage, ensuring that we continue to be
an industry leader

Our financial results show a stable position in ine with
expectations Turnover for the year was up 4 2% on the
previous year This primarily reflects the regulatory price
increase partially offset by customers switching to metered
supplies and thereby lowering their bills Underlying operating
profit was up by approximately 1% reflecting the regulatory
pricing formula and targeted efficiency savings of £10

milhion, partially offset by inflationary cost increases and

new commitments We contmue to perform strongly in both
identifying and delivering efficiencies on our investment
programme, outperforming our expectations in the first two
years of the current regulatory period (2010/2015) Delivering
this efficiency 1s key to enabling us to finance the schemes
required to deal with the impact of drought

We take particular pride in recording more progress towards
achieving our goal of 100% of customers very satisfied with
our service Improvements have been recorded In customer
satisfaction scores across water, wastewater and customer
service, and given the many challenges we have faced during
the year, the cutcome 1s all the more iImpressive

In October, we became responsible for an estimated

31,200 kilometres of additional pipes, when ownership of
private sewers and laterals was transferred by government
from customers to wastewater companies Despite this
approximate 70% increase 1n size of our sewer network,

we successfully reorganised our wastewater team to manage ‘
this extra workload and took pride in seeing our service |
levels improve through our regular customer satisfaction ‘
qualitative survey |

Other significant projects during the year included the |
transition of our IT service to a new supplier, which at the time
was the biggest data centre transfer in Europe, and also the
transition to a sustainable defined pension scheme for many
of our employees




Managing Director’s statement BUSINESS REVIEW

Qur investment programme, which is in excess of £2 billion

to 2015, continues to support development and make a

major contribution to the economic well-being of the east of
England It aliows us to secure our asset base against the twin
challenges of the impact of cimate change, and the predicted
population growth in our region

Throughout the year we have worked closely with government,
reguiators and others to infiuence the debate about the future
structure of the industry, proposals for which were publhished

in December In a government White Paper This, together with
a regulatory review announced by our economic regulator
Ofwat, has seen us fully engaged in this mportant public policy
debate that will determine how we operate in the future

Love Every Drop, our innovative leadership programme,
continues to transform the way we do business and has helped
to further establish us as a leader in our industry

Looking ahead, our focus remains on delivering excellent
operational performance and high levels of customer
satisfaction as we continue to deliver targeted and
sustainable efficiencies across our operations and capital
investment programme

We wefcome the new ‘outcomes based’ approach to regulation
as this will better connect customers and stakeholders to

the water iIndustry and will make us even more responsive to
customer needs and expectations

We look to the future with a good deal of confidence | remain
proud and excited to be leading the company at such an
important time for the future of Anghan Water and the wider
industry, and to be part of the team that 1s determined to
deliver even higher standards of service into the future

Peter Simpson, Managing Director, AWS

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Who we are

WHO WE ARE

Ownership and company structure

Anglian Water Services Limited (AWS) is the principal
subsidiary of Anghan Water Group Limited (AWG) The AWG
board consists of six investor representatives, the Anghan Water
Services Managing Director, the Managmg Director, Finance &
Non-Regulated Business, and a Non-Executive Chairman

AWG 1s owned by a consortium of investors

Colonial First
State Global Asset
Management is the

The Canada Pension Plan
(CPP) Investment Board is
managed Independently

Industry Funds
Management (IFM)
Is a globa! asset

consolidated asset of the Canada Pension manager owned by
management division

funds, specialising in
Bank of Australia group to help sustain the future infrastructure, private

pensions of 18 million equity, debt investments

Canadians Its role is to and listed equity
invest the C$161.6 billion

CPP Fund to maximise

returns without undue risk

Plan by experienced E 32 Australian pension
|
of loss l

H
of the Commonwealth . investment professionals
:
[}
)

_% ownership

19 8%
ke odgin
Australia Canada Australia

323y ; 32 9%

A$150 | c$161.6
BILLION | BILLION

' Assets under management at 31 March 2012

Anglian Water
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3i is an international
investor focusing

on private equity,
infrastructure and debt
management

15 0%

UK

£10 5
BILLION




Anglian Water ownership structure

Anglian Water Group Limited

AWG Parent Co Limited

......................... ®----------------.--...--

Anglian Water Services
Holdings Limited

Anglian Water Services Overseas
: Holdings Limited

@

Anglian Water Services Limited’

Anglian Water Services Financing Pic'

.....................................................

I21 Anglian Water Services Financing Group (AWSFG)
@ Direct subsidiary
@ Indirect subsidiary

! Collectively known as the Anglian Water Services group, for

which consehdated accounts are prepared

Management board members are:
Peter Simpson, Managing Director

Scott Longhurst, Managing Director,
Finance & Non-Regulated Business

-

Chris Boucher, Director of Information Services

Richard Boucher, Business Change and
Strategy Director

Paul Gibbs, Director of Wastewater and
Operational Management Centre (OMC)

Kate Kelly, HR Director

Chris Newsome, Director Asset Management

Who we are BUSINESS REVIEW

Leading Anglian Water

The Anglian Water Services Limited Board

Chairman: Sir Adrian Montague CBE
Executive Directors: Peter Simpson, Scott
Longhurst, Jean Spencer, Chns Newsome

Non-Executive Directors:
Christopher Garnett, Robert Napier CBE,
John Watkinson

The Chairman and two of the Executive
Directors - Anglian Water Services Managing
Director, Peter Simpson and Scott Longhurst,
Managing Director, Finance & Non-Regulated
Business - are alsc Directors of the ultimate
parent company, AWG

The Directors of Anglian Water Services
Limited all served throughout the year

See pages 86 to 91 for Directors'
biographies, the Statement of Directors’
responsibilities and Directors’ report

The Anglan Water Services Executive
Directors also sit on the Anglan Water
Services Management Board, working
closely together to develop, review and
implement cur long-term strategic direction

Martyn Qakley, Customer Services Director
Mark Pendlington, Director of Corporate Affars

Claire Russell, Legal Director
Jean Spencer, Director of Regulation

Paul Valleley, Director of Water Services

@33

For how we finance our business

@ ra?

See Financial Performance

Anglian Water
Annuai report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Our marketplace

OUR MARKETPLACE

Water and wastewater industry overview

« 10 water and sewerage service providers (WASC companies)
including Anghan Water
« 11 water-only suppliers Six of these water companies supply
drinking water to residents in our region
- Six local companies providing water and sewerage services
- Seven water supply licensees offering water services to
large use customers

Hartlepoo! Water is also part of

Anglian Water. it provides drinking

water to a population of close to 100,000
in the north east and shares our technical
resources, engineering services and
accredited laboratories.

The companies in England are privately owned Welsh
Water, which supplies services in Wales, 15 a not-for-profit
company Customers in Scotland and Northern Ireland
have pubiicly owned water and sewerage service providers
Scottish Water and Northern lreland Water

The key shared investment prionttes across water and

wastewater services are

« Maintaining assets and infrastructure

« Improving drinking water qualty

* Improving the quality of water returned to the
environment

» Managing supply and demand

+ Improving customer services

tln 200/12 prices

Anglian Water
Annuail report and accounts 2012

Qur investment 1990-2011

£10 eILLION!

Between 1990 and
2010 the water industry
in England and Wales
invested £90 billion

N improving water
quality and services
Our investment In that
20-year period totals
£10 billion!

@ Read more online
www.anglianwater.co uk




Regulators and the regulatory environment

The water industry is one of the most highly reguiated
sectors in the UK. Several government agencies monitor
and regulate our performance on customer service, quality,
prices and investment.

While economic regulation 1s UK-specific, EU water directives
and legislation also cover our gperations - particularly
dnnking water, urban wastewater treatment, water
framework, groundwater protection, sewage sludge and
health and safety at work

Ofwat regulates the 21 regional water companies in England

and Wales Ofwat’s prionties are to

* Make sure that all the companies provide customers with
a good quality, efficient service at a fair price

+« Monitor the companies’ performance and take action to
protect consumers’ interests

The water industry operates on five-yearly cycles known as
Asset Management Plan (AMP) periods Ofwat sets prices

at the beginming of each perod, folltowing submissions from
each company about what it wili cost to deliver their plans In
November 2009, Ofwat issued their Final Determinations to
water and wastewater companies, setting out prices for the
penod 2010/15 These came into effect on 1 April 2010

More information on our charges for 2010/15 1s available on
our website at www anglianwater ¢o uk

A key part of our strategy 1s to work with Ofwat and other
key regulatory and statutory partners to consider better,
more sustainable ways of delivering services

Our marketplace BUSINESS REVIEW

Ofwat - The Water Services Regulation
Authority - monitors the quality of our
customer service and the prices we are
able to charge our customers

@ www ofwat.govuk

The Drinking Water Inspectorate is

responsible for ensuring compliance with

the drinking water quality regulations
www.dwi.gov.uk

@ See our Drinking Water Guality
report at www anglianwater.co.uk/dwq

The Environment Agency controls the
amount of water we are allowed to take
from the environment and the quality of
the water we raturn to it.

www environment-agency gov uk

it’s important to us that we provide
excellent customer service across the
hoard and we work closely on improving
our levels of service with the Consumer
Council for Water.

Www ccwater.org.uk

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Our marketplace

Ofwat review

The final repert of the Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs' (Defra’s) review of Ofwat and consumer
representation was published in July 2011 Its main conclusion
was that regulation has worked well in the water sector and
major changes to the statutory and institutional framework
are not required The report said that no changes to Ofwat’s
duties were required but that Ofwat should be given clearer
guidance as to how 1t should balance them in reaching
decisions It said that the burden imposed by Ofwat on
companies should be reduced It also acknowledged that
companies will take the lead in meeting future challenges and
should be encouraged to do so with better incentives (more
carrot, less stick), more freedom and flexibihty and greater
ownership of their business plans

On consumer representation, the report considered that the
functions currently undertaken by the Consumer Council
for Water should be preserved 1n any new institutional
arrangements Its recommendation was for a continuation
of the status quo

Future price limits

In November 2011 Ofwat published a consultation document,
Future Price Limits, which considered a range of changes to
the ways in which the industry 1s regulated in future The key
proposals in the document were

« A move towards a more outcomes-focused approach, with
outcomes being agreed through the customer engagement
process

+ Separate price caps to be set in future covering retail
and wholesale activities (see ‘The business environment
competition in the water industry’ on page 19)

« Expenditure will be treated under the total expenditure
(‘totex") approach to reduce companies’ bias towards
capital solutions

» All existing Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) will be aliocated
to wholesale, investors in retall will be remunerated through
a margin-based appreoach

= Incentives will be adjusted to encourage water trading and
efficient system operation

* Price control penod remains five years

» Companies will submit only one business plan, and the
type of assurance required 1s likely to move away from the
detailed approach taken previously

Future Price Limits considers
future changes to the way the
industry is regulated.

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




We supported many of the proposals brought forward

In Future Price Limits and were active I1n shaping them

We can see benefits for customers from approaches that
give companies greater flexibility over their plans while
strengthening the customer voice Our primary concern 1s
that changes to the structure of the market are made in a
way that maintains the contimuing support of investors in
the long term, which i1s essential to the future success of the
industry and the maintenance of low bills to customers

Ofwat's proposals have been confirmed since the end of the
year with the publication of Future Price Limits - statement
of principles \n May 2012 Much work remains to be done on
the detall of mplementation and we shall continue to work
with Ofwat on this In autumn 2012 Ofwat will publish for
consultation its draft framework for setting price imits at the
2014 price review

Ofwat has already introduced changes under the Regulatory
Compliance banner of its reform programme From 2011/12
companies are no longer required to publish annual returns
to the regulator instead they will report against a set of

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and company boards

will publish statements to confirm their compliance with
regulatory obligations Qur KPIs and compliance statements
are published on ocur website

Licence modifications

In December 2011 Ofwat proposed changes to all water
companies’ icences that would give the regulator much
greater flexibility over the number, scope and duration of
future price hmits Ofwat declared that the modifications
were necessary to enable any changes required to the price
setting process, but the companies’ universal view was that
the wording of the modifications should ke removed from the
licence cnitical protections on which investors rely and which
are essential to the maintenance of the low cost of capital in
the industry Discussions about modifications were continuing
at the year-end, with the prospect of the involvement of the
Competition Commussion If agreement cannot be reached

Legislative and public policy environment

The Water White Paper

in December 2011 the Government published its White Paper
on the future of the water industry The themes of the White
Paper were how to ensure the industry could meet the future
challenges posed by climate change and population growth
while supporting economic growth, ensuring bills remain
affordable and maintaining investor confidence

Our marketplace BUSINESS REVIEW

@ r19

More on managing risk

Themes of the White Paper included
how the water industry can meet
the challenges of the future

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Our marketplace

Specific proposals included

= Reform of the water abstraction regime and other measures
to reduce the environmental impacts of abstraction

+ Support for approaches that reduce the need for water
treatment by greater water management in catchment

« Various measures 1o encourage the development of the
water retaill market and encourage new players into the
industry (see ‘The business environment competition in the
water industry”)

+ Greater encouragement for more efficient use of water and
sustainable drainage

« Retention of the Consumer Council for Water to 2014

« Support to customers of South West Water through a £50
bill reduction

* Prospects for a looser approach to water company mergers

The Queen’s Speech in May 2012 confirmed that the
Government will publish a draft Water Bill We expect that
the major focus of this draft Bill will be to implement the
package of market reforms set out in the Water White Paper
and enable Cfwat to regulate effectively as competition
develops in the market We expect the draft Bill to be
published before the 2012 summer recess

Transfer of private sewers

Following new government legislation, introduced on

1 October 201, alt private sewers and lateral drains were
transferred to the ownership of the 10 water and sewerage
companies in England and Wales As a result, Anglian
Water became responsible for the maintenance of up to an
estimated 31,200 kilometres of additional pipes, increasing
our sewer network by approximately 70%

We worked to ensure that the transition was completed
smoothly and efficiently, writing to all of our 6 3 million
customers in advance to serve the adoption notice

and explain the transfer process and the change in
responsibilities We also took the opportunity to restructure
our wastewater operational teams to meet the new
challenges associated with the transferred assets

Since the transfer, we have experienced a steady increase

in our workload, drniven by greater customer understanding
and awareness However, by allocating additional resources
and putting external contracts in place, we've managed this
increase in demand effectively and achieved improvements in
levels of service and customer satisfaction

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

@) P29 and 35

Read more about the private
sewer transfer




More on managing risk

The business environment: competition in the
water industry

The current competition framework
There are currently two limited forms of competition in the
water industry inset appointments and water supply hicensing

Inset appeointments are where the incumbent water company
15 replaced by another company that becomes responsible
for customer service and maintenance of the supply and/

or wastewater network To qualify for an inset appointment
the site must be single premises using more than 50 million
litres (M)} of water a year, or be a ‘greenfield’ site that does
not have an existing connection to the water supply network
Alternatively, insets may be by agreement We have operated
inset appointments for many years and supply customers
outside our statutory area on five sites Within our area there
are eight sites served by another company

Water supply hcensing allows customers who use over a
given volume of water a year to choose their water supplher,
who would in turn purchase the water in bulk from us
Wastewater services are not included in this arrangement

In England, a reduction in the consumption threshold from
50 Ml to 5 Ml per annum for non-household customers
wanting to switch supplier under the Water Supply Licensing
regime came into force in December 2011 Accordingly,
companies published indicative access prices for 5 Ml and

25 Miin addition to the existing 50 Ml and 500 Mi Updated
company access codes also incorporated use of a common
operational code and contract for retall supplies

Proposals for extending the competition framework are
currently being developed We support the introduction of
competition where there are clear benefits to customers,

and we are playing an active role 1n the consultation process
The Government’s White Paper included various measures to
encourage the development of the water retail market and
encourage new players into the industry Accordingly, Ofwat’s
proposals under Future Price Limits \nclude a separate price
cap for the retait business The non-contestable market
(including all household customers) will be regulated using
an average cost to serve, while the contestable market will be
regulated using default tanffs and default service levels Ofwat
is also proposing an incentive to encourage water trading

Our marketplace BUSINESS REVIEW

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Our marketplace

Ahead of a separate retail price control and In anticipation

of greater retall competition in the future, Anglan Water

has set up a Business Retall Management Board to steer the
development of UK-wide retall activities and creation of Retail/
Wholesale trading relationships 1n a non-separated model

Thought leadership on water trading

This year we are proud to be a founding sponsor of the
Collaberatory on Sustainable Water Stewardship launched
by the University of Cambridge Programme for Sustainability
Leadership {CPSL) The main ambition of the research is to
provide practical learning about the feasibility of developing
a thnving water trading market as a tool for water allocation,
using an East Anglia catchment as a case study The project
wiil use iInnovative methodologies and work with leading
thinkers and pecple on the ground to develop a shared
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% environmental imits
5 This project builds on the two projects we completed in To read or download our reports, go to
3 2010/1, A Right to Water? and Trading Theory for Practice. www.anglianwater.co.uk/future
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Business strategy BUSINESS REVIEW

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Our fundamental goal is to deliver a reliable supply of safe
drinking water and effective wastewater services at an
affordable price.

in a rapidly changing world, we must constantly adapt

to differences in economig, social and environmentai
circumstances Qur business strategy allows us to be flexible
enough to adapt to the increased expectations of customers
and stakeholders, while delivering the highest possibie levels
of service For the long-term future, we are ambitious for
ourselves and the communities we serve, and this drives

us to lead the way in redefining what a 21st century water
company might lock hke

At the heart of our long-term strategy (s sustainability,
and the prionty we give to meeting, and where possible
exceeding, the ambitious targets we set ourselves

Central to success will be to work with our customers and
stakeholders to raise awareness about the value of water and
to campaign for fundamental change in how we all engage
with it and use It

Leakage
FOCUS AREA FOR 2011/12 Keep it Clear
DROUGHT e

Regutlation

Before the above-average rainfall,
which kick-started a recovery in Price Review
late spring, the east of England

experienced 18 months of Bathing water

quality
exceptionally low rainfall Anglian Water
Business
@ p23 .
Healthy pension
scheme
Private sewer
transfer
Biodiversity

Love Every Drop

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Business strategy

Our Strategic Direction Statement 2010-2035
(SDS) put in context a number of challenges
facing us as a business, with growth and the
impact of chimate change of particular and
unique importance to our region The SDS

sets a number of key strateqic prionties and
assumptions integral to our long-term planning

Key strategic priorities 2010-2035:

+ Increase the resilience of our water and
wastewater services

« Secure and conserve water resources

+ Plan and invest for growth in our region

100%
of our
customers
very satisfied
with our
service
No
incidents Get it right
first time,
every time.
Zero waste
Frontier

performer in
our industry

Reduce our operational
carbon emissions by
10% in real terms by

2015 from 2010 baseline

* iImprove the environment i our region

« Mitigate and adapt tc climate change impacts

= improve our efficiency and flexibility

» Meet the needs of our customers and keep bills
at current affordability

@ View or download our Strategic Direction Statement
2010-2035, www.anglianwater co.uk/sds

E These 10 ambitious goals are derived

, from our tong-term key strategic

E priorities, and were launched in our Love
!\ Every Drop Manifesto in October 2010.

No
accidents No
pollution
Leading
employer in
our region

Halve our embodied

carbon in new assets

we build in 2015 from
a 2010 baseline

Effective management
of the impact of

growth and climate
change in our region

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Qur focus 2011/12 drought BUSINESS REVIEW

OUR FOCUS 2011/12: DROUGHT

Over the last 18 months the east of England has seen the
lowest rainfall in living memory. Our rivers, reservoirs and
groundwater levels have been badly affected, with some
dropping to record low levels. Our top priority is to safeguard
supplies for the long term.

We had two years of below-average rainfall, including two
dry winters and the driest 18 months in a century Some parts
of the Anghan Water region have officially been in a state of
drought since July 201, and we are facing the possibility of a
third dry winter

With the pressure of a growing population, together with more
unpredictable weather patterns and the impacts of climate
change, we may need to operate In uncertain conditions hke
this more often in the future

Recent above average rainfall has kick-started a recovery, DID YOU KNOW?

but not before we had to introduce our first hosepipe ban for
20 years Even though our reservorr levels have recovered,

Collecting rainwater

groundwater sources - the aquifers that we rely on for roughly from your roof and
half of all the water we supply - are still notably low in places downpipe in a water
butt could save up to
What we're doing to help 5,000 Itres of water
In anticipation of a third dry winter, we took action early in over a typical spring

2011 to try to mitigate the impacts of the drought, to prepare
for it, and to protect our customers from the worst effects

of it Significant investment was earmarked for drought
respense schemes, Including bringing new boreholes on tap in
Lincolnshire and Norfolk, increasing pump capacity to enable
more water to be moved from Grafham to Pitsford, and fitting
more water-saving devices to customers’ homes

Drought Plan

We followed our Drought Plan, and applied early to the
Environment Agency for two Drought Permits to enable us

to top up Pitsford and Rutland reservoirs over the winter This
helped slow the decline in reservoir levels, and highlighted the
need for everyone to save water while we went through our
second consecutive dry winter

In accordance with our Drought Plan we also convened our
dedicated Drought Management Team The team has met
regularly since June 2011, and has focused on solutions to
beat the drought

and summer

Anglian Water

Annual repert and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Our focus 2011/12 drought

We’re attacking lcaks

A key element of buillding and maintaiming customer trust

Is evidence that we are tackling leakage That's why we
redoubled our efforts and got leakage down to its lowest
ever level We have about 300 staff finding and fixing leaks,
working every day to fix arcund 27,000 leaks every year We
spent £14 million targeting this work during the year, which

@ Read more online:
www anglianwater co.uk/drought

BUSINESS REVIEW

boost resources

Everyone Drop 20!

included recruiting over 60 extra staff in December 2071 to

We're helping our customers to save water wherever it 1s

l

at customers’ homes

GOVERNANCE

Q. is this the worst drought we have
ever seen?

A. The flows 1n a number of the rivers that we
rely on to refill our reservoirs were at similar
levels as they were during the drought of
1975/76, this was previously the worst on
record for our region The last occasion that
we needed to Impose hosepipe restrictions
was over 20 years ago

Q. Are drought conditions here to stay?

A. We need to get used to more unpredictable
weather We are 1n a dry region and normally
only get two thirds of the national average
rainfall Even by these standards the last 18
months have been very dry, in fact the dnest
on record We are constantly monitoring our
water resource levels to safeguard supplies
for everyone in the longer term

LREGULATORY ACCOUNTS ' L STATUTORY ACCOUNTS ' L
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used Our target 15 to get everyone to use 20 htres less per 4
person, per day - that’s roughly two buckets full Billboard { Working together to get into the habit
posters, radio adverts, bus-back promotions and door-to- ;
door leaflets have encouraged everycne to join in and ‘Drop
20" And to help customers save we've distributed more than
20,000 gardening packs and given away 5,000 water butts, in
addition to almost 30,000 water efficiency audits carried out

Saving water makes a huge difference

of using water wisely now, will make all
the difference tomorrow

Drop 20 is the region’s biggest ever water-saving campaign. It’s how we’re
working with our customers to beat the drought and safeguard supplies.

Interview with Simon Love, Head of Drought Response

Q. How are you responding?
A. We are investing In a number of schemes to

make us more resihent to drought - dnlling
new boreholes to improve secunty of supply
and improving connectivity between supply
zones On the water demand side we are
continuing to invest in finding and fixing
leaks, installing meters and providing
water-saving devices to our customers

Q. How can customers help?
A. Customers have already given fantastic

support During the drought demand for
water dropped, while demand for our water-
saving kits went through the roof! So please
everyone, carry on being water efficient
Join our campaigns and get involved

“Customers have already given
fantastic support During the drought
demand for water dropped, while
demand for our water-saving kits
went through the roof!

0 More information can be found on.

www anglianwater co uk/drought




Other focus areas for 2011/12 BUSINESS REVIEW

OTHER FOCUS AREAS FOR 2011/12

While drought response was a major focus
in 2012, we continued to pursue other areas
of strategic importance to the business, our
customers and all our stakeholders.

Read more online:
www.anglianwater.co uk/environment

Water is vital in every aspect of

iife. Read about our planning,
investment and progress in a number
of key focus areas this year. The
foliowing pages include details of
our main focus areas for 2012,

LEADERS IN
OUR FIELD

Customer service

Our customer service standards focus
on providing safe, reliable and problem-
free services to domestic and business
customers As well as being a frontier
performer in our industry, we aim to
ensure that 100% of our customers are
very satisfied with our service

QOur day-to-day contact with customers
1s managed through our UK-based cali
centres in Huntingdon, Hartlepool and
Lincein Qur back-office operations are
managed ‘offshore’ in India and Sn Lanka,
and this brnings a significant benefit to
our operational efficiency Other areas of
focus include speeding up our response
times to customer calls and complaints,
in offering genuine help and support to
our most vulnerable customers, and In
working with our business customers
who use large volumes of water to make
the most efficient use of their supply and
to save energy and costs

Last year Ofwat introduced a new
industry-wide measure of customer
satisfaction, the Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM) We support the
principles behind this new approach to
evaluating performance in our sector,
and are proud that during the year we
have continued to improve cur score

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Other focus areas for 2011/12

Our
regulatory
target for
2011/12 was
beaten by
over 6%
We
repaired
27,000 leaks
during the year
201/12
Compared

to last year we
saved 30 million
litres per day
through leakage
reduction
alone

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

LEARAGE

This year, we beat our leakage target and
achieved our lowest-ever level of leakage
We invested £14 million and recruited
over 60 extra staff to target this area

In addition, and 1n accordance with our
pohicy, we achieved a reduction in leak
repair response time that specifies most
leaks will be repaired within 48 hours An
important part of our high-profile water
efficiency campaigns throughout the year
has been to help customers find and fix
leaks on their property This accounts for
almost 20% of leaks in the system, many
of which can be detected and stopped
quickly, cheaply and effectively Overall
our water efficiency campaigns have
delivered an estimated water saving

of 15 millien htres every day (2010/11
500,000 litres) and we have saved 30
mullion litres a day on leakage reduction

The cutcome of the intensive leakage
campalgn Is a reduction in demand, one
measure of which 1s that we now abstract
29 million htres less water per day




Qur campaign for the future, Love Every Drop, is now in
its second year and continues to gain momentum. It
brings to life the ambitious business goals that underpin
our business strategy, and seeks to inspire employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners, regulators,
community leaders and many others to work with us in
driving behavioural change.

Through this industry-leading campaign, Love Every Drop
continues to put sustamnabihty at the heart of everything we do
Qur business goals are underpinned by over 100 commitments,
each of which i1s iIndependently evaluated and measured to
track progress

The campaign is now firmly embedded into the everyday

running of the business, with directers having full accountability

for delivery against targets Everyone in the business has a
part to play, and every employee, whatever their role or work
location, 1s encouraged to get involved in our Love Every Drop
campalgns, projects or community activities

The management board regularly monitors and reviews
progress, and our proactive customer and stakeholder
engagement programme provides regular opportunities for
involvement and feedback

Love Every Drop 1s benchmarked against best practice within
other leading customer service businesses, which provides the
opportunity to listen as well as learn, and where possible to
improve our own levels of service

Other focus arcas for 2011/12 BUSINESS REVIEW

Love Every Drop is our long-
term campaign to fundamentally
change the relationship we all
have with water

Through Love Every Drop, our 10 business
goals are underpinned by over 100
commitments, targets and measures.

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Other focus areas for 2011/12

Price Review

We have started to review our long-term business strategy and prepare our business

plan for 2015 to 2020 This plan will be submutted to Ofwat in 2014 as part of the five-yearly
price review process setting out how we will continue to invest in our world-class water and
wastewater operations
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With water so central to the sustainability of the economy, society and the environment
the next few years are among the most important for the industry - and for our millions
of customers

)

Building on our existing customer and stakeholder engagement, we'll be engaging widely
to ensure our customers are at the heart of the price-setting process influencing where we
invest, how quickly service iImprovements are made and what this means for customers’ bills

As well as speaking to customers and stakeholders through a range of methods such as
interviews, focus groups and workshops, we've set up a Customer Engagement Forum
supported by four Independent Advisory Panels These are all independently chaired and will
advise us throughout the price-setting process to ensure that ocur business plan reflects our
customers’ views and that the cutcomes are delivered 1n the most socially, economically and
environmentally sustainable way

GOVERNANCE

Anglian Water Business

In December 2011 the Government’s Water White Paper proposed greater competition in the
non-domestic market To prepare for this change in the industry, and to reflect our renewed
focus on providing a leading and professional service to business customers, in November
201N we launched Anghan Water Business as the national retaill arm of Anglian Water

A range of new services, including benchmarking and tanff optimisation, were ntroduced
ahead of the launch to help us serve our national customers as efficiently as possible
Services to promote sustainable water use, such as water strategy development and the
Rippleffect, were also launched in ine with our Love Every Drop commitments

Many businesses in the region are trying to reduce water usage, and organisations that
have already benefited from our new services include Greene King, Weetabix and Bedford
Borough Council
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Other focus areas for 2011/12 BUSINESS REVIEW

Keep it Clear

Our industry-teading Keep 1t Clear campaign demonstrates that consumer behaviour change
really 15 possible We expernience around 15,000 blockages a year, which have the potential to
flood homes and neighbourhocods, cause serious environmental risks and impact customer bilis

More than half of these blockages are avoidable and don't require any technological solution
- the answer lies In raising awareness and putting in place interventions that make 1t easy for
people at home or at work to change their behaviour around waste disposal

In June 2011, we piloted the innovative Keep 1t Clear campaign in Peterborough, subsequently
rolling it out to six further hotspot blockage areas across the region Detailed research on
behaviour and product use identified two causes of blockages - sanitary products and wipes,
and fats, oils and grease (FOG) Qur campaign was such a success in highhghting how to
dispose of these items correctly that we won the FOG reduction category at the Water Industry
Achievement Awards in March 2012

Evaluation of results in the Peterborough pilot area shows over 80% reduction in blockages, with
an average 40% reduction across all areas targeted

Later in the year, we will be implementing the second phase of the Keep 1t Clear campaign, which
will be driven by local community groups and 1s designed to sustain positive behaviour

Private sewer transfer

Following government legislation, all private sewers and lateral drains in our region were
transferred to our ownership on 1 October 2011 Anglian Water therefore became responsible
for the mamntenance of up 1o an estimated 31,200 kilometres of additional pipes, equating to a
70% mcrease In our sewer network In addition, over the coming years we will adopt upwards
of 3,000 privately owned pumping stations

We worked to ensure that the transition was completed smoothly and efficiently, writing to all
affected customers in advance to serve the adoption notice and to explain the transfer process
and the change in responsibiiities We also took the opportunity to restructure our wastewater
operational teams to meet the new challenges associated with the transferred assets Despite
a steady increase in our workload, we've managed this increase in demand effectively and
achieved improvements in levels of service and customer satisfaction

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Other focus areas for 2011/12

Regulation

A principal focus for us has been to consider proposed changes to the future structure of our
industry and the role of Ofwat, cur economic regulator

In November 2011, Ofwat released a consultation document, Future Price Limits, which outlined
a range of issues including how customers can have a greater role in shaping companies’

plans, and the introduction of incentives to ensure they continue to meet customers’ needs
innovatively And the following month, the Government published a White Paper detailing its
own plans for the water industry The Paper considers how to ensure the industry meets the
future challenges posed by climate change and population growth while supporting economic
growth, ensuring bills remain affordable and maintaining investor confidence

While we support many of these proposals, and can see considerable benefits for customers,
we have also expressed concerns about the proposed scale and pace of change, and advocate
a detalled timetable to ensure that the process 1s implemented in a measured and smooth way

Throughout the year we have worked closely with government, regulators and others to
influence the debate about the future structure of the industry This, together with a regutatory
review announced by Ofwat, has seen us fully engaged in this important public policy debate

We anticipated the introduction of competition into the retail market for business customers -
another key component of the White Paper - by restructuring our business customer services
operation This built on our existing successfui operation In the Scottish market Anglan Water
Business was successfully launched in November 2011 and has been established to further
enhance our credentials as a national commercial supplier

Biodiversity

Improving the environment and protecting biodiversity in the east of England are central to our
water stewardship strategy and Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) By 2015, we will have invested
£267 million to help improve the environment and increase protection for plants, animals and
habitats in our region Our two main goals are to achieve zero pollution and to manage the
impact of growth and climate change effectively To achieve these, we will learn from and

work with nature across the whole water cycle, from improving the quality of the raw water we
abstract, to the return of clean, treated wastewater to our water courses

Our Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) 1s a long-term strategy for the management of biodiversity
on land we own The plan, which runs until 2020, defines the 16 habitat types we've identified
on our sites and aims to increase the numbers of 60 prionty species of birds, mammals, plants
and insects

Anglian Water
Annua! report and accounts 2012




Other focus areas for 2011/12 BUSINESS REVIEW

Bathing water quality

There were 48 designated bathing water sites in our region in 2011 For the 11th consecutive
year all our bathing waters met the mandatory standards of the Bathing Water Regulation In
addition 41 (85 4%) bathing waters also met the higher guideline standard of water quality -
our best ever result
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Guideline compliance 15 one of the 32 requirements a beach must meet to be eligible for the
prestigious Blue Flag award, this year 17 beaches gained Blue Flag status An application for
Blue Flag status represents a considerable financial outlay and they are applied for at the
discretion of the individual local authonties

41 beaches were awarded ‘Recommended’ status in the Marine Conservation Society’s ‘Good
Beach Guide’ representing highest water standards and good treatment of any continucus
sewage discharges

In 2012 a legal requirement will be introduced requiring any individual or organisation that
looks after a beach to inform beach users if there is a risk of poliution to bathing water We
established a trial project covering two beaches in Southwold, Suffolk, to provide the beach
manager with up-to-date information about nisks to bathing water quality from discharges
from our assets

JONVNHIAOD

Results continue to be evaluated with potential being explored for use in other coastal areas

Healthy pension scheme

Dunng the year, we had to make some changes to our defined benefit (final salary) scheme to
keep It healthy and sustainable, and protect our customers from the rising costs and nisks of
Our pension arrangements

Just under half our staff were affected We undertock a major communications programme
to explain the proposed changes More than 96% of affected members attended face-to-

face briefing events across the region The company provided detailed matenal including
personalised Hustrations of what the changes could mean for each member, and set up a
dedicated telephone helpline and website to help staff with questions and further information

After detalled consultation, we reached agreement with our recognised trade unions, and
separately with the Trustees, on changes that took effect from 1 April 2012 These changes
affect the way pensions build up in the future, and still provide a better quaiity pension
arrangement than that offered by many other employers
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BUSINESS REVIEW Risk management overview

RISK MANAGEMENT
OVERVIEW

Effective risk management is central to the achievement of
our strategic priorities. It’s a key enabling theme, running
across our business through a number of formal and
informal processes.

There are a number of commercial risks and uncertainties
that could have a significant iImpact on our operations,
financtal health or reputation We invest substantial resources
to identify, analyse and manage these challenges

We track risks using a comprehensive system of risk registers,
which operate at a number of levels across the business
These registers are used to assess the risks, to document the
existing controls In place to manage these risks, to ensure
mitigation plans are established and monitored, and to
establish clear ownership of each of the risks

The Top Tier risk register 1s reviewed on a regular basis by the
AWS management board, the Group Risk and Comphance
Monitering Committee, and the AWS board

This section gives an overview of our risk management
prionities, outlines our approach to mitigation and adaptation
and points to sources of more detatled information

There 1s more detail on cur key long-term challenges in our
Strategic Direction Statement

@ To read or download our reports, go
to” www.anglianwater.co.uk/sds
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FINANCING OUR BUSINESS

Description

We need to fund a £2 3 billion' capital programme n
AMPS and have gross debt of £5 6 billion to manage
and service It's critical that we have robust financing
arrangements 1n place

! Gross sums assumed by Ofwat (in 2007/08 prices) before
deducting grants and contributions

FLOODING OF KEY SITES

Description

One of the key potential effects of climate change s the
impact on the weather I1n our region We expect more
intense, extreme storms and wetter winters This makes
our low-lying region particularly vulnerable to localised
flooding that may impact our wastewater network,
increase the hkelthood of flooding to customers’ homes
and potentially disable treatment works

REGIONAL GROWTH

Description

Managing the forecast rise in population in our region
remains one of our most significant long-term challengeas
Although regional growth has temporarily slowed, in the
short term the impacts of a growing population remain a
key area of focus for the business We expect that planned
developments will restart once economic conditions in the
UK improve.

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

Description

We are one of the largest users of electricity in the east
of England, due to the power needed to treat water and
wastewater, and pump 1t around such a geographically
flat region Energy represents 11% of our total operating
costs Wholesale energy prices have fallen from the very
high levels seen in the summer of 2008, but continue to
be very volatile, reflecting uncertain global economic and
political conditions

Risk management overview BUSINESS REVIEW

More information on our financing @ Fe 4

Mitigation

We are funded predominantly by debt in the form of
long-term bonds and other debt instruments, rather than
equity (shares) Net debt accounts for approximately 79%
of our regulatory capital value as at March 2012

The debt-funding structure was established in 2002

and has resulted in our capital costs being consistently
lower than the industry average, resulting in lower bills
for our customers Our focus is on maintaining stable
credit ratings and a strong hquidity and cash position,
which we manage through cash and investments together
with available bank facilities and having a diverse debt
portfolio In terms of source and matunity

More information on resilience @ PSSO

Mitigation

We invested £40 milhion in AMP4 schemes to improve the
resihence of our network, and we are investing a further
£40 mullion 1n AMPS5 for flood prevention and resilience
Comprehensive business continuity plans are in place,

and are certified to BS25999, including detailed Flood
and Emergency Response plans for our key sites Our
business continuity plans are regularly tested internally,
and also in multi-agency exercises, to ensure the plans are
robust and effective

More information @ P65

Mitigation
We invest considerable effort in forecasting our supply

and demand requirements at a local and regional level for
the next 25 years We continually assess our investment
options to identify the nght combination of investment in
new water resources, enhancements to our networks, and
water effictency measures to meet this challenge most cost
effectively for our customers We are also championing the
use of sustainable drainage techniques, in place of piped
systems as a more environmentally sound way of managing
surface water 1n our growing region

More information @ P40 to ¢4

Mitigation

We use a comprehensive hedging programme to manage
our exposure to wholesale energy prices, and over the
last three yvears we have progressively secured 100% of
our wholesale electricity costs for the next three years

We also have a significant and continuous programme to
reduce our energy consumption on our sites, with a focus
on the energy efficiency of new investments, and on more
energy efficient ways to operate our current plants We
now generate about 46 GWh of our own electricity needs
through renewable power plants based on our own sites,
with ambitious plans in place to increase this to 87 GWh by
the end of AMPS

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Risk management overview

CLIMATE CHANGE

Description

Chmate change Is 8 major challenge to cur business, and
potential impacts include long-term changes to our region’s
water resource avallability due to drought, flooding within
our sewer network and flooding of our treatment sites

We operate in the dniest region of the UK, classed as ‘water-
stressed’ by the Environment Agency, and England has
been 1n drought for much of the last year, with our region
most severely affected With this in mind it is vital that we
manage supply and demand carefully, both today and for
the future

BAD DEBT

Description

We continue to experience significant numbers of
customers who are unable to pay their bilis, or who
choose not to pay them This puts a considerable cost
burden on those who do pay their water charges, of
around £15 per year We currently provide around 3% of
our revenue agamst non-payment of bills

WATER SECTOR REFORM

Description

The future shape of the water sector has been the focus
of considerable public pelicy debate over the last two
years In particular, with a number of reviews by leading
experts and government bodees into the key areas of
Customer Tanffs, Economic Regulation and Competition
The publication of the Water White Paper and Ofwat’s
Future Price Limuts confirms we will see significant
changes to the industry

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

More information @ P58

Mitigation

The recent drought has presented us with a number of
challenges, with the lack of groundwater recharge and
low river flows reducing our ability to fill reservoirs In
response, we have been working to improve the flexibiity
of our supply networks and therefore mitigate the effects
of the drought as much as possible Climate change
projections suggest that, despite having drier summers in
the future, we will also have wetter winters, and this will
enable us to capture and store water durning the winter
months and maintain a steady supply all year round In
addition, we continue to contribute to adaptation plans
for our industry, and our long-term investment plans
reflect the predicted impacts of climate change in our
region Meeting our ambitious goals of reducing carbon
emissions across the business is also a key prionty

More information @ P54

Mitigation

Qur payment arrangements are as flexible as possible for
those vulnerable customers who want to pay their bill
but struggle to do so We encourage customers who find
themselves in difficulty to contact us as early as possible
through our dedicated freephone helpline We offer low-
user and vulnerable tariffs for metered customaers, and
the Anglian Water Assistance Fund provides further

help and support to those experiencing particular and
genutne hardship

We place a strong focus on the collection of customer
debts and use all available recovery procedures to
mirimise the levels of bad debts, including legal redress
We have implemented a sophisticated debt management
system and are working with leading debt collection
specialists to exploit new advances tn this area, including
the appropriate sharng and use of credit reference data

More information @ P17

Mitigation

We have been fully engaged in all aspects of these
debates, including the publication of a number of pieces
of evidence-based research in the key areas of water
resource, and 1n particular on water trading in our region
We have taken an active role «n key industry working
groups, Including the Market Reform Finance Forum,
which looked at the impacts of potential reforms on the
financing of the industry, and we are a pillot company in
Ofwat’s accounting separation project




COMPLTANCE WITH LEGISLATION

Description

We carefully manage comphance with current legislation
and monitor forthcoming legislation such that we are In a
position to respond to new legtslative requirements

PRIVATE SEWERS

Description

Prnivate sewers 1n our region transferred to our ownership on
1 October 2011, with privately owned pumping stations also
transfernng to us 1n coming years We estimate that this has
increased the length of our sewer network by 70% and that
we will adopt around 3,000 pumping stations We expect
that the condition of these assets will be very variable and
will require significant investment over time to ensure they
meet the standards required

EFFICIENCY DELIVERY

Description

The delivery of effictencies in our operations 1s vital to
our success - keeping our costs under control helps to
mmnimise our customers’ bills and 1s an important measure
of our performance within the regulatory structure

We have delivered significant cost efficiencies across our
capital and operating cost base in the first two years of
AMPS, and will continue to drive out costs throughout
AMPS and beyond

Risk management overview BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Directors’ report is on @ Fes

Mitigation

Our key operational processes have been certified to
meet the requirements of applicable quahity standards
(including 1SO 9001) Most of these standards require that
our processes and systems are designed to comply with
the relevant legisiation In addition, our legal department
works closely with the business to ensure comphance
with legislation generaily, and the Legal Director sits on
the Risk and Compliance Monitoring Committee, which
meets on a quarterly basis In the course of the year,

we commissioned internal audits of our programmes

for complying with the requirements of the Bribery Act
and the Competition Act These audits confirmed the
robustness of these compliance programmes

More information @ P18 and 29

Mitigation

We created additional capacity and flexibihty within our
operational teams in advance of the transfer to mitigate

the impacts of the increase and vanation in workload

We established a dedicated project team to manage the
transition, this remains in place to deal with any outstanding
Issues and to prepare for the adoption of private pumping
stations We are currently carrying out initial surveys and
investrment modelling to assist the preparation of our
adoption strategy

More information @ PSé

Mitigation

Examples of efficiency projects we have implemented
durnng the first two years of AMPS include the following
changing working practices in our front-hine workforce,
setting up a major efficiency programme across our
back-office teams, introducing changes to pension
arrangements, pursuing energy efficiency, carrying out
rgorous root cause anaslysis to ensure we provide the
nght whole-life cost solutions, focusing on both cost and
carbon to find innovative ways of providing sustainable
solutions, developing a range of initiatives to ensure that
we maximise our use of standard products to reduce both
cost and time on site, and improve the operability of what
we deliver

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

DELIVERING OUR PRIORITIES

We prioritise our investments, operations and planning to
provide reliable supplies of safe drinking water and effective
wastewater services at affordable prices to over six

million customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

This section details our performance on our key priorities
in 2011/12

INCREASING THE
RESTLIENCE AND
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PLANNING AND
INVESTING

@ res

IMPROVING THE
ENVIRONMENT
AND ENHANCING
BIODIVERSITY

@ pe9

ENSURING WE

Dellvering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

A successful second year of AMPS @r22
In the first tweo years of the current Asset Management Plan :;:«:;;;r;;g:#;: ';',mm,.,

period (2010/15) - AMPS - we have continued to bulld onthe  ~---77---=ss=essocmssrmosommccacaonen

high levels of performance that saw us consistently ranked
a leading performer in the water and wastewater industry in
AMP4 (2005/10)

During this second year of the AMP our operations have been
challenged by extremes of weather The successful recovery
from the severe winter of 2011 was quickly followed by a
progressively worsening environmental and groundwater
drought that began in spring 201 - the worst to impact the
region in iving memory While recent rainfall has helped to
replenish surface water storage, groundwater levels in some
areas remain low

Our combination of forward-planning and investment in
innovation and skills meant we delivered high and improving
levels of service throughout the year Most importantly, we
overcame the considerable challenges of the drought to
ensure continuity of service to customers The Environment
Agency granted two drought perrmits, which allowed us to
abstract more water through the winter into cur Pitsford and
Rutland reservoirs We are now looking ahead to a potential
third dry winter and to the measures required to safeguard
supplies in the longer term Investment of up to £100 milhion
1s being made to implement schemes that will transfer water
within the region to help the most vulnerable areas, and in
water-sharing imtiatives with other water companies

Across the five-year AMP period, we plan to invest £2 3 bilhon!
In our region We contmue to work successfully with our major
Capital Delivery partners Our focus this year has been on
ensuning the on-time delivery of schemes meeting agreed
guality standards and with significantly lower whole-life costs
and carbon footprints

1Gross surms assumed by Ofwat (in 2007/08 prices) before deducting
grants and contributions

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




INVESTING €2.3 BXLLION'
IN OUR REGION BY 2015

£1,224 MILLION on mamntaining
our existing assets, from pipes and
meters to treatment works

£588 MILLION on meeting the
needs of a growing region

£267 MILLION on environmental
improvements to increase
protection for the plants, animals
and habitats in our region

£123 MILLION on drinking water
quality enhancements

£74 MILLION on enhancing our
levels of customer service, which

includes reducing the risk of loss

of water supply for customers

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

! Gross sums assumed by Ofwat in setting price imits for 2010/15 (2007/08 prices) before deducting grants

and contributions

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our pricrities

SECURING AND
CONSERVING
WATER RESOURCES

The 12 months up to the end of March 2012 were the driest
in the Anglian Water region for over a century, with rainfall
of just 403mm - 68% of the long-term average. Following
the very dry winter in 2010/1, rivers, reservoirs and aquifers
were left severely depleted.

To safeguard and secure customers’ supplies we have
targeted resources at reducing leakage, invested in increasing
security of supply, and launched a number of iInnovative
water efficiency campaigns

Investment in reducing leakage saw us beat our 2011/12
leakage target set by Ofwat by over 6%, achieving an all-time
low level of water lost through leaks, and securing our position
as an industry leader Investment programmes continue to be
developed to transfer water to the driest areas In the region,
and a number of water-sharing collaborations with other
water companies are under discussion This will help to secure
additional resources in 2012 and to increase the security of
resources in the longer term

Throughout the exceptionally dry year, we maintaned water
supphes to our domestic and industnial customers Our
industry-feading approach to reducing leakage and to driving
down demand by increased metering and enhanced water
efficiency campaigns, has enabled us to maintain an effective
balance between supply and demand Qur water efficiency
campaigns have delivered an estimated water saving of

15 million Iitres every day (compared to 500,000 litres

per day in 2010/11)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

' In 201/12 we carned out 28,758 water
efficiency audits fitting 97 920 water
efficiency devices, generating a combined
water saving of 152 ml/d calculated using
a formula recognised by Ofwat




Given the need to safeguard resources against the possibility
of a third dry winter, along with six other water companies
across the south and east, we decided to introduce a
temporary domestic hosepipe ban in Aprit 2012 to help further
conserve supphes This was the first time in over 20 years that
we have introduced such a measure

Recent above average rainfali has helped replentsh some
supplies, particularly reservoir storage However, with
groundwater levels still very low In some places across the
region, the focus on conservation of supplies remains a
top prionty

Following successful tnals to reduce leak repair times in
Northamptonshire, our worst area affected by low winter
rainfall, we will be extending this service to the whole region

in 2012/13 The aim s to fix all major leaks within 48 hours and
all other leaks within three days, with many being repaired

in less than 24 hours This 1s a significant investment and a
commitment that we feel s entirely appropriate given the need
to safeguard long-term supplies

This new service will also ensure that we maintain our industry-
leading leakage performance at half the industry average and
further improve our SIM customer service measure

Reducing leakage and improving service
to customers

At around half the national average, our leakage level is the
lowest ever recorded, making Anglian Water an industry leader
for 2011/12

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Detecting and repairing leaks
Quickly is a priority for us. We are
committed to fixing atl majors leaks
within 48 hours

Credit Vauxhall

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

We remain focused on significantly improving our leakage
performance over and above regulatory targets and to date
our measures have resulted in 29 million litres per day less
water being abstracted from the environment compared

to 2010/1 We have almost doubled our investment to

£14 million in an intensive leakage reduction campaign

Detection and repair are among our key priorities and at the
beainning of the winter we recruited 60 extra staff, adding to
our team of 140 who are focused on finding and fixing leaks
every day, also enabling us to reduce our target for leak repair

Although we experienced more severe weather during
February 2012, we continued to improve our service levels,
cutting target response times by over half The enhanced
service levels have been made permanent, dealing with burst
mams in three days and service pipe leaks in five Further
improvements are being trialled too with a goal to repair most
leaks within 48 hours

The additional iInvestment in leakage control enabled us to
repair almost 60% more leaks than normai We continue to
promote our dedicated leakage hotline for thousands of

our employees and contractors, who are our front-line team
working across the region We also continue to promote our
customers’ leakage hotline to encourage them to report leaks
and bursts on our network

Thousands of customers alsc contacted us requesting

help with leaks in their own supply pipes Our call centres,
supported by our website service and our media team,
offered adwvice on protecting household pipes from the severe
weather and directed customers to the list of approved
plumbers For customers' private pipes outside their homes,
we continue to offer our Watertight Promise of free repairs/
replacement service for domestic customers

We will continue to develop and implement our pioneering
approach to leakage control, ensuring we remain an industry
leader With a similar level of investment planned for the
coming year, we are determined to reduce leakage levels
even further, demonstrating our commitment to safeguarding
supplies and to protecting the environment

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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leakage management




Security of supply

Several schemes to increase the avallabiity of water
resources have progressed In the second year of the AMP
A scheme to secure resources to meet demand in Linceln
15 at the final stages of planning, and a scheme to secure
additional resource for the Bedford supply area will be
operational in the early part of next year The combined
capacity of these schemes 1s approximately 45 milhion hitres
per day Schemes to secure water resources for industnat
customers on the South Humber Bank and domestic
customers in Boston and Norfolk rural zones are on target
for delivery by 2015

We committed an additional £20 million investment to
improve the secunty of the water resource during the
drought Three groundwater schemes - at Winterton
Holmes 1n Lincolnshire and Didlington and West Bradenham
in Norfolk - were substantially complete at year end and
significant progress was made 1n the delivery of a high-
capacity scheme, which allows for water to be transferred
between Grafham Water and the Pitsford supply zone

Our campaigns

The east of England has seen a 20% growth in population
since 1990 yet we still supply the same amount of water as
we did then This I1s because of our continuing commitment
to resource management and to water conservation The
number of new homes in our region 1s forecast to reach
one milhon by 2035 and the east of England'’s particular
vulnerability to the impacts of climate change, as well as to
more short-term changes in weather patterns, will continue
to highlight the prionty we must place on water efficiency
and saving water

We consider metering to be the fairest way to pay for
water consumption Metered customers consume a daily
average of 135 litres per person, many saving up to £100
per year, excluding energy costs This compares to average
unmeasured consumption of 165 hitres per person

Over 70% of households in the Anglian Water region are
now metered, which makes us a leader among major water
companies Qur target 1s for 80% of domestic customers to
be metered by 2015

Qur website offers a wide range of services to help our
customers save water We offer free do-it-yourself water-
saving kits for the home for all our customers, and for those
who hve Iin the dniest areas of the region our Bits and Bobs
campaign offers a free retrofit service of water efficiency
devices by a qualified plumber

Detivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Over 70% of our domestic
customers have a water
meter Our target 1s 80%
by 2015

@ Read mors online:
www anghianwater.co uk/payasyoufiow

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

While on site the plumber will also conduct a water audit
and offer tips and advice on improving water efficiency and
saving money In 2012, we launched Potting Shed - a new
initiative to help customers conserve water in the garden

In association with the Royal Horticultural Society this offers
customers a garden water-saving kit together with help and
advice on how to maintain a garden, especially during dry
conditions

Switch and Save
We are on target to fit over one million meters by 2015

In our most water-stressed areas, we are fitting meters

and providing customers with a comparison between their
measured and unmeasured bills to encourage them to switch
to a metered supply Under this programme, we will fit
183,000 meters in these particularly dry areas by the end of
2015, contributing to our target of 80% of households in the
Anglian Water region being fitted with meters

We are trialling leading ‘'smart’ technology to help our
customers monitor their consumption We are developing a
small display unit that hinks to our smart meters and helps
customers understand how they use water in their daily lives
These trials are an important component of our behavioural
change programme and help inform us about how best to
develop technology to engage customers in conserving water

Bits and Bobs - saving up to 47 litres a day

We are currently ahead of target in our five-year programme
to retro-fit water-saving devices to over 87,000 properties
Two years into the five-year programme, we have visited over
38,000 customers’ homes fitting our Bits and Bobs to make
toilets, showers and hand basins operate more efficiently

On average, our customers are saving over 47 litres per
household a day in addition to the associated saving in
energy costs required to heat water

Working with our business customers

The Water White Paper, published in December 207,
confirmed the introduction of competition into the retai
market for business customers Building on our practical
experience of the water retail market in Scotland, in November
we restructured our business customer services operation by
establishing Anglian Water Business This will further enhance
our credentials as a national commercial supplier

We are commuitted to working with businesses to help them
use less water and to delivering cost and sustamability
benefits Our recent work with Greene King demonstrates this
- see opposite for detalls

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

Qur successful Potting Shed campaign
was developed in assocliation with

the Royal Horticultural Society (RHS).
Customers sign up to receive hints and
tips on water efficiency in the garden and
raceive a free water-wise garden pack.

Following the success of our Potting Shed
initlative we are teaming up with B&Q, the
UK’s largest home improvement garden
retailer, to encourage water efficiency
bhoth in the garden and the home

Our free Bits and Bobs watar-saving kits
not only save water but can help cut
energy bills too




Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

We have developed a number of services to support business
customers to become more water efficient The water strategy
development service has proved popular and effective,
particularly during drought conditions

Discussions are under way with a number of business
customers to advise them on developing a formal water
strategy One such customer 1s Bedford Borough Councll,
which has recently committed to reducing water consumption
and wastewater In council builldings by 20% by 2015 (from a
2009/10 baseline) This commitment was ratified by the Mayor
in a public ceremony in March
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We are also promoting engagement campaigns for our
customers’ customers and employees to prompt positive
behavioural change For example, in April 2012, we organised
a water efficiency day at Searles Leisure Resort in Hunstanton
This successfully engaged thousands of visitors on i1ssues
related to water resources and water efficiency

FONVNHIADD

In partnership with Guardian Sustamnable Business

and involving a number of leading UK companies and
organisations, a national water conference 1s being hosted

by Anglian Water Business that will look at innovative
approaches to company water strategies Themed The Global

Water Challenge, the conference will highlight the strategic
importance of sustainability and water stewardship to
businesses and supply chains across a wide range of sectors
Participants will be invited to make sohd commitments

towards Improving water strategies

Case study: Helping Greene King go greener

Greene King I1s a pub retailer and brewer
operating over 2,400 pubs, restaurants and
hotels, including over 90 1n the Anglhan Water
region The company set a target to reduce
their water consumption and came to Anghan
Water Business for help

We outlined a tanff optimisation and
benchmarking programme to review water
use and rates at their sites An important
management tool for businesses cperating
from multiple premises, benchmarking helps
to set realistic and achievable targets on water
consumption, and to drive continual efficiency
improvements Comparing performance with
similar sites 1n an organisation or against
industry standards reveals wasteful sites and
opportunities to make savings

We found out-of-hours water consumption

at several sites was costing the company

over £11,000 a year, representing 16% of thair
total water use at these locations for the
previous year We helped reduce this total by
conducting water efficiency audits, finding and
fixing leaks, and, most significantly, working
with Greene King to drive behavioural change
at the sites to minimise non-necessary water
use that was going unchecked

Tanff optimisation 1s another service designed
particularly for companies that operate a
nurnber of sites It ensures the best value for
money 1s achieved across each site in our
supply area By identifying areas where tarffs
could be switched, we achieved a saving of
over £12,500 a year for Greene King

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Maintaining asset serviceability

One of our key licence obligations 1s to maintain our

assets to ensure they continue to provide services to the
required standards Ofwat makes annual assessments of the
‘'serviceability’ of companres’ assets and penalises compantes
failing to keep them at a ‘stable’ level Maintaining a stable
serviceability assessment, for both above and below ground
water and wastewater assets, was a priority dunng AMP4 and
continues to be a high prionty for us in AMPS

We have continued to increase our spending on our
water mains and wastewater sewers in 2011/12 to a total
of £45 million.

The need to respond to the escalating drought situation has
informed our planning in the last year and a number of large-
and medium-scale schemes are being introduced to address
water resource 1ssues In key locations We are balancing

the need to address the drought situation with the need to
maintain serviceability performance, in some cases these
can be In conflict An example of this 1s the drive to reduce
leakage levels, as our successes Iin the last year in locating
and repairing increased numbers of burst mamns are having a
detrimental effect on our serviceability performance, which
has to be carefully managed with Ofwat

We plan to replace around 600 kilometres of water mains
pipes during the current AMP period, targeting our efforts

to those areas with higher than normal serviceability-

related incidents by replacing ageing mains with newer and
more rehable polyethylene pipe In the current drought,

this important work will continue, although all mains
commissioning activity will be managed carefully to minimise
the use of water

Expenditure on infrastructure directiy affects levels of
customer satisfaction For example, since 2005 we've
significantly reduced the number of customers contacting us
about discoloured water supply and this year complaints fell
to the lowest levels ever recorded Although this improvement
has been driven through targeted planned preventative
maintenance, we are now risk-assessing every location to
understand if this maintenance can be deferred because of
the drought While we must respond to the impact of drought
and reduce the amount of water used for asset maintenance
flushing, we must also find the nght balance te maintain the
tighest levels of water qualty

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




INCREASING

THE RESILIENCE
AND RELTABILITY
OF OUR WATER
AND WASTEWATER
SERVICES

Providing 1.1 billion litres of safe, clean drinking water to our
customers every day makes a vital contribution to the public
health of our region.

Safeguarding water quality and supply

The drinking water quality regulator - the Drinking Water
Inspectorate (DW]I), the water industry ecenomic regulator -
Ofwat, and the Environment Agency oversee our compliance
across a unigue and extensive array of UK and EU statutory
and regulatory obligations These focus on quality, supply,
public health, investment and pricing, and safeguarding

the environment

Water quality

The quality of the drinking water we supply, as measured by
the third of a million tests we undertake each year, 1s reported
In calendar years

Our record on drinking water quality standards remained
excellent in 2011, with overall compliance of 99.96%
{2010: 99.96%).

There’s more detalled information on our overall compliance
with regulatory standards and our investment in drinking
water in our Drinking Water Quality report published annually
on our website

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

As part of our five-year, £123 mifhon' programme of
imnvestment in drinking water quality, we are investing In
proactive catchment management as well as increasing the
capabilities at our water treatment works During 2071, we
completed a new blending scheme at ocur Tuddenham water
treatment works In Ipswich to reduce the level of naturally
occurring selenium present in the groundwater

Safeguarding public health - leading on lead reduction
During this year we have continued to roll out our integrated
package of measures to tackle lead, which sets us apart from
the others in our sector and will help us meet the new EU
limit of 10 ug/1 {parts per billion) of lead in drinking water
from 2013

We have completed installation of 22 new phosphate dosing
processes across our region to reduce the amount of lead
that 15 dissolved in water when it passes through lead pipes
within older properties

We’'re also spending over £15 million to replace lead pipes,
working in partnership with housing associations, local
authorities and householders to help raise awareness and
encourage replacement of their lead pipework The project
15 delivered by our Lead Strategy Team who provide a
dedicated Lead Advice Line for customers and free lead
tests for any customer concerned about lead levels in therr
water supply

During 2010/15 we're
investing £123 million in
further improvements to
drinking water quality

@ See our Drinking Water Quality

report at www.anglianwater.co.uk/dwq

Catchment management is a

key component of our five-year
programme to manage risks to
our supplies posed by nitrates

and pesticides Improving the
guality of rivers, reservoirs and
groundwater sources in our region
reduces the need for expensive,
energy consuming water
treatment processes and secures
the use of these water sources intc
the future We have management
schemes in seven groundwater
catchments and all our 13 surface
water catchments

'Gross sums assumed by Ofwat (in 2007/08 prices) before deducting grants and contributions

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




As part of one initiative In Ipswich, we're adding value to their
housing refurbishment programme by replacing lead pipes
This minimises disruption to consumers and delivers long-
term benefits to public health

We're also working with maternal and child health
professionals on targeted campaigns aiving customers and
particularly the parents of young children the information
they need to make informed choices about replacing or
modifying lead pipework in their homes

Investing for a reliable supply
We have recently started work on three major schemes In
Lincolnshire to ensure rehable supplies into the future

A new innovative, £44 million water treatment works 1s being
constructed close to the River Trent at Newton The project
combines facihities for the abstraction, storage and treatment
of up to 20 million htres of drinking water every day It will
eventually serve customers In the Lincoln area

We are also constructing a £40 million pipeline to transfer
drinking water south from Covenham to meet increased
demands arising from growth in the Boston area Care has
been taken to locate this pipeling, taking into account wildlife
habitats and archaeological sites along the route

The existing water treatment works at Elsham 1s being
expanded to provide an additional 15 million litres of water
every day to industnal customers on the South Humber
bank At the same time the existing treatment works 1s being
upgraded to improve reliability and performance

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Telephone our lead helpline

0845 Q70 3445

The 60 kilometre pipeline from
Covenham reservoir to Boston in
Lincolnshire wliil improve the security

of supply for more than 100,000 people

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivenng our priorities

We invest sigruficantly in preventing and
repairing sewer blockages But this alone

1Is not enough ~ we are also working with
customers to change behaviours Previous
approaches have focused on telling
customers about the problem of fats, oils and
grease (FOG) in sewers and expecting them
to change their behaviours But in reality, this
does not work - we are all individuals with
different beliefs, constraints and habits

So we researched the barners that stop
customers from implementing good practice
and identified the benefits that would
encourage different behaviour We then
explained the simple things customers couid
do to make a difference In addition, because
people are more hkely to change behaviours
and sustain that behaviour If the message

1s coming from a person they know and
trust, we identified and informed community
leaders who worked with us to suppert

our campalgn

Case study: Keep it Clear - reducing the number of sewer blockages

This pioneering approach reduced blockages
in the Peterborough pilot area by over 80%
compared to the start of the year All planned
preventative maintenance of the sewers in
the targeted streets was stopped during the
pillot so that a true reflection of the impact of
behavioural change could be measured Pre-
and post-pilot surveys show how awareness
and willingness to act to reduce blockages
has increased

+ 92% say we all share responsibility for
reducing pipe blockages, up 40%

+ 100% of household customers are
concerned about pipe blockages, up 31%

We are continuing to work with community
groups and organisations to establish
sustained behaviour change As the campaign
extends to other areas of the region, we are
already recording a significant reduction in
blockages

Safeguarding our assets

Business continuity

In 2009/10, we achieved the standard of BS25999-2 2007
spectfication for Business Continuity Management Two

years on from our initial certification, Lioyds Register Quality
Assurance (LRQA) has confirmed through ongoing six-monthly
assessments that there 15 clear evidence of management
system development and continuous improvement

We are the only water and wastewater company In the

UK to achieve certification, a key recommendation of the

Pitt Review of flooding Regular workshops and trainmng
sessions ensure that If any part of our operation 1s hit with an
emergency, from flu pandemic to fire in any of our centres,
we will be able to meet our obligations to our customers

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Delivering our pricrities BUSINESS REVIEW

MEETING THE NEE DS OUR lOO%of.otJrcustomers
OF OUR CUSTOMERS oL Iz o

Throughout the year, we have made further progress

towards our goal of 100% of our customers very satisfied OUR r’°"t"l”:es'tf°"“e'
n our inaustry

with our service. GG AL

Constantly improving results from Ofwat's quarterly Service
Incentive Mechanism (SIM) qualitative satisfaction survey
confirm this

We ended the year second in the customer qualitative
satisfaction survey of water and sewerage companies, having
topped the table in the Q4 survey We await the full Ofwat

SIM combined scores, encompassing the qualitative customer
satisfaction surveys and various quantitative customer contact
data, which should be published later in the year

Our service to commercial customers was improved further
based upon customer feedback This has left Anghan Water
Business in a strong position to take advantage of the
imminent introduction of business retail competition, at a
national level

Our customer service standards focus on providing safe,
reliable and problem-free services to domestic and business
customers and, where we feel these are valued by our
customers, we are looking to extend the range of

services we offer

We remain committed to excellent customer service
delivered through dedicated UK-based call centres,

while off-shoring back-office operations has proved
successful and 1s making a significant impact on our
operational efficiency
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Measuring customer satisfaction

Qur performance 1s determined by customer satisfaction
surveys carried out on behalf of Ofwat by an independent
third-party company, which conducts 200 surveys for each
water company on a quarterly basis Customers are asked
about their whole expenence with us, from initial contact
to how well we tidred up the site on completion of a job
The customer i1s then asked to rate how satisfied they are
overall The responses are evaluated for the industry-wide
company comparison

We also measure our customer satisfaction levels with internal
surveys taking place on a weekly basis We proactively
contacted over 30,000 customers during the year to gather
feedback on the service provided, taking appropnate action
to improve our response The Voice of the Customer team,
created in 2011, ensures that constantly improving customer
service remains a priority

Several measures reinforce the progress made on improving
customer service over the last 12 months Over 95% of
customers calling our contact centre rate their satisfaction wath
our service as ‘satisfied’ or better (up from 87% in 2010/1),
while 83% of those interviewed declare themselves *very
satisfied’ (up from 66% in 2010/11) The Consumer Councl! for
Water has also investigated over two-thirds fewer complaints
against us this year, down to just six from 22 in 2010/1, and 66
in 2009/10

Speeding up our response times

During the year, we have made further significant progress
in improving our levels of service and in the time it takes to
respond to customer calls

Following the initial announcement of the hosepipe ban

in March 2012 (before introduction in Apnl), there was an
immediate increase in the number of customers contacting
us by telephone and email To ensure that all our customers
continued to receive a speedy and efficient response to
their enquines, we allocated extra staff to help manage the
increased workload

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Putting it right when we get it wrong

Sometimes things do go wrong When they do, we aim to put
them nght quickly and without fuss Qur dedicated customer
relations team 1s committed to solving problems and to
reaching a speedy and fair resolution for customers

During the year, we further improved the number of complaints
we were able to resolve on first contact from customers,
achieving over 97% Also, we saw a reduction in the number of
wrnitten complaints not resolved on first contact, down to 1,080,
from 1,908 in 2010/1

Increasingly, we prefer to talk personally to customers as we
find this helps to resclve complaints more effectively The
number of these calls increased from 25% in 2010/11 to 40% in
201112 We also invite feedback from those customers who tell
us that they are satisfied with our service, asking them what

it I1s they hke and value about our company Taken together,
feedback from all our customers heips us to continually
mprove our service and to make further progress towards our
goal of 100% of our customers very satisfied with our service

We remain committed to our UK-based call centres in
Huntingdon, Hartlepool and Lincoin At the same time, the
savings delivered by off-shoring back-office operations make
an important contribution to our operational efficiency and
reducing our operational costs Our colleagues based In
Trivandrurn, India and now in Sn Lanka deal with back-office
customer correspondence and account maintenance and
continue to deliver exceptional quality

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Karen Winfield has been at Anghan
Water for 12 years and heads up our
Voice of the Customer team.

" The team surveys customers who have
had contact with us or work carried out
by us, er who have complained about
the level of service they received Our
objective 1s to find out where we can
improve the service we provide and shape
our service for the future We speak to
about 800 customers a week”

Karen Winfield
Head of the Voice of the Customer team

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Tariffs and affordability @ pP5¢
Read bout 1]
In current economic conditions, we understand the pressures a:; ﬂ:::,;,e,;y out improving efficiency

on many family budgets Affordabiity and bad debtare " TTTTTTTTTTTTTT T TO IO mm A

sensitive 1ssues and we continue to advocate an extension

of options on tanffs Our proposals on tanffs have been
presented to Ofwat and would offer significant assistance for
our most vulnerable customers and would help reduce bad
debt We hope for a positive response

Our website has full iInformation on our Watersure, Aquacare
and Solow tanffs for customers managing medical conditions,
who are in receipt of certain benefits and for households using
less than 75 cubic metres of water a year

Bad debt continues to be a challenge, and to keep to a
minimum the burden this places on paying customers, we
monitor progress on our debt recovery operation each week
For more detall on how we approach this issue, including with
our more vulnerable customers, see page 34

The Anglian Water Assistance Fund offers help to those
experiencing genuine hardship (see page 143)

For details of how we are meeting the needs of our business
customers, see page 44

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Water for health, leisure and recreation

Qur eight water parks are among the best leisure facilities in
the country For many In the region, it’s their ‘big back garden’
s0 we're doing all we can to encourage everyone to enjoy the
extensive range of facilities available

Drought conditions can affect recreational water use for
activities such as fishing, so our procedures trigger Low
Water Level rnisk assessments when reservoirs go betow 70%
full Risk assessments have been triggered at Ravensthorpe,
Hollowell, Pitsford and Rutland Water reservoirs (although the
water level has recently recovered to above 70% at all of these
reservoirs), resulting 'n some restnctions to bank-side fishing
Boat fishing will continue as normal at both Ravensthorpe and
Pitsford for the time being but 1s subject to regular review and
risk assessment

We have been proactively informing customers purchasing
fishing season tickets that these reservoirs remaimn vulnerable
to extremely dry conditions Customer reaction has been
understanding and positive

Throughout 2012, and for recurring events, we will alert event e Visit our leisure and recreation pages.
providers to the long-term risk of dry conditions and begin www.anglianwater co uk/leisure
planning with them to ensure loss and impact of cancellation

15 minimised should the situation deteriorate and impact more

significantly in 2013

At the beginning of May 2012,
Managing Director Peter Simpson
opened our new interactive visitor
centre at Rutland Watér. This
£120,000 investment to update the
centre and add a mini-golf course
enhances Rutland Water as a great
family day out

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BLUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

IMPROVING OUR
EFFICIENCY
AND FLEXTIBILITY

BUSINESS REVIEW

To improve service to customers we continually review ways

of reducing cost, improving our efficiency and increasing QUR Get it nght first
our flexibihty. 0 AL time, every time.
Zero waste

In addition to the £15 millien of benefits our Shaping the
Future imitiative delivered last year, our focus on finding
more efficient ways of working delivered around £10 milhion
of incremental operating cost savings during the year This
helped to offset the significant upward pressure on our cost
base during the year, from general inflationary pressures

{in a year when average cost inflation was just under 5%),

GOVERNANCE l

L

and other cost factors such as rates, the Carbon Reduction This year, we delivered
Commitment, and our new obfigations on the transfer of £ her £10 H £

ﬂ private sewers a further mililon o
£ efficiency savings

8 This year our rigorous capital planning processes continue to

&() place great emphasis on designing systems that reduce the @ P58 to 64

> embodied carbon (and associated costs) of our operations Read more about cutting costs
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As at April 2012 we had achieved a 32% reduction in
embodied carbon, delivered through inteligent design and
measured against our 2010 baseline Projects that have
contributed to this saving include the expansion of treatment
capacity at Bedford Wastewater Treatment Works - a
rethink of the way the treatment works saved carbon, cut
cost and reduced the requirement for a ‘new-build’ solution
When compared tc a conventional solution, the project has
achieved a 34% reduction in capital cost, a 65% reduction
In embodied carbon and a sigruficant reduction in the site
operating costs

Robust capital delivery planning

Qur rigorous capital common delivery process 1s a key AMP5
initiative The front-end focus on definition, optimisation

and integration, and design approaches that mimimise both
embodied and operational carbon 1s dehivering excellent
results For example, some of our wastewater treatment
works are inh the process of being expanded by up to 20%

In response to growing demand However, as a result of the
innovative design solutions we are implementing, they are
predicted to cost us less to run per year, once completed,
than they did pnior to expansion

Collaborative working

In 2011/12, we held regular supplier events aimed at
establishing better working relationships across our

supply network, helping teams to work together to better
understand and achieve our goals In particular, we have
taken the lead to ensure that our partners and suppliers
share our commitment to low whole-life cost solutions, which
minimise embodied and operationat carbon footprints, and,
above all, meet our stringent health and safety procedures

Our @oneAlllance partners

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

@ P60 to 62

Read more on energy management

@ Ps2 to 64

Read more about our carbon goals

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

MEETING THE
CHALLENGE OF
CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change remains one of the biggest challenges
facing our business. Projections suggest hotter, drier
summers and wetter winters, which may have an adverse
impact on security of supply in the long term. At the same
time, the anticipated growth of population and development
in our region 15 hkely to significantly increase demand.

Our strategic response 15 to be prepared for the challenges of
chimate change and so adapt our operations and processes
We are also working hard to lessen, that 1s, mitigate our impact
on the environment

Adaptation measures:

* Taking a lead on climate change policy, regionally, nationally
and internationally

= Protecting our most important assets from flooding

» Managing demand effectively

= Encouraging our customers to Love Every Drop

* Increasing the resilience of our drninking water
supply network

* Bullding adaptive capacity in our pelicies and procedures

Mitigation measures

+ Reducing our reliance on gnd electricity

* Increasing our use of renewable energy

+ Managing and reducing operational and embodied carbon in
our processes, plant and new assets

Anghan Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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of the impact of
growth and climate
change in our region

Reduce our operational
carbon emissions

by 10% in real terms

by 2015 from

2010 baseline

Halve our embodied
carbon in new assets
we bulld in 2015 from
a 2010 baseline




Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Leading on adaptation

In January 201, we submitted our Citmate Change

Adaptation Report to the Department for Environment,

Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), as required under the new

reporting power 1n the Climate Change Act 2008 Following

considerable involvement in the formulation of policy and the

statutory guidance, our report detailed our climate change works with other leaders from major
risk assessment methods and the actions we are taking to UK, EU and global companies through

manage such risks the Prince of Wales’s Corporate
Leaders Group on Climate Change.

Our Managing Director Peter Simpson

We have continued to be heavily involved in shaping the
chmate change mitigation and adaptation response at
local, regional and national levels We have worked closely
with Defra, the Department of Energy and Climate Change
(DECC) and the Adaptation Sub-Committee on shaping the
National Climate Change Risk Assessment, and continue to
do so for the National Adaptation Plan We also work with
our regulators (Ofwat and the Environment Agency) and
various non-governmental forums, including the Cambridge
University Corporate Leaders Group, the CBl and the Water
UK Climate Change Network

At a local and regional level, we have strong links with groups
and working parties including Environment Agency teams,
local resiience forums, county chimate change partnerships
and Shoreline Management Pian review groups Our Love
Every Drop thought-leadership platform makes clear the link
between water, energy use and the potential for significant
reductions in carbon emissions through the more efficient
use of water

Qur Small Steps Big impacts
booklet summarises what we are
doing to adapt our business to a
changing climate and lessen the
impact of our operations on

the environment

We are working to integrate adaptation into our everyday

thinking, activities and strategic planning 9 Download our report at www
anglianwater co.uk/climatechange

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our pricrities

Our energy and carbon management strategy

Energy

The majonty of our greenhouse gas emissions result from
our consumption of electnicity, gas and fuel cills We remain
committed to our ambitious goal to reduce our operational
carbon emissions by 10% 1n real terms by 2015 from a 2010
baseline In line with this goal, we have continued to deliver
energy efficiency projects and increase the proportion of the
energy we generate on site from renewable resources This
year, we have met our energy targets, delivering savings of
over 9 GWh

As energy represents 11% of our total operating costs,
our energy nitiative makes a vital contnbution to our
continued success Investment in self-generation also
increases our resilience

Our energy initiative

Our energy initiative 1s now 1n its sixth year and continues to
deliver stgnificant reductions in cost

» Savings of £13 million to 2010/

» An additional £1 4 million saved in 2011/12

Qur Energy team, supported by suppliers and colleagues
across the business, leads the identification and delivery of
energy efficiency projects, including

+ Great Billing Sewage Treatment Works' £55,000 invested to
improve the controls of the energy-intensive aeration plant
This has achieved cost savings of over £27,000 per year

+ Raydon Water Treatment Works: £60,000 invested in a
new, efficient borehole pump and variable speed drive
This has enabled a more intelligent and efficient pumping
regime to be implemented, saving £12,000 per vear

The drought has impacted our plans for identifying and
delivenng water eneray efficiency projects We are now
targeting some of our energy efficiency site surveys at
those water sites where there may be a secondary drought
benefit associated with optimising the pumping system We
are also scheduling the deiivery of projects to maximise the
avallabihty of the water pumping systems

Anglian Water
Annual repert and accounts 2012

We generate an income
from our standby diesel
generators, making them
avallable to the National Grid
at times of heavy demand

@ Read more online:
www anglianwater co uk/
carbonmanagement




Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

3 We generated enough renewable energy in 2011/12 to power
¢+ around 11,500 homes for a whole year
: ° We saved enough energy in 2011/12 to

power around 3,000 houses for a year

...........................................................

Managing our demand

We actively manage our electricity consumption to minimise
costs, where operationally possible, by scheduling our electricity
usage to optimise benefits from our electricity tariffs This
includes reducing our consumption In response to Triad-
warnings, a system based on predictions of peak national
electricity demand between November and February It enables
businesses like us to manage our own electricity demand at
these specific times and resuits in considerable financial savings

At a number of our sites, pumping regimes have had to change
in response to the drought conditions This has imited our
opportunity tc manage cur own electricity demand and optimise
pumping efficiency This s particularly marked at those sites
pumping into our raw water reservoirs While many of these sites
have pumped less water and have therefore used less electncity,
there has been an associated impact on effictency This is because
we have had to prioritise the volume of water pumped over how
efficiently 1t 15 pumped At some sites, ike those pumping into
Rutland raw water reservorr, it has been necessary to maximise
pumping even during the expensive peak-tanff periods

Generating our own renewable energy

This year, we generated 45 9 GWh of renewable energy (2010/1 Renewable eloctricity

391 GWh) and plan to meet our target of 86 8 GWh annually Gwh E

by 2015 The amount of renewable energy we generated this a‘ -

year 1s enough to power arocund 11,500 homes for a whole year

Our ambition for increasing power generation from renewable - E

resources 1s closely linked with our policy on the recychng and P

re-use of biosolids These engines are powered by the biogas o

from our wastewater treatment process The biosolids, treated 2

to the highest standards and branded as Nutri-bio, are in great | 1)

demand by the region’s farmers as a valuable soil conditioner 58 gorF g
SR a8 o s

20112 SRR ER

+ About 65% of biosolids treated to the enhanced standard
» More than 400,000 tonnes beneficially recycled as the soil
conditioner, Nutri-bio

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Stabilising our energy costs

In addition to reducing our consumption, we are taking action

to protect curselves against nsing prices by managing ocur 0“3 Halve our embodied
energy contracts carefully carbon in new assets
GOAL we build in 2015 from
We use a comprehensive hedging programme to manage our a 2010 baseline
exposure to wholesale energy prices, and over the last three

years we have progressively locked in 100% of our wholesale

electricity costs for the next three years We continue to

specify and procure our energy contracts carefully in order

to obtain the greatest benefit for the company We are

committed to robust management of our supply contracts to

minimise the potential for over-billing

Our extensive smart metering programme continues, with
over 90% of our electricity consumption now read remotely
We've found that smart meters are hugely superior to
traditional manual reading, enabling more accurate biliing,
improving financial control and providing us with the detailed
data we need to monitor and maximise site efficiency

Carbon

Managing and reducing operaticnal and embodied carbon

in our processes, plant and new assets 1s a key aspect of

our strategy to mitigate the impact of our cperations on
climate change We also recognise that reducing carbon
helps us make our business more sustainable It also delivers
considerable savings across our operational and cap!tal costs

Qur strategy on carbon 1s measure, manage and reduce
Qver the five-year period from 2010 our goals are

= 10% reduction in carbon equivalent operational emissions in
real terms from 2010 levels (493,702 tonnes) by 2015

= Halve the embodied carbon In new assets we build in 2015
compared to a 2010 baseline

0 Download ous report at
www.anglianwater co.uk/carbonmanagement

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Measure

Annual gross operational carbon emissions have reduced by

3 7% in 2011/12 in companison to 2010/, decreasing from
504,026 t/COse to 485,273 t/CO2e The overall reduction is
mainly due to a significant decrease in grid electricity usage
In water and wastewater operations, an increase In the volume
of self-generated renewable energy and de-carbonisation of
the UK power network

We're exploring a number of ways of further reducing cur
carbon footprint, including strnict project management and
evaluation and the development of innovative technologies in
both our water and wastewater operations

In 201, we achieved re-certification to CEMARS (Certified
Emissions Measurement and Reduction Scheme) in
comphance with the requirements of 1ISO 14064-12006 This
provided external verification of our carbon measurement and
reporting for 2010/1

In 2010, the UK Government launched the Carbon Reduction
Commitment (CRC) - a new carbon-related tax During 2012,
we will purchase allowances to cover our emissions at a cost
of around £4 6 millien Further information i1s avallable in
our annual Greenhouse Gas Report, produced in line with
Defra guidance on measuring and reperting greenhouse

©as emissions

Manage

Designing out carbon

We're aiming to halve the carbon embodied in every new
asset we create, which 1s why through this AMP period,
designing out carbon at the planning stage is a key element
of our management of capital projects Using specially
developed software, we measure both embodied and
operational carbon emissions at a number of different stages
to challenge and track the carbon impact and then help us
and our contractors cut carbon out

Dellvering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Angtian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priortties

Our design enginecers

use a four-stage process to
remove embodied carbon at
the project planning stage.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Use materials with lower
embodied carbon

Use fewer materials/reduce waste

In other projects, innovative technology allows us to extend capacity without the need for any
large-scale construction

GOVERNANCE '

Case study: More for less

In modelling carbon impacts, engineers identified that for smaller ciameter mains the
excavation and reinstatement of a trench formed the largest element of embodied
emisstons Design engineers following the four-stage process are achieving reductions

in embodied carbon through re-use of the void in the ground and tdentifying the lowest
carbon option in the use of ‘'no dig’ technigues This not oniy reduces the use of finite
quarried maternal but also less time is taken in installing new mains meaning less disruption
to both customers and the general public. The proportion of water mains installed through a
‘no dig’ method such as directional drill, pipebusting or sliphning has increased from around
6% tn 2005/10 to over 60% between 2010 and 2012

L

Reduce

Drop CO>; campaign

Drop CO2 encourages colleagues across the business to

take an active part in reducing carbon emissions. Initiatives
include a popular energy league table that encourages
competitton between our offices, sites and teams, allowing

us to recognise and reward employees' efforts to reduce our
energy consumption and carbon emissions The campaign
also allows us to promote teleconferencing and car sharing to
minimise travel

£ \ REGULATORY ACCOUNTS ' \ STATUTORY ACCOUNTS
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PLANNING AND
INVESTING

We play a major role in supporting economic development
and housing growth in our region with plans to invest £588
million' by 2015, supplying water and connecting hundreds
of thousands of new homes to our wastewater network.

We are acknowledged as leaders, contributing to a network
of productive relationships at local, regional and national
level We also draw on the considerable expertise of the
many internationally known educational, scientific and
technological institutions located 1n the region

We're the largest of the water companies by area, covering
27,500 square kilometres The geographical diversity of our
region 15 more than matched by the range and extent of the
communities we serve and support We also contribute to
economic development with inhovative approaches to the
provision of cost-effective and sustainable infrastructure

Every year, we welcome tens of thousands of our customers
of the future to our education centres The fun continues

at our eight water parks, which play a vital role 1n the

health and wellbeing of families and our growing
communities, and provide award-winning wildlife habitats
of international iImportance

Working with others

Since November 2010, through our sponsorship of the

University of Cambridge’s Sustainable Leadership Programme,

we have played a leading role in focusing on the next big step
forward for water stewardship

1 At 2007/08 prices

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

OUR
GOAL

Effective management
of the impact of
growth and climate
change in our region

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

In 2011/12, we continued to inform and engage with the debate
on the reform of the water industry, contributing to a number
of competition and policy thought leadership programmes

We also published a vanety of communications to help shape
our industry and influence the behaviour of our customers

For example, our Small Steps Big Impacts report, published in
June 2011, outlined how individual action can make a significant
contribution to reducing water consumption We also
contributed to the EFRA Select Committee Inquiry following
publication of the Government’s Water White Paper

Our long-term Love Every Drop campaign continues to make
progress both internally and externally through our work and
collaboration with many stakeholders We intend to build

on the transformational initiative by further developing our
contact with customers and by continuing to inspire colleagues
and all key stakeholders to work with us 1o ensure sustainable
water services are integral to our long-term future

Supporting growth: major investment on the
South Humber Bank

The South Humber Bank is an area of strategic national
importance and is home to a number of significant business
customers 25% of the UK’s petrol and diesel are produced by
the two ail refineries situated there and 10% of the UK's power
1s provided by the neighbouring power stations Additionally,
the potential for growth in the region 1s enormous and 1s hkely
to have a significant imgpact on water demand

In order to support the planned growth in the area and in

light of the abnormally cold winter of 2010/11, we are making
significant investments to both our treatment works and the
network supplying the South Humber Bank Anglian Water
Business invited the business community to attend a forum in
November 2011 to explain its planned £18 million investment, an
event that attracted significant interest from existing business
customers, future investors and local media

Work to replace damaged pipework supplying the refineries
began in November 201 and further investment for growth will
continue into 2012

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

@r27

Read more about Love Every Drop

Download our reports from
our website Go to About us
and click on Future to see our
recent publications




Love Every Drop is the future

Love Every Drop 1s a call to action We want to lead the way
In raising awareness about the value of water and campaign
to change fundamentally how we all engage with it and use
it We are working hard to share its key messages, including
with young people in schools across the region This year,
we exceeded our target of 30,000 people taking part in our
community education programme, educating the customers
of today and tomorrow on the value of water as our most
precious resource In our dry and fast-growing region

Some 20,000 people, mainly Key Stage 2 youngsters,
expenenced our community education programme at our
three purpose-built education centres or in classes and
assemblies in their own schools Others joined us at special
events for interactive sessions designed to encourage an
understanding of the need for a sustainable attitude to water,
waste disposal and the environment Qur work with secondary
school students promotes awareness of the environment and
chmate change and its impact ugon our region

Qur education managers get out and about too, meeting
groups from across our community Including students at
careers faws, curious members of the University of the Third
Age and local councils They also contribute to events,
engaging domestic and business customers supporting our
water efficiency and our Keep it Clear campaigns

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Our education contres in Leighton
Linslade, Chelmsford and Corby
received the Quality Badge

from the Councll for Laarning Outside
the Classroom This nationally
recognised award Is a clear sign for
schools that bringing children to the
education centre wil! provide a safe,
top-quality experience

Our education managers attend
events across the region to spread
the word about our campaigns on
water efficiency in the home and
garden, and Keep it Clear.

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Blockages to sewerage networks are
expensive to clear, and present a flooding
and pollution risk The main cause of
these unwanted blockages 1s fats, oils and
grease (FOG) and unflushable items such
as sanitary products, nappies and wipes

It 1s an industry-wide challenge, and we
have taken the iead in looking at new ways
to engage local people, businesses and
communities in how best to prevent the
wastewater system being used as a rubbish
bin To help make fundamental changes to
attitudes and behaviours, in October we

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

Case study: Keep it Clear - leading the way to change attitudes and behaviours

launched our Keep it Clear campaign with a
pilot project in Peterborough We recorded
an 80% reduction in blockages as a result
of the local campaign, which has now been
rolled-out to other areas In the region The
campaign was launched at a spectacular
animated 3D light show, projected onto
Peterborough’s Guildhall in Cathedrai
Square, where hundreds of local people
gathered to watch the unique performance

Our Keep it Clear campaign used eye-catching materials to help get the message across.




IMPROVING THE
ENVIRONMENT
AND ENHANCING
BIODIVERSITY

We play a leading role and a vital part in protecting the

biodiversity of the east of England’s distinctive environment.

Seeing the big picture and taking the iong-term view are
central tenets of our water stewardship strategy and our
Biodiversity Action Plan.

Water I1s our most precious resource and we fearn from
and work with nature across the whole water cycle, from
improving the quality of the raw water we abstract to the
return of clean, treated wastewater to our water courses

At the other end of the c¢ycle, our work with the agricultural
community 1s bringing results on improved raw water quality,
benefiting witdlife and habitats throughout our region

Qur work on improving the envirecnment and enhancing
biodiversity was recognised with a place on the shorthist for
The Guardian's Sustainable Business Awards In addition, we
have won awards from Business in the Community and the
British Trust for Ormithology Our Biodiversity Freld Guide and
intranet site are well-utihised by employees and this year won
a Global Green Award for Internal Communications

Our bathing waters achieved 100% compliance with

the European Bathing Water Directive for a record 11th
consecutive year Over 85% of them also achieved the higher
Guidelne standard with 17 beaches able to fly the coveted
Blue Flag

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

OuR
GOAL

No poliution

0“ R Effective management
of the impact of

60 AL growth and climate
change in our region

In the five years to 2015, we're
investing £267 milhon on
Improving the environment,
Increasing protection for the
plants, animals and habitats
IN our region

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Water quality - returning wastewater to
the environment

Wastewater Treatment Works Compliance

A significant amount of environmental pressure presented

a significant challenge to the compliance at cur wastewater
treatment works The coldest weather for many years, with
temperatures as low as -18°C in some places, followed by

one of the driest springs in recent years, put pressure on the
operation of our assets A heavy biological ‘slough’ combined
with sludge treatment centre availability 1ssues stretched
resources Despite these tssues, performance at our wastewater
treatment works remained within serviceability targets

Biodiversity Action Plan with
60 high-priority species

Qur region 1s large and diverse and our sites cover many
important habitats that are home to rare species of plants
and animals We take very seriously our responstbility to
protect this wildlife and have drawn up a 10-year plan to
preserve and enhance it

Our Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) 2010/20 details our
plans for the strategic and long-term management of
biodiversity on land we own We completed our first BAP in
2008, and this BAP focuses on identifying the top 200 water
and wastewater sites where we think there 1s the greatest
potential to take action to enhance biodiversity

Our BAP defines the 19 habitat types we've identified on our
sites and aims to increase the numbers of 60 priority species
of birds, mammals, plants and insects QOur biodiversity
surveyor i1s exploring each of our 200 designated BAP sites
to develop a database on species population and assess
potential for habitat development

In this year’s annual Business Bird Challenge, run by the
British Trust for Ornithology, Rutland Water and Alton Water
won two national awards, recognising their importance as
havens for birdlife

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Delivering our pricrities BUSINESS REVIEW

Rutland Water broke all records to win the Major Wetland
Bird Count Award, with no fewer than 205 different species
of bird This was the highest bird count of all entrants in 2010
and the highest count ever recorded In the 16-year history

of the chalienge

The Alton Water reservoir near [pswich won the Large
Wetland Community Award in recognition of its dedicated
volunteers, who work tirelessly to maximise the site's
potential for wildlife

A Big Tick from Business in the
Community for our RiverCare
project, run in partnership with
Keep Britain Tidy

RiverCare

We created the award-winning RiverCare project with Keep
Britain Tidy, helping communities to care for and monitor
wildlife More than 40 teams of community volunteers around
the region have adopted a local stretch of river and given
17,000 hours of their time, carrying out regular litter picks
and biodiversity checks

Getting our staff involved

To encourage as many of our staff as possible to get involved,
we produced our own award-winning Biodiversity Field Guide
to help them identify our prionity species This helps our staff
to take part in International Biodiversity Week snap shot
surveys, as well as the national Big Butterfly Count, and otter
and water vole surveys Staff are encouraged to be “proud of
their patch” and the type of biodiversity improvements we
are seeing at sites include bug hotels, widflower meadows,
nest boxes and feeding stations

Investigating the plight of the nightingale

We have teamed up with the British Trust for Ormithology
to help screntists provide some of the answers as tc why
nightingale numbers, one of our most enigmatic birds, have
dropped by almost two-thirds since 1995 Conservationists
believe clues to the continuing dechne may lie in changes
to the bird’s favoured habitats in or along migration routes
to their African wintering grounds Nightingales at our
Grafham Water reservoir have been fitted with ‘geolocators’
no bigger than a shirt-button and weighing just half a gram,
s0 scientists can discover where these precious birds spend
the winter and which routes they follow to get there This is
vital work in order to find out whether they are running into
problems along their routes

is being used to understand why

13
1
E The latest high-tech tracking technology
E nightingale numbers are in decline

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Osprey update 2011/12

Through the Rutland Osprey Project Www.ospreys.org.uk

{(www ospreys org uk), we work In partnershiyp T TTTTTITTmm T mmnaan s mman et
with the Leicestershire & Rutiand Wildlife

Trust (LRWT) to Increase UK osprey numbers

and protect their habitats Since it was

launched 1n 1996, the translocation project

has provided a home to the first ospreys to

breed in Engtand for 150 years, and around

70,000 people visit the site annually

BUSINESS REVIEW

J

There were 25 ospreys present at Rutland

Water last year - including five breeding patrs

and 10 chicks - meaning that a total of 53

chicks have hatched at the site since 2001

Each year the birds are observed arriving

from Africa in mid-March before travelling

back in late August The migration in 2011

and 2012 was particularly interesting because

a satellite tracking device was introduced Senegal in western Africa The osprey flew
It revealed that' n the autumn, one of the a total of 2,972 miles, I’eaching an altitude
ospreys embarked on a 16-day flight to of 6,12 feet and a top speed of 50 mph

GOVERNANCE
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Tetney Blow Wells in Lincolnshire was
protected for the nation as a Site of Special
Scientific Interest in 1968 because of its rare
wet fen habitat and for the four artesian
springs, or blow wells, which feed 1t

The blow wells are a series of pools, fed
from underground springs, which constantly
bubble up through the chalk that lies
beneath the Lincolnshire Wolds Water
violets grow In the wells themselves, while
the marshy ground around them s home

to a community of rare wetland plants that
earned the site its protected status

The reserve 1s managed in partnership
with the Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust and s
accessible by public nghts of way

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Case study: Restoration of Tetney Blow Wells

For many years wet woodland and willow
scrub has been allowed to spread on the site
for the benefits it brings to other wildife
Now though, the trees have become too
numerous, overshadowing the pools and
threatening to dry out the boggy ground

To return Tetney back to its former glory
drastic measures are called for and after
agreement with Natural England and the
Wildhfe Trust we are removing two hectares
of woodland to restore the wetland

Surveys revealed otters, water voles, badgers
and six species of bat all using the site, so
the work has been designed to make sure
they are not affected

Working with Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust and Natural
England, we are protecting the blow wells while
safeguarding the precious wildlife around them

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

ENSURING WE HAVE SKILLED
AND CAPABLE PEOPLE

Anglian Water is one of the largest employers in the region:
around 3,800 people work directly for us and, in addition,
many thousands are employed directly and indirectly
through our supply chain. Their expertise, hard work and GG&L
commitment are at the heart of the service we provide.

Leading employer
O“R in our region

Creating jobs

We are pleased to have been able to create more jobs this year,
with 60 people joiming us to help find and fix more leaks in our
water network, and 50 new employees helping to mamntamn

the extra 31,200 kilometres of sewerage network we became
responsible for during the year

“1 joined the Leakage team as a Field Techrnician in 2011 This job brings
many cpportunities and | enjoy working outside | investigate drops
In pressure and meter variances and | get great personal satisfaction
when | find what | am looking for and see a drop In the leakage rate
it 1s good to know | am working as part of a team and that | have
contributed to the overall target of fixing our leaks more quickly”

Daniel Rickards
Field Technician in Leakage, Water Services

Ten new apprentices started
at Grantham College in 201
Our 2010 intake ati passed
their first year of training
with distinction

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

“} came to Anghan Water in 2011 with 10 years' experience in leakage
The job 15 brilhant and | could not have a better place to work | am
driven by the management targets that | am given, which gives me an
aim and a focus Seeing what you have done, where you have been and
getting it fixed much faster and better than previously brings about

huge job satisfaction for me”

Alan Black
Senior Leakage Technician, Water Services

“1 joined Anghan Water in August 2011 after a period of unemployment,
although | was undertaking some voluntary work at the time lam a
Craft Technician in Wastewater and was recruited to help maintain
the extra sewerage network Anglian Water 1s now responsible for The
transition for me back into the workplace was faultless, the company
has been very supportive and colleagues have been really helpful The
training package that ensured | had all the skills necessary in order that
| could competently perform my job was of excellent quahty Whatever

| needed was provided

Stephen Harris
Craft Technician, Wastewater

Building technical and professional skills

We continually invest in the technical and professional skills
of our workforce, equipping our people to meet business
needs and deliver great service to our customers

Our Licence to Operate training and assessment programme
ensures our water and wastewater technicians and their
managers are competent, and regular repeat assessments
mean these standards are maintained More than 300 people
were trained and assessed durmg the year

In 2011/12, we also introduced a new development
programme for our specialist scientists 32 employees are
now going through this programme, with the ultimate am
of becoming Chartered Scientists

Managers are also expected to continuously develop their
skills more than 80 managers have taken part in a vanety
of training to broaden their expertence and capabihity
during the year

“ We already have a highly
academically qualfied scientist
team but it 1s important for both
the company and the individuals
to continue therr professional
development This programme tests
and develops their technical and
leadership skills and is industry-
leading It will iImprove the service
scientists give to colleagues and
customers and help us retain vitai
skills 1n the company™

Robin Price
Regional Quality Manager,
Water Services

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Service leadership

One of our most iImportant goals 1s for 100% of our
customers to be very satisfied with our service To make sure
we learn from other successful customer-focused businesses,
we've held training events for 89 of our key managers,
featuring external speakers from a diverse range of
compantes from retall and fitness to healthcare and logistics
These sessions have encouraged new thinking about how we
can deliver exceptional service

We've also launched a new traiming programme for the

2,000 front-line staff who spend most time with our
customers These events are key to improving the way we
look after customers, and enable staff with the best customer
satisfaction ratings to share their best practice and top tips
with their colleagues, benefitting everyone

Seeing first-hand what’s happening
out n the field 1s the aim of our Back
to the Frontline Programme.

Developing internal talent

10% of our staff have more than 25 years’ service Achieving
our business goals depends on us having a strong pipeline
of talented pecple ready and able to step into roles as their
colleagues retire We take succession planning seriously, and
invest significant effort in developing employees to take on
broader and more responsible roles, in ine with their own
career aspirations

More than 100 people have worked on secondment in
another role or department during the year, helping to widen
their experience or develop new skills

We also tnpled the number of places on our Institute of
Leadership and Management (ILM) programme, which
prepares staff for taking on their first management role
and leads to an externally accredited diploma in
management skills

" | started work for Anglian Water as a Laboratory Technician in
2000 and for the last 10 years | have been an Assistant Chemist
in Wastewater During the past seven months, | have been in an
Acting Chemist role | welcomed this challenge, and in order to
support me my manager offered me the opportunity to study for
the Institute of Leadership and Management qualification This has
proved invaluable to me in my role, it has given me the skills and
confidence to lead a team of 12 | would definitely recommend the
ILM development path to any aspiring manager”

Louise Atkinson,
Assistant Chemist Wastewater, Regulation

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Dalivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

To demonstrate the importance of developing internal We're proud that 59%
talent, members of our senior management team have of management and senior
run a series of training events in which they've shared their

experience and specialist knowledge on subjects ranging professional vacancies
from economic regulation and budgeting to strategy and last year were filled by
leading business change internal candidates

Listening to our employees

We believe that listening to our employees can help us
become a better business Every two years, we run a
comprehensive and anonymous emgployee survey, so all
employees can give us their views and 1deas about working
for Anglian Water Our 201 survey produced a positive set
of results, particularly given the amount of change that has
been introduced across the organisation 69% of respondents
sald they are proud to work for the company, 9% higher
than the nerm for private and public sector employers,

and 69% would recommend Anglian Water as an employer
(19% higher)

All units now have action plans to address their particular
employee feedback We'll be measuring our progress in the
next survey, due in 2013

We recognise three trade unions and aiso operate an elected
employee forum, Open House These channels help us
involve employees in changes that may affect them, and give
employee representatives regutar and direct access to the
most senior managers in the company

Valuing our employees

We recognise and celebrate employee achievement and
contribution in a variety of ways

Line managers have freedom to give vouchers and small
bonuses to recognise individuals and teams who have ‘gone
the extra mile’ to provide great customer service and help us
achieve our business goals

During the year, we also ran the We Love What You Do
Awards, a company-wide event to thank more than 230
employees who had personally made an outstanding
contribution to our Love Every Drop targets

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Recognising achievement: We Love What You Do Awards

Qur Adaptation Report 15 required by
government to demonstrate we understand
the impacts of climate change on our
business Our latest report demonstrates that
Anglian Water has the understanding, the
governance, the decision-making processes
and monitoring in place to successfully
adapt to the changing climate it has been
acknowledged by government ministers as
the best of any water company and 1s being
used as an exemplar of best practice

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Adaptation Report teamn received acclaim in
our We Love What You Do Awards

GOVERNANCE

Employees can share In the success of the business through
the Loyalty Savings Scheme, a rnisk-free scheme through
which they can save up to £250 each month for three years
At the end of the savings pernod, they receive their savings
back, plus a ioyalty bonus based on the financial performance
of the business 325 employees took part in the scheme that
matured in 2011, with an average loyalty bonus of £600

Keeping our pension scheme healthy

During the year, we had to make some changes to our
defined benefit (final salary) scheme to keep 1t healthy and
sustainable, and protect our customers from the rising costs
and risks of our pension arrangements

Just under half our staff were affected We undertook a
major communications programme to explain the proposed
changes More than 96% of members attended face-to-face
briefing events across the region The company provided
detalled matenial inciuding personalised ilustrations of what
the changes could mean for each member, and set up a
dedicated helpline and website to help staff with questions
and further information

\ STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

After detailled consultation, we reached agreement with our
recognised trade untons, and separately with the Trustees, on
changes, which took effect from 1 Apnl 2012 These changes
will affect the way pensions build up 1n the future, and still
provide a better quality pension arrangement than that
offered by many other employers

3 i REGULATORY ACCOUNTS
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KEEPING EVERYONE
HEALTHY AND SAFE

It's our strong belief that all work-related accidents are
preventable. Whatever the job, however urgent the deadline,
our employees and contractors must never compromise on
health and safety.

Dunng the year, we continued our make it safe, make it home

campaign to focus everyone on our health and safety charter,

which states

» Nothing 15 so iImportant that we cannot take the time to do
it safely

+ We will never knowingly walk past an unsafe act or condition

« We are committed to the principle that all accidents and
harm are preventable

The campaign encourages everyone to take responsibtity
for behaving safely, taking immediate corrective action when
they spot something that could be a hazard, and chaltenging
unsafe actions by colleagues or contractors

During the year, we created 86 health and safety coaches to
encourage safe working across our operations They were
selected because they have the necessary credibility, respect
and expenence to be effective in this wvital task

We are already seeing the benefits in our health and safety
performance - see below for more details

Measuring our performance

For the eighth consecutive year, our health and safety
performance has been recognised by the Royal Society for
the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) We are particularly
proud this year to have been commended for ‘Excelience in
Health and Safety in the Water Industry’ This major award
15 presented to organisations who demonstrate consistently
excellent and continuously improving performance within
specific iIndustry sectors, and 15 a step up from the Gold
Medal that we received in 2011

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

We have again achieved our
best aver health and safety
performance this year and were
commended for ‘Excellence in
Hoaalth and Safety in the Water
Industry’ by RoSPA.
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BUSINESS REVIEW Delivering our priorities

Our health and safety system received BS OHSAS 18001
accrechtation in 2009 External assessors return for follow-
up audits at least every six months, and these audits show
continuous improvements year on year We also continue
to compare our performance with other water companies
through benchmarking

This year, we once again achieved our best ever health and
safety performance, seeing significant reductions in both the
number and severity of work-related accidents and incidents

We measure our health and safety performance in a number
of ways, as explained in the table below

Measure

| (AFR) :
]

{ 2009/10 2010/m! 20m/2i
i CHasPl T 777 78i a2l
| Category 11ncidents 66 | 32| 10}
E Accident Frequency Rate g 037 : 03 : 0.28 :

CHaSPI: the Health and Safety Executive voluntary
Corporate Health and Safety Perfermance Index provides
a comprehensive picture of overall health and safety
performance and allows us to compare how we are doing
agamnst the other 161 participating organisations Our
data includes both direct employees’ and key contractor
performance

This year, we achieved 8 2 out of 10, which compares well with
the mean score of 6 9 for other employers, and i1s a further
improvement on our performance in the previous year

Category 1 incidents: the number of accidents and near
misses that resulted or could have resulted in death, major or
multiple fractures, amputation or permanent disability

This year we had no Category 1 injunies and there was a very
significant reduction in the number of serious near misses

Accident Frequency Rate: the number of reportable
accidents in every 100,000 hours worked Our accident
frequency rate includes data from both our own employees
and our key contractors

Analysis indicates that improved reporting by some of

our key contractors has led to an increase in the number
of accidents they are reporting This has been offset by a
reduction in the number of reportable accidents by direct
employees We continue to work closely with our key
contractors to share and encourage best practice Our AFR
of O 28 was our best-ever performance

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Keeping everyone fit and well

We value our employees and want them to stay fit and
healthy for the future

Anglian Water provides comprehensive Occupational Health
(OH) support for employees, operates a private health care
scheme for all staff and provides fast access to physictherapy
support for those who need It

In addition, employees have access to a free and confidential
advice service through our Employee Assistance Programme,
offering face-to-face or telephone counselling on a wide
range of personal problems from family, relationship and
work 1ssues to debt or legal problems The service operates
24/7, and also offers help finding all kinds of practical support
from emergency childcare to plumbers

Our in-house OH team has launched a Get Active campaign
to encourage everyone to improve their health and well-
being This includes offering mini health ‘MoTs' to check
biood pressure and cholesterol levels, positively encouraging
people to exercise and play sport, and providing advice on
exercise, nutrition, smoking, alcohol and sleep 1ssues

Reducing sick absence

We have delivered significant productivity improvements
through better management of sick absence, which fell from
an average of & 39 days per person per year to 5 08 days
over the year This means our employees worked 5,060
more days than in the previous year Qur absence rates now
compare favourably with the UK private sector average of
between four and six days

Keeping our suppliers and contractors safe

In 201, we further strengthened our site access and

permit arrangements to ensure those working on our sites
understand safety requirements We also produced a specific
Your Guide to Safety booklet for contractors

We continue to work with our partners to explore mnnovative
ways to drive the highest possible standards of health and
safety throughout our supply chain Health and safety was

a key focus area at our suppliers’ conference this year as

we work together to learn from each other and spread

best practice

Delivering our priorities BUSINESS REVIEW

Anglian Water
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BUSINESS REVIEW Financial performance

FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Anglian Water Services Limited is part of

the Anglian Water Group. The company
operates on an arm’s-length basis from other
companies within the group. The financial
results for the year ended March 2012 are
presented on a consolidated basis for the
company and its subsidiary company Anglian
Water Services Financing Plc.

The financial results have been prepared

in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) The company's
activities are regulated by the Water Industry
Act 1991 (which consolidated that part of the
Water Act 1989 relating to water supply and
wastewater) and the conditions of an Instrument

Financial results

of Appointment (the licence) granted to the
company by the Secretary of State for the

Environment on 1 September 1989

With certain exceptions, the regulatory provisions
do not apply to business activities that are not
connected with the carrying cut of the water and
wastewater functions These business activities
are referred to as non-appointed businesses

(see note 3 on page 139) Under Condition F of
its hcence, Anglian Water 1s obliged to provide
the Water Services Regulation Authornity (WSRA)
with additional accounting information to that
contained in the statutory financial statements
This information 1s presented in the regulatory
accounts on pages 129 to 157

The consohdated profit and loss account as presented on page 94 1s summarised in the table below

2012 excluding 2012 transactions
transactions with with AWS
AWS Holding Holding 2012 20n
companies companies Total Total
Em ém £€m £m
Turnover 11380 - 11380 10923
Operating costs (433 0) - (433 0) {396 5)
Depreciation (254 2) - (254 25 (248 5)
Operating profit (before )
exceptional profit) 4508 4508 4473
Exceptional operating profit 413 - 413 -
OCperating profit 4921 - 4921 4473
Net Interest payable and other
finance charges (3812) 1936 (1876) (1519)
Profit before tax Nnoca 1936 3045 2954
Taxation 441 - (441 (28 9}
Profit after tax 668 1936 2604 2665
Dvtdends! (290 0) (183 6) (483 6) (4481
Transfer from reserves (223 2) - (223 2> {1816)

_________________________________________________ |

' Dividends paid to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2012 were £290 0 million (201 £2550 milion} The remaining
£193 6 milbon (201 £1931 mullion) 1s an intra-group dividend paid and committed by the group but retained within the
Anglan Water Services Financing Group (AWSFG) as defined mn the ownership structure on page i3

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




In order to show the position of the Anglian
Water Services Financing (AWSF) group,
the table shows the profit and loss account
excluding internal interest receivable by the
group from Anglian Water Services Holdings
Ltd and the internal dividend paid by the
group and retained within the AWSF group
of £193 6 milhon (2011 £1931 million)

Turnover for the year was £1138 0 million, up

4 2% on the previous year This primarnily reflects
the regulatory price increase partially offset by
customers switching to metered supplies and
thereby lowering their bilis

Operating costs for the year increased

by £36 5 million (9 2%) to £433 O mullion

(201 £396 5 million) The increase 1s explained
in the table below

Increases/(decreases) in operating costs Em

Inflationary pressures across the business 152

One-off credits (principally land disposals)

in the prior year not repeating 50
Rates increases Nno
Newly introduced Carbon Reduction 46
Comrmitment charge

Operating costs of newly 35
commissicned assets

Costs in respect of the transfer of private 33
sewers on 1 October 20N

Additional leakage reduction and sewer 59

clearance costs

One-off costs associated with changes to
the defined benefit pension scheme and 24
other restructuring measures

Reduced power costs Q0)
Targeted efficiency savings (0 4)
Net increase in operating costs 365

Despite the continued challenging economic
environment, underlying cash collection

from our customers has remained generally
consistent with the previous year This reflects
our focus on this key area and consequently

the bad debt charge of £33 9 million remains
broadly in line with the prior year (£33 7 milhion)

Financlal performance BUSINESS REVIEW

Depreciation s up 2 3% compared with last year,
which reflects the ongoing capital investment
programme, including the recent commissioning
of IT systems and meters, which tend to be
depreciated over a shorter period

Operating profit (before exceptional items) has
increased by 0 8% to £450 8 million as a result
of the increase in turnover, partially offset by the
increases In gperating costs and depreciation

Following a comprehensive review process,

the group implemented significant changes

to the main defined benefit employee pension
scheme to ensure its long-term sustainability,
and this resulted in a non-cash curtallment gain
of £41 3 million in 2012, shown as an exceptional
operating profit in the accounts The curtaiiment
gain reflects the beneficial impact of the
changes on the pension scheme liabilities A
substantial proportion of the benefits achieved
will be reinvested in the scheme to remove
future volatility and risk

Net interest payable and other finance charges
(excluding the intra-group interest recevable

of £193 6 million, 2011 £1931 milhon) increased
by 10 5% from £345 0 miilion in 2011 to £3812
million in 2012 This Increase I1s predominantly
attributable to the non-cash impact of higher
Retall Price Index (RPI) on our index-linked debt

Taxation

The tax charge has increased by £15 2 milion to
£44 1 milion This 1s matnly due to a reduction
in long-term UK Gilt rates which increased

the discounting charge on deferred tax and a
small increase due to higher accounting profits
These were partially offset by a 2% reduction

In corporation tax rates, and a pnor year
adjustment credit

Successful second year of AMPS investment
programme

Gross capital expenditure in the appointed
bustness for the year was £4073 million (£254 5
miliion on capital maintenance, £152 8 million
on capttal enhancement) Cumulatively during
the first two years of AMPS we are in line with
expected regulatory outputs

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

MIIATY SSINISNY

JONVYNIIAOD ,

l SLINNOO2V AHOLVYINDIY —\ \ SINNOIOV AHOLNLVYLS , L




3
w
S
w
a
)
7]
w
Z
7
2
[a1]

]

GOVERNANCE

g L REGULATORY ACCOUNTS ) \ STATUTORY ACCOUNTS l \

BUSINESS REVIEW Financial performance

We continue to perform strongly 1n both
identifying and delivering efficiencies on the
investment programme, cutperforming our
expectations in the first two years of AMPS
Delivering this efficiency 1s key to enabling us to
finance the schemes required to deal with the
impact of drought caused by two successive dry
winters, and the potential consequences of a
third dry winter 1n succession

We have delivered a 32% reduction in embodied
carben in the schemes we are delivenng this year
compared to our 2010 baseline As well as the
environmental benefits of reducing the embodied
carbon this 1s also having a very positive impact
in helping us deliver financial efficiencies In the
vast majonty of cases lower-carbon solutions
result In whole-life lower-cost solufions

Financial needs and resources

In the year to 31 March 2012 Anghan Water
raised £509 8 milhon of new funds and made
debt repayments of £205 7 million Debt
repayments comprised £2 8 miliion of finance
leases and £64 3 million of open market
repurchases in respect of our £275 million
Class B 2012/2037 bond and a repayment of
£138 6 milhon of US private placement debt

At 31 March 2012 Anglian Water had net
borrowings of £4,942 5 million, an increase

of £356 4 million over the prior year Net
borrowings comprised a mixture of fixed, index-
hnked and variable rate debt of £5,640 3 million
and cash and deposits of £6978 mullion The
increased net borrowings reflect an increase

of £95 5 milhon in cash and deposits (which
causes net debt to decrease) and an increase
of £4519 million in loans and assoclated costs
to enable repayment of maturing debt over

the next 12 months and to meet forecast

capital expenditure requirements The business
generated a net cash inflow from operating
activities of £661 5 milhon in the year ended

31 March 2012 (2011 £6321 million)

Distributions

Dividends paid to the ultimate shareholders
for the year ended 31 March 2012 were £290 0
milhon (2011 £255 O mithon), which equates to
£29 00 per share (20N £25 50 per share) This
included £70 0 million of a special dividend,

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

which 1s consistent with our stated dividend
policy to target stable medium- to long-term
gearing levels An intra-group dividend of

£193 6 million (2011 £193 1 million) was paid and
committed to Angltan Water Services Holdings
Limited (via AWS Overseas Holdings Ltd) In
crder for it to service the interest payable to
the company on the intercompany loan of
£1,6091 milllon This dividend 1s retained within
the Anghan Water Services Financing (AWSF)
group In total, dividends of £483 6 million (201
£4481 milion) have been paid and committed at
£48 36 per share (2011 £44 81 per share)

The Directors have propesed a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2012 of £8 60 per share,
which 1s a total of £86 0 milion This distribution
has not been accounted for withun the 2011/12
financiai statements as it was approved after

the year end The proposed dividend mcludes a
special dividend of £15 0 million

The dividend policy Is to pay ordinary dividends
from free cash flow (defined as operating cash
flow less interest and capital maintenance
payments) generated by Anglian Water and

In practice will be targeted to a net debt to
regulatory capital value gearing ratio of 83%

in the medium to long term The dividends
declared or paid will not impatr the ability of the
company to finance the Appointed Business,
and the dividend policy is compiliant with
condition F of the licence

Liquidity

The company’s objective I1s to maintain
flexibility, diversification and continuity of
funding through access to different markets
and debt instruments At 31 March 2012 the
company held cash, deposits and current asset
investments of £6978 million (201 £602 3
million) The increase in cash held compared to
the prior year reflected pre-funding in 2011/12 of
debt repayments falling due 1in 2012/13 These
rasources are maintained to ensure appropriate
hquidity and the continuation of the company’s
ongoing capital iInvestment programme The
matunty profile of the company’s borrowings

15 set out In note 17 on pages 112 to 118 of

the accounts




The new debt raised during the year comprised
a Class A $160 million Private Placement (£991
million), a Class B $410 milhon Private Placement
(£260 7 milhon) and £150 0 milhon of European
Investment Bank index-linked funding After the
year end a further £250 0 milhon of new Class A
debt was secured through a Sterling bond 1ssue

The company has access to £420 0 milhon

of undrawn facilities (2011 £355 0 milhion), to
finance capital expenditure and working capital
requirements In addition, the company has
access to a further £355 0 million of iquidity
facihties (2011 £355 0 million), consisting of
£279 0 million to finance debt service costs and
£76 0 millien to finance operating expenditure
and maintenance capital expenditure in the
event that the company was in default on its
debt oblhigations and had insufficient alternative
sources of hquidity

Throughout 2011/12 the UK Base Rate was

held at O 5% and the continued low short-term
rates of mterest meant that the cost of carry

on Anglian Water Services’ cash balances
continued to be significant Rates received

on cash deposits remain at historically low
levels and where appropriate Anglian Water
Services has worked to reduce the cash held for
hgquidity purposes in the business to reduce this
cost of carry, Including, for example, the early
repurchase of a proportion of the class B debt
matunng in 2012

All bank facilities and debt capital markets
Issuance are 1ssued pursuant to the Global
Secured Medium Term Note Programme dated
30 July 2002 between the company, Anglan
Water Services Financing Plc (AWSF) and
Deutsche Trustee Company Ltd (as Agent

and Trustee for itself and each of the Finance
Parties) This agreement provides that any
faciities drawn by AWSF will be passed directly
on to the company upon utilisation of the facility

Financial performance BUSINESS REVIEW

Interest rates

The company’s policy, as agreed by the board, 1s
to achieve a balanced mix of funding at indexed
(to RPI), fixed and floating rates of interest At
the year end, taking Into account interest rate
swaps, 55 8% (2011 54 9%) of the company’s
borrowings were at rates indexed to RPI, 34 0%
(201 39 7%) were at fixed rates and 10 2% (2011
5 4%) were at floating rates

Pension funding

The FRS 17 pension deficit (before deferred tax)
at 31 March 2012 stood at £62 O million for all
schemes, compared to a deficit of £82 7 mullion
at 31 March 2011 This improvement reflects
changes agreed in the year to the Anglian Water
Group Pension Scheme, which gave rise to a

£41 3 mithon reduction in the FRS 17 habilities for
past service, experience gains of £33 8 million
following the recent triennial valuation and the
company making deficit reduction payments

of £218 mullion, partially offset by a fall in the
corporate bond rates of 0 7% used to discount
the pension scheme habilities The changes

to the pension scheme included capping
pensionable pay increases for future service,
Increasing the minimum employee contnbution
and changing the standard accrual rate for the
Water Pensions Section from 60ths to 80ths,

all of which will help to reduce the cost burden
on customers and improve the long-term
sustainabiity of the scheme for the employees

Regulatory accounts

The regulatory accounts are set out on pages
129 to 157 These show the results of Anglan
Water on a non-consolidated basis and provide
an analysis of the appointed (regulated) and
non-appointed businesses

Anglian Water
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GOVERNANCE Anglian water Services Board of Directors

ANGLIAN WATER SERVICES
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ report
can be found on page 88.

The Anglian Water Services Board of Directors

Back row: (L-R) Scott Longhurst, Robert Napier, John Watkinson, Christopher Garnett, Chris Newsome
Front row. (L-R) Peter Simpson, Sir Adrnian Montague, Jean Spencer

Sir Adrian Montague, Chairman

Sir Adrian Montague was appointed Chairman of
Anghan Water Group (AWG) in March 2009 and
Chairman of Anghan Water Services (AWS) on
29 January 2010 Sir Adnian has been Chairman
of 31 Group plc since July 2010, Cellmark
Investments AB since 2008 and Hurricane
Exploration plc since 2011 He 1s also a Non-
Executive Director of Skanska AB Sir Adrian 1s
also Chairman of the Advisory Board supporting
the formation of the Green Investment Bank,

a Trustee of the Historic Royal Palaces and

a member of the UNECE PPP Private Sector
Advisory Board Sir Adrian was Chairman of
Michael Page International from 2002 to 2010,
Chairman of British Energy Group plc from
2002 to 2009, Chairman of Friends Provident
Group from 2005 to 2009, and Chairman of
Infrastructure Investor Ltd from 2002 to 2009

Executive Directors

Scott Longhurst, Managing Director, Finance
and Non-Regulated Business

Scott Longhurst was appointed Group

Finance Director of AWG in November 2004

In January 2010, Scott was also appointed
Managing Director of the Group’s non-
regulated businesses in addition to his financial
responsibibties Prior to joining AWG, he

spent most of his career with Shell and TXU
Corporation Scott moved from Shell in 2000 o

Anglian Water
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TXU and, from early 2001, was based in Dallas,
USA, undertaking the role of CFO for the Oncor
Group (a subsidiary of TXU) Oncor comprised
the regulated electric delivery and gas
businesses of TXU and Utility Solutions - a non-
regulated utility services company In February
2004, he was appointed Group Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer of TXU Corporation
Between 1991 and 2000, Scott held a number
of financial and commerciai roles with Shell
encompassing corporate, operating company
and joint venture activities across Europe, the
Far East and Middle East He 15 a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants tn England
and Wales and a Non-Executive Director of
Candover Investments plc

Chris Newsome, Director of Asset
Management

Chris Newsome 1s Director of Asset
Management at Anglian Water and was
appoimted in Septermber 2004 Chrnis s a civil
engineer by profession and has spent the vast
majority of his career within the water industry,
ptanning for, designing and delivering capital
programmes of work He joined Anghan Water
from Yorkshire Water Chnis s a Director of

UK Water Industry Research and a Director

of the institute of Asset Management Chris

1$ also a member of the Government’s Green
Construction Board and chairs the Infrastructure
Group He 13 a member of the Institute of Ciwi




Engineers and the Chartered Institute of Water
and Environmental Management He also holds
an MBA from Manchester Business School

Peter Simpson, Managing Director AWS

Peter Simpson was appeointed Managing Director
in January 2010 He previously held the position
of Chief Operating Officer, responsibie for the
day-to-day functioring of Anglian Water, with a
scope covering operations, asset management
and customer services Prior to that, he held
positions within the international division of
AWG, including Regional Director for Europe and
South Amenca, based in the Czech Repubilic,
and Senior Vice President of Operations, based
in the USA Peter, who was appointed Chairman
of Water UK on 1 April 2012, is a Chartered
Water and Environmental Manager, a Chartered
Environmentafist, and a Chartered Health and
Safety Practitioner He alsc holds an MBA from
Warwick Business School

Jean Spencer, Director of Regulation

Jean Spencer was appointed as Director

of Regulation in May 2004 Prior to joiming
Anglian Water, she held a number of positions
with Yorkshire Water and Kelda, including
Head of Regulaticn, Head of Internal Audit

and Regulatory and Accounting Controller A
qualified chartered accountant, Jean began her
career at Grant Thornton in 1980 In 1984, she
joined the Audit Commission, leaving In 1989 to
jom Yorkshire Water

independent Non-Executive Directors

Christopher Garnett

Christopher Garnett was appointed in December
2006 He has more than 20 years’ experience

in passenger transport and was for 10 years,
until August 2006, Chief Executive of Great
North Eastern Raillways (GNER) Since retiring
from GNER, he has taken on a number of other
responsibilities, including being a board member
for The Olympic Delivery Authority, Chairman

of the Olympic and Paralympic Transport Board,
board member of Transport for London, and a
Non-Executive Director of Aggregate Industries
Ltd He 1s also a member of the Advisory board
of the National Rallway Museum and a trustee of
the Windsor Leadership Trust

Anglian Water Services Board of Directors GOVERNANCE

Robert Napier, CBE

Robert Napier was appointed in February

2002 He held the offices of Finance Director

of Fison PIc’s global pharmaceuticals division
and Finance Director, Joint Manag:ng Director,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Rediand Plc He 1s currently Chairman of the
Homes and Communities Agency and Chairman
of the Met Office, having retired after eight
years as Chief Executive of WWF-UK He is also
Chairman of the World Conservation Monitoring
Centre, Trustee of the Baynards Zambia Trust
and a Trustee of Watts Gallery Last year, Robert
stepped down as Chairman of the Governors

of Sedbergh School and of the Trustees of the
Carbon Disclosure Project

John Watkinson

John Watkinson was appointed in May 2005
For most of the 1990s, he held successive
Operations Director roles for both Habitat and
Wallis In 1999, he joined Hamleys plc and later
led a successful management buyout of the
company and became the Chief Executive of
the newly formed Hamleys Group Between
2005 and 2008, John was Chief Executive

of Monsta Group Limited, a retall investment
company, which included the Jones Bootmaker
footwear business In 2008, John set up Retall
InsideQut, a speciabist business practice, and Is
currently working with a number of retallers and
retall suppliers on business growth, recovery,
operational improvement and organisational
design John is also a Group Chairman for
Vistage International, working as a business
coach for a host of CEOs from various
industnes, and a Non-Executive Director of the
Government Procurement Service, the UK'’s
largest public sector procurement organisation

@ ri2

Read more about our ownership
organisation structure

@r32

Read more about our key risks

Anglian water
Annual report and accounts 2032

M3IATY SSINISNG I

|

SINNODDVY AHOLYIND3Y \ L S1INMAODIV AYOLNLYILS




‘ BUSINESS REVIEW ,

\ REGULATORY ACCOUNTS ' \ STATUTORY ACCOUNTS '

GOVERNANCE Directors’ report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report and the
audited financial statements of Anglian Water
Services Limited (the company) for the year
ended 31 March 2012,

Business review

Following the takeover by Osprey Acquisitions
Limited in November 2006 of AWG Plc (since
renamed AWG Parent Co Limited), the ultimate
parent company of Anglian Water Services
Limited continues to be Anghan Water Group
Limited, a company registered in Jersey Anglian
Water Group Limited is owned by a consortium
of investors consisting of the Canada Pension
Pian Investment Board, Colonial First State
Global Asset Management, Industry Funds
Management and 3

The Anghan Water ownership structure 1s
detailed on page 13 The information that

fulfils the requirement of the Business

Review, including a summary of the group’s
performance, future prospects, key performance
indicators and principal risks and uncertainties,
15 included 1n the Business Review and Financial
Performance sections on pages 2 to 85

Common Terms Agreement

The company has a Common Terms Agreement

(CTA) with 1ts debt investors The CTA sets

out the terms and conditions of the company’s

borrowing and the ongoing management

of its Global Secured Medium Term Note

(GSMTN) programme The CTA zlso sets out

the financial and non-financial covenants that

must be complied with in relation to the GSMTN

Under the CTA, the following companies

are collectively known as the Anglian Water

Services Financing Group (AWSFG)

+ Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited

» Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings
Limited

« Anglian Water Services Limited

« Anglian Water Services Financing Pl¢

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

Corporate governance

The corporate governance measures put in
place at the time of the financial restructuring in
2002 are designed to ensure that the company
has the means to conduct its regulated business
separately from other companies within the
Anglian Water Group, and that all dealings
between other companies within the Anghan
Water Group and the company are on an arm'’s-
length basis

The company I1s required to maintain at least
three independent Non-Executive Directors,
except for periods where a temporary vacancy
exists The board may include Directors who
are also Directors of other Anglian Water
Group companies However, the CTA requires
that Executive Directors in this category do
not constitute a majority of the Executive
Directors No Director may vote on any contract
or arrangement between the company and any
other Anglian Water Group company If he/she
15 also a Director of that Anglian Water Group
company In addition, all conflicts of interest
should be disclosed

The processes for identifying, evaluating and
managing the sigrificant nsks to the company
and the company’s internal control systems are
reguiarly reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which reports its findings for consideration by
the board of Anglian Water Services

The members of the Audit Committee are the
Non-Executive Directors The Audit Committee
operates to written terms of reference The
terms of reference deal clearly with the
committee’s authority and duties

The processes used by the committee to carry

out its duties include

« A review of plans and reports prepared by
internal and external auditors

« A review of reports ansing from the work
of the Risk and Compliance Monitoring
Committee on the effectiveness of nisk
management

+ Discussions with management on significant
risk areas




« The review of any significant 1ssues highlighted
by the Executive Directors, internal and
external auditors

Board effectiveness

An annual review of the Board's effectiveness

1Is conducted by circulating a confidential
questionnaire to board members The feedback
15 reviewed by the Chairman and the findings
are discussed by the Board and with individual
board members as appropriate

Financial instruments disclosures
Detalls are included on page 84 of the Business
Review and in note 17 of the financial statements

Principal activities

The company provides around 11 billion litres
of drninking water to 4 4 mithon people every
day The water comes from a varniety of scurces
reservolrs, underground reserves (aquifers) and
abstraction from rivers The company receives
approximately 927 million hitres of wastewater
per day from 2 6 million homes and bhusinesses,
including customers who receive their water
from other companies The wastewater 1s
treated to a high standard and returned to the
environment via nivers or coastal outlets The
organic waste I1s treated, dried and used n
agriculture as a natural fertiliser

Results and dividends

The profit and loss account on page 94 shows
the group's results and profit for the year
Details of dividends paid during the year and
proposed dividends can be found on page 107

Health and safety
Details are included on pages 7% to 80

Directors

Current Directors of the company are listed on
pages 86 to 87 together with their biographical
details All the Directors served throughout

the year

Directors’ report GOVERNANCE

Directors’ indemnities

The company maintains Directors' and officers’
llability insurance, which gives appropriate cover
for legal action brought against its Directors
The company has also provided an indemnity
for 1ts Directors, which I1s a quahfying third-party
indemnity provision for the purpose of section
234 ((2) - (6)) of the Companies Act 2006

Charitable and political donations

Cur business operates at the heart of the
communities we serve, and the majonty of

our employees live locally too We believe that
offering the time, skills and expertise of Anghan
Water employees 15 the best way in which we
can make a sustained community contribution

In 2071, we launched a new employee
volunteering programme - Love to Help -
developed as a direct result of employee
feedback Through this programme, employees
can volunteer for RiverCare, WaterAid or a good
cause of their own choice, and in return the
company pledges to match up to 30 hours per
year of work ttme to help them to do even more
volunteering This new scheme forms part of our
Love Every Drop campaign, and aims to build on
the great voluntary efforts of our employees

We also continue to provide support to
WaterAid - our nominated chanty - and do

not offer charitable donations or sponsorships
to other chanties Durning 207, the business
donated £40,000 to WaterAid and our
WaterAid Volunteers’ Committee, with the
support of many employee volunteers, partners
and suppliers across the business, successfully
fundraised an extra £372,000 - the highest
amount ever raised by this committee

No political donations were made during the
year (2011 £nil)

Research and development

The company has a continuing policy of
undertaking market-focused research and
development on process plant, biosolids
treatment and other water and wastewater-
related matters

Angllan Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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GOVERNANCE Directors’ report

Employees

Employees are kept informed of changes

in the business and general financial and
economic factors influencing the company
This 1s achteved through a systematic approach
to employee communication, which includes
regular briefings, presentations and electronic
maillings The company’s intranet 1s also widely
used as a source of information

The company values the views of its employees
and consults with them and their representatives
on a regular basis about matters that may affect
them The company has a series of policies that
both inform and guide all employees on the
company’s approach to a range of ethical 1ssues
Procedures are in place to deal with allegations
of misconduct, harassment, bullying and other
Inappropriate behaviour

The company also has a series of family-friendly
policies, inctuding such initiatives as flexible
working hours, home working, sabbaticals and
career breaks

The company participates in the AWG Lovalty
Savings Scheme, which has been offered
every year since 2007 and enables employees
to potentially benefit from future financial
performance

The company values diversity within its
workforce and has put Iin place procedures

to ensure that it 1s an equal opportunities
employer All job applications are fully and fairly
considered, having regard only to the applicant’s
aptitudes and abilities relevant to the role In the
event of disability, every effort 1s made to ensure
that employment continues and approprate
adjustments are made and training given

Career development and promotion of disabled
people I1s, as far as possibie, identical to that of
other employees

Policy on the payment of creditors

it 1s the company’s policy to provide suppliers
of goods and services with a statement of
general conditions of contract This document
1s available from the company’s Supply Chain
Management department In general, regional

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

purchasing agreements are in place with
preferred suppliers and the terms will apply
to all transactions The company abides by
the terms of payment The company’s average
creditor payment period at 31 March 2012 was
45 days (2011 39 days)

Events occurring after the reporting period
Details of events occurring after the reporting
period are Included in note 27 of the group
financial statements

Directors’ disclosures to auditors
In the case of each of the persons who are
Directors at the time when the report is
approved under Section 418 of the Companies
Act the following applies
a) So far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the
company’s auditors are unaware, and
b) He/she has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware of
that information

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have
indicatgd their wilingness to stay in office and

d to be reappointed

By er of e board
Claire Russell
Joint Company Secretary

1June 2012

Registered Office:

Angitan House

Ambury Road

Huntingdon

Cambridgeshire PE29 3NZ

Registered in England and Wales No 2366656




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSTIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the The Directors are responsible for ensuring that

Annual Report and the financial statements in the Annual Report and Accounts are published

accordance with applicable law and regulations. and where they are published on the Internet,
for the maintenance and integrity of the

Company law requires the Directors to prepare company’s website Uncertainty regarding legai
financial statements for each financial year requirements 1s compounded as mformation
Under that law, the Directors have elected to published on the Internet is accessible In many

prepare the group and parent company financial countnes with different legal requirements
statements In accordance with United Kingdom relating to the preparation and dissemination
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United  of financial statements

Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable

law) Under company law, the Directors must

not approve the financial statements unless

they are satisfied that they give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the group

and the company and of the profit or loss of

the company and group for that period The

Directors are required to prepare the financial

statements on the going concern basis, unless

it 1s mappropriate to presume that the company

and group will continue in business

The Directors confirm that suitable accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently
as set out In note 1 to the financial statements
(accounting policies) They also confirm that
reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates have been made in preparing

the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2012 and that applicable UK
accounting standards have been followed

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the company's transactions
and disclose, with reasonable accuracy, at any
time the financial position of the company and
the group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and

the group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities

l SINNODIV AHOLVIND3Y j \ SLINNOQDIV AYOLNLVIS '
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March

2012 201
Notes Em £m
2 Turnover 1,138.0 10923
Operating costs
- Operating costs before depreciation and exceptional operating profit (4330) (3965)
- Depreciation net of amortisation of grants and contributions (254.2y (2485
4 - Exceptional operating profit 413 -
Total operating costs (645.9) (6450)
Operating profit 4921 4473
6 Net interest payable (182.1) (1416)
Other ftnance charges (5.5) Q0 3}
5 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3045 2954
8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities (44.1) (28 9)
Profit for the financial year 260.4 2665

The results above arise from continuing operations

Notes 1to 28 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

There was no difference between both the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the profit for the financal

years stated above, and their historical cost eguivalents

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




STATUTORY ACCOQUNTS

\
- - ‘
Group statement of total recognised gains and losses
g
for the year ended 31 March )
=z
m
17
2012 20M 7
Notes £Em £m r;%
Profit for the financial year 260 4 2665 <
m
3
21 Actuanal (less)/gain recognised on the penston schemes (34.6) 862
8 Current tax relating to the actuarial loss on the pension schemes 6.3 -
20 Movement on deferred tax relating to the actuarial loss/(gain) on the -
pension schemes 27 241
20 Impact of change In tax rate on deferred tax on pension schemes 01 Cc3
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 2349 3289
Notes 1to 28 are an integra! part of these consoldated financial statements 8
<
m
)
z
>
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O
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Group and company balance sheets
2
w at 31 March
>
w
@
& Group Company
% 2012 201 2012 20N
b Notes Em £m £m £m
8 Fixed assots
12 Tangible assets 4,812.2 46788 4,812.2 46788
13 Investments 1,609.1 16091 1,609.} 1,6091
6,421.3 62879 6,421.3 46,2879
Current assets
14 Stocks 9.2 96 9.2 96
15 Debtors 3725 33 3724 3723
8 Investments - money market deposits 133.2 475 133.2 375
E Cash at bank and in hand {including short-term deposits) 564.6 5548 522.9 4794
E 1,079.5 8432 11,0327 8988
§ Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
8 6 17 Short-term borrowings {213.9) (41 4) (213.9) Q41 4)
16 Other creditors (526.2) (4361 (529.8) (4360)
(740.1) (5775) (743.4) (5774)
Net current assets 33%.4 3657 294.3 3214
Total assets less current liabilities 6,760.7 66536 66,7156 66093
I
[
g Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
8 17 Loans and other borrowings (5,426.4) (50470) (5,426.4) (50470}
2 18 Other creditors Q361 (420) Q361D (1420
% (5,562.5) (5)890) (5,562.5) (51890)
o
5
n& 19 Provisions for liabilities (63.0) 592 (63.0) (592)
S Net assets excluding pension liabilities 1,135.2 14054 1,0801 1,3611
21 Defined benefit pension liabilities (47.1) (68 6) 471) (68 6)
) Net assets including pension liabilities 1,088 1,3368 11,0430 12925
v
'2 Capital and reserves
8 23 Called up share capital 10.0 100 10.0 100
3 24 Profit and loss account 10781 13268 10330 12825
<
> Total shareholder’s funds ,0880 11,3368 10430 12925
o
g Notes 1to 28 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
-
g The financial statements on pages 94 to 127 were approved by the board of Directors on 1 June 2012 and were
w signed on its behalf by
* L
Sir Adrian Montague Scott Longhurst
b Direct Director
( -
96 Anglia V\jl‘ W(//L ]/
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Group cash flow statement

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31 March

2012 201
Notes £m £m
(@ Net cash inflow from operating activities 661.5 6321
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest recelved 197.8 1979
Interest paid (2261 (2202)
(d) Issue costs of new debt 1ssued (¢-A)] 8
Interest elerment of finance lease rental payments 3.a) (33
Net cash outflow from returns on invastments and servicing of finance (345) . (274
Taxation
Corporation tax paid - (05
Payments to other Anghian Water Group Limited group undertakings 18.0) (26 8)
Net cash outflow from taxation 18.0) 273)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (3586) (2773
Grants and contnbutions received 22.7 240
Disposal of tanaible fixed assets 1.4 23
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment (334.5) (@510)
Equity dividends paid to sharehoiders (483.1) (4481
Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing (208.6) a7
(] Management of liquid resources
(d) (Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits and investments .7n 183
Financing
(dy Increase in amounts borrowed 509.8 1300
(> Repayment of amounts borrowed (202.9) (805)
(dy Capital element of finance lease rental payments 28) 25
Net cash inflow from financing 3041 470
(d) Increase/(decrease) In cash 23.8 (56 4)

Notes (a) to (d) form part of this consolidated cash flow statement

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

BUSINESS REVIEW‘J

2012 201
€m £m
Operating profit 492 4473
Depreciation (net of amortisation of deferred grants and contributions) 254.2 2485
Profit on sale of fixed assets a.3) 2
_ Difference between penston charge and cash contributions {(26.7) (26 5)
Exceptional operating profit (non-cash item) (41.3) -
Net movement In provisions (0.2) 02
676.8 6669
8
% Working capital
% Decrease In stocks 0.4 04
S Increase in debtors (40.7) (203
8 Increase/(decrease) in creditors 25.0 14 9)
as.3) (34 8)
u Net cash inflow from operating activities 661.5 6321

;.“3 {b) Analysis of net debt

% 1 April Cash  Non-cash 31 March
(o) 20m flows movements 20022
8 Em £m Em Em
< Cash at bank and in hand 1n7 238 - 155.5
3>

g Deposits and investments 470.6 n7z - 5423
'5 Short-term borrowings 414 141.3 (213.8) (213.9)
’& Loans and other borrowings due after more than one year (5,0470) (442.3) 62.9 (5,426.4)
-

W

(4,586.1) (205.5) (150.9) (4,942.5)

Non-cash movements comprise indexation of index-hnked loan stock, indexation of Retail Price Index (RPI) swaps,
transfers between categortes of debt, amortisation of discounts and expenses relating to debt 1ssues and

amortisation of ‘mark to market’ adjustments Included within deposits and investments above are £4091 million
(2011 £4231 million) of short-term deposits maturing within three months, which are included in the heading ‘cash at

&? bank and in hand' in the balance sheet

4

8 (c) Management of liquid resources

O This comprises movements in short-term deposits which have matunty dates of up to one vear

O

<

>

o

©
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(d) Movement in net debt n
X
2012 20m m
Em £m <
m
At 1 April (4,586.1) (4,3552) s
Net increase/(decrease) In cash 238 (56 4)
Increase/(decrease) in short-term bank deposits and investments 7.7 8 3)
Increase in borrowings (509.8) (300> -
Repayment of amounts borrowed 202.9 805
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 2.8 25
Issue costs of new debt issued 31 18
Amortisation of discount and expenses relating to debt 1ssues and ‘mark to market’ )
adjustments (2.0) an g
Indexation of loan stock and RP| swaps (48.9) (093 %
At 31 March (4,942.5) (4,5861) £
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Notes to the group financial statements

1 Accounting policies

These consolhdated financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and with the
provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations

(Sl 2008/410), except as disclosed in note 1(d) below as relating to grants and contributions

a) Basis of preparation

The Anglian Water Services group (the group) financial statements comprise a consolidation of the financial
statements of Anghan Water Services Limited (the company) and its subsidiary, Anglian Water Services
Financing Plc, at 31 March Intra-group sales and profit are eliminated fully on consolidation

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, Anglian Water Services Limited 15 exempt from the
requirement to present its own profit and loss account The amount of the profit for the financial year dealt with
in the financial statements of Anglhan Water Services Limited is disclosed in note 11 to the accounts

The Directors have undertaken a detailled review to assess the liquidity requirements of the group compared
against the cash and facilities available to the group, and have a reasonable expectation that the group and
company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

b) Turnover
Turnover represents the income receivable (excluding Value Added Tax) in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided and, 1in respect of unbilted charges, includes an accrual for measured income

Turnover represents amounts recoverable from the regulated business activities, including water, wastewater and
environmental services, and non-regulated business, which primarily comprises legal searches to locate utility
infrastructure, domestic emergency and personal accident insurance cover and recreation services Turnover relates
to charges due in the year, excluding amounts paid in advance which are recognised In creditors

The measured income accrual 1s an estimation of the amount of main water and wastewater charges unhbilled at the
year end The accrual is estimated using a defined methodology based upon weighted average water consumption
by tanff, which 1s calculated based upon historical billing information The calculation 15 sensitive to estimated
consumption for measured domestic customers {a fall of one cubic metre in average annual consumption will
reduce turnover by approximately £4 3 million)

<) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets comprise

(1) infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems consisting of mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw
water storage reservoirs, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls Investment expenditure on infrastructure assets relating
to increases In capacity or enhancements of the network and on maintaining the operating capability of the
network in accordance with defined standards of service i1s treated as an addition and recorded at cost along with
related capital grants and contributions

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets s the estimated level of annual expenditure required to matntam
the operating capabilty of the network, which is based on the company’s Asset Management Plan, which 15
independently certified by the Reporter (see glossary of terms on page 160)

Adopted assets, iIncluding private drains and sewers, are recognised at cost, which 1s generally £nil

(1) Other assets

Cther assets comprise land and non-operational buildings, operational assets (comprising sites used for water and
wastewater treatment, pumping or storage where not classified as infrastructure) and vehicles, mobile plant and
eguipment, and are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes own work capitalised comprising
the direct costs of matenals, labour and applicable overheads interest costs are not capitalised

Freehold land 1s not depreciated, nor are assets in the course of construction until commissioned Depreciation of
other assets is calculated at rates expected to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of the relevant
assets on a straight line basis over therr estimated economic lives, which are primanly as follows

Anghan Water
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Operational assets 30-100 years
Bulldings 30-60 years
Fixed plant 12-40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and eguipment 3-10 years

Fixed assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 11 ‘Impairment
of fixed assets and goodwill', if events or change In circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable

d) Grants and contnbutions

Grants and contributions for capital expenditure include government grants, infrastructure and connection charges,
developer payments for water and sewer requisitions, sewer adoption fees and other contributions from thurd
parties

Grants and contributions to capital expenditure, other than those relating to infrastructure assets, are credited to a
deferral account within creditors and are released to the profit and loss account evenly over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset

Grants and contributions to capital expenditure on infrastructure assets are deducted from the costs of these
assets This policy 1s not in accordance with Schedule 1 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, which requires grants and contnbutions to be shown as deferred
income, but has been adopted in order to show a true and fair view as, in the opinion of the Directors, while a
provision 1S made for depreciation of infrastructure assets, these assets have no determinable finite economic life
and hence no basis exists on which 1o recognise such contributions as deferred income The financial effect of this
departure 1s disclosed in note 12

Revenue grants and contnbutions are credited to the profit and loss account in the year to which they apply

@) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the lessee (finance leases), the assets are treated as If they had been purchased and the
corresponding capital cost 1s shown as an obligation to the lessor Leasing payments are treated as consisting of a
capital element and finance costs, the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor, and the finance costs
being written off to the profit and loss account over the primary period of the lease The assets are depreciated
over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease period All other leases are regarded as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed over the term of the lease

f) Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for mpairment

g) Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage and cbsolescence

h) Pension costs

(1) Defined benefit schemes

For the defined benefit schemes and unfunded pension arrangement, pension scheme assets are measured at far
value, and habilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected umit method and are discounted at the
current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the habilities The
increase In the present value of the liabibties of the company's defined benefit pension scheme expected to anise
from employee service m the period 1s charged to operating profit The expected return on the scheme's assets and
the increase during the year in the present value of the scheme's habilities ansing from the passage of time are
included in other finance charges Actuanal gains and losses are recognised In the statement of total recognised
gains and losses

Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, or deficits, are recognised in full
and presented on the face of the balance sheet net of the related deferred tax

(n) Defined contribution scheme
The cost of the defined contribution scheme 1s charged to the profit and loss account in the year in respect of
which the contrnibutions become payable

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

1) Research and development

Research and development expenditure 15 charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which 1t 1s incurred
Expenditure on fixed assets relating to development projects s written off over the expected useful Iife of those
assets

1) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transactions or, if hedged
forward, at the rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are transtated into steriing at the financial year end exchange rates or, If hedged forward, at the
rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract

k) Current and deferred taxation
Current taxation 15 provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided on timing differences, ansing from the different treatment for accounts and taxation
purposes of events and transactions recognised in the financial statements of the current and previous vears
Deferred taxation 1s calculated at the rates at which it is estimated that taxation will anse The deferred taxation
balances are discounted using the post-tax yields to maturity that could be obtained at the balance sheet date on
government bonds with maturity dates similar to those of the deferred taxation assets and habilities For assets
with a iife in excess of 30 years, an average rate based on bonds with a life up to 49 years has been used as no
other quoted rates are available

Deferred taxation i1s not provided in respect of timing differences arising from the sale or revaluation of fixed assets
unless, by the balance sheet date, a binding commitment to sell the asset has been entered into and 1t 1s unlikely
that any gamn will be rolled over

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset can be recoverable in future periods

Calculation of deferred tax on infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets effectively have an unlimited life and a notional depreciation charge, the infrastructure renewal
charge (IRC) 15 offset against the gross network asset value (see note 1{c)) For the purposes of estimating the
deferred tax hability in relation to infrastructure assets, the useful life over which the underlying differences reverse 1s
estimated by deflating the current cost based IRC to an appropriate deemed histonic cost based depreciation charge

) Bad debts
The bad debt provision s calculated based on applying expected recovery rates, based on actua! historical cash
collection performance, to an aged debt profile

m) Related party transactions
The group has taken advantage of the exempt:on not to disclose transactions with other members of the Anghan
Water Group Limited group under FRS 8 ‘Related party disclosures’ as it 1s a wholly owned subsidiary

n) Current asset iInvestments

Cash deposits with a matunity of greater than three months are classified as current asset investments within the
balance sheet Cash deposits with a maturity of greater than one day but less than three months are classified as
cash at bank and in hand within the balance sheet, but are classified within liguid resources for the purposes of the
cash flow statement

) Borrowings

A financial hability 15 initially recognised net of 1ssue costs incurred Costs that are incurred directty in connection
with the issue of a capital instrument are netted against the hability and amortised at a constant rate over the life of
the underlying instrument within interest payable

Indexation on index-linked berrowings 15 calculated with reference to the current apphcable UK RPi index compared
to the UK RPI index applicable at the time of 1ssue It I1s payable on the matunty of each respective borrowing The
total interest charge on the index-linked borrowings 1s a product of the indexation accrued to date and the nominal
coupon rate payable on the indexed principal of the borrowings

Anglian Water
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p) Financial instruments

Derivative instruments are used for hedging purposes in line with the group’s risk management policy and no
trading In financial instruments 1s undertaken Loans and other borrowings are recorded using the contracted rates
implicit in the financial instruments used to hedge the group’s exposure to fluctuations in currency rates Similarly,
interest 1s charged to the profit and loss account based on the contracted interest rates

Interest rate swaps and swaptions are used to manage the group's interest cost and to hedge the group’s exposure
to movements in interest rates The interest payable or receivable on such swaps is accrued in the same way as
interest arising on deposits or borrowings Premiums on swaptions are included in the calculation of the contracted
rates imphecit In the instrument Interest rate swaps and swaptions are not revalued to fair value pnior to maturity

Gains and losses on derivative instruments used for hedging are recognised on maturity of the underlying
transactions Gains and losses arising on hedging instruments which are cancelled due to the termination of the
underlying exposure are taken to the profit and loss account immediately Where a financial instrument 1s used to
manage interest cost but 1s not part of a hedaing relationship, gains are recognised on matunty of the instrument
and losses are recognised iImmediately where there is an estimated future net cash outflow over the remaining life
of the instrument

The group has not adopted FRS 26 ‘Financial instruments recognition and measurement’ and therefore the
disclosure requirements of FRS 29 ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ are not appiicable The disclosure
requirements of FRS 13 'Derivatives and other financial instruments disclosures’ have been applied

q) Provisions
Provisions are recogrnised when the group has a present obligation for a past event, for which it 1s probable that a
transfer of economic benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provisions of a long-term nature are discounted to reflect the time value of money In the estimated period over
which the provision will be utilsed A risk-free rate of discount has been used

ry Redundancy costs

Redundancy costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the penod in which the group both becomes
rrevocably committed to incurring the costs and has raised a valid expectation with, and announced the main
features of the programme to, affected employees or their representatives

5) Onerous lease costs
Provision 1s made for the expected future costs of property and other leases to the extent that these costs are not
expected to be of future benefit to the business, net of any recoveries from sub-leases

1) Other onerous contract costs
Provision 15 made for a contractual cbhgation on financial instruments that are not part of a hedging relationship
where a future net cash outflow 1s forecast on the remaining life of the instrument

u) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are one-off items which derive from events or transactions that fall withuin ordinary activities of
the entity and which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or
nature to enable a reader of the accounts to understand the results for a particular penod

v) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a hakihty 1n the period in which they are approved or committed Intenm dividends are
recognised in the period In which they are paid or when the company has a constructive or legal commitment to
pay the dividend

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

2 Segmental analysis
The Directors believe that the whole of the group’s activities constitute a single class of business

The group's turnover 1s wholly generated from within the United Kingdom

3 Operating costs

2012 20n
£m Em

Operating costs before depreciation and exceptional operating profit
Raw matenials and consumables 193 160
Other operating costs 318.3 2848
Staff costs (see note 10) 155.0 146 4
Own work capitalised (59 9) 492y
Contribution to Anglian Water Assistance Fund 0.6 o7
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1.3) 22
Total operating costs before depreciation and exceptionatl operating profit 433.0 3965
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
- Owned 254.5 2484
- Held under finance leases 79 80
Amortisation of deferred grants and contributions (8.2) e42)!
Depreciation net of amortisation of deferred grants and contributions 254.2 2485
Exceptional operating profit (41.3) -
Total operating costs 6459 6450

The exceptional operating profit in 2012 comprises the gain on curtallment ansing on penston schemes of
£41 3 million (see note 4)

4 Exceptional operating profit

2012 201
Em £m
Pension curtaiiment 413 -

3 LREGULATORYACCOUNTS J

Following a comprehensive review process, In 2011/12 the group implemented sigrificant changes to the AWGPS
defined benefit employee pension scheme to ensure the long-term sustainability of the pension scheme These
changes resulted in a curtailmen! credit of £41 3 million (see note 21)

No tax charge arises from this exceptional profit

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




5 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

2012 201
£m £m
Profit before taxation i1s stated after charging/(crediting)
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets a.3) 22
Hire of machinery and equipment 2.5 25
Other operating lease rentals 21 26
Research and development expenditure 01 02
Fees paid to the auditors
- Auditing the company’s financial statements and the accounts of any associate of the
company 0.2 02
- Audit-related assurance services - 01
- Other assurance services - 01
- Other non-audit services 0.2 05
Total fees paid to the auditors 0.4 09

The fees paid to the auditors for audit-related assurance services relate to regulatory reporting to Ofwat Other
assurance services relate to the annual offering circular update to enable the ongoing 1ssue of listed debt Other

non-audit services relate to advisory work in relation to system improvements, pensions and risk management

6 Net interest payable

2012 20m

£m £m

Other ioans including financing expenses 229.4 2273
Indexation 148.9 1093
Finance leases 29 32
Interest receivable from Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited (193.6) 1931
Other interest receivable (5.5) 5N
Net interest payable and similar items 1821 1416

7 Other finance charges

2012 201

Em £m

Unwinding of discount on provisions and change in discount rates (see note 19) 2.8 10
Defined benefit pension scheme (see note 21(f)) 2.7 93
Other finance charges 5.5 103

Anglian Water
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

8 Taxation

a) Analysis of tax charge in the year

2012 201
£€m £m

Current tax
UK corporation tax 39.8 245
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (8.6) Q07
Total current tax charge n2 138
Deferred tax
(Crechit)/charge for timing differences arising in year (6.1) 72
Impact of discounting on deferred tax hability 87 ((elr)}
Impact of decrease in discount rates 341 37
Effect of reduction in corporation tax rate to 24% (2011 to 26%) (5.1) (87)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods .3) 136
Total deferred tax charge 12.9 151
Total tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 441 289

The post-tax yield to maturity on UK Government bonds i1s used to discount the gross deferred tax hability of the
group Movements in the discount rates gave rnise to a charge of £341 million (2011 £3 7 million) in the year If all UK
ailt rates moved by 0 25% a change in the tax charge of between £10 0 million to £15 0 mullion would occur

During the year, as a result of the change in the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% that 1s effective from 1 Apnil
2012, all relevant deferred tax balances have been re-measured Further changes to the UK corporation tax rate have
been announced which propose to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 22% by 1 April 2014 These changes, which
are expected to be enacted separately each year, had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and
therefore have not been recognised in these financial statements

The effect of the proposed reduction n the corporation tax rate to 23% from 1 April 2013, which 15 expected to be
enacted in the Finance Act 2012, would be to reduce the deferred tax iability provided at the balance sheet date,
and to reduce the tax charge for the vear ended 31 March 2013, by £2 6 milhon The proposed reduction in the rate of
corporation tax to 22% from 1 April 2014 15 expected to be enacted separately and, if it applied to the deferred tax
balance at the balance sheet date, would be to further reduce the deferred tax liability by an additional £2 5 muliion

The current tax adjustment for previous periods relates to a credit for the agreement of prior year tax computations
of £3 5 mullion (2011 credit of £171 million) and a credit to another group company for expected ACT utilisation of
£8 9 milllon (2011 charge of £17 million) offset by a prior year capital allowances disclaimer charge of £3 8 millicn
(2011 charge of £4 7 miliicn) In both years, the deferred tax adjustments for pnor years related to the agreement of
prior year tax computations

It has been agreed that the group will not pay for tax losses surrendered to it by Anglian Water Services Holdings
Limited amounting to £193 6 mullion (201 £1931 mullion)

In addition to the current tax charge above, a £6 3 million (201 £nil) credit for current tax has been recognised in
the statement of total recognised gains and losses in relation to tax relief on pension contnbutions that were In
excess of the pension costs charged to the profit and loss account

Anglian Water
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b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year i1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 28%)

The differences are explained below

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

20102 20m
Em Em
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 304.5 2954
Profit on ordinary activities at the standard UK rate of corporation tax (26%, 201 28%) 79.2 827
Effects of
items not deductible for tax purposes 1.0 08
Iltems not taxable (0.3) {0 6)
Group relief utilised {50.3) 541
Depreciation not eligible for tax purposes 4.1 42
Industrial builldings allowance - (13)
Depreciation for the year in excess of/(less than) capital allowances 18.3 08)
Short-term timing differences 12.2) (6 4)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods (8.6) o7
Current tax charge for the year 3n.2 138
9 Dividends
2012 20m
Em Em
Previous year final dividend 200.0 2100
Current year interim dividend 800 450
Dividend paid by the company and retained within the Anglan Water Services
Financing group 192.6 192 6
Dividend committed to be paid by the company and retained within the Anghan Water
Services Financing group 1.0 05
483.6 4481

A dividend of £193 6 million (201 £1931 million) was pawd/committed to Anghian Water Services Holdings Limited,
a parent undertaking, in order for it to service the interest payable to the company on the inter-company loan of

£1,6091 milion The prior year dividend committed of £0 5 million was paid 1 June 201

The Directors have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of £8 60 per share, which is a total of

£86 0 million The proposed dividend includes a speciat dividend of £15 O million to matntain geaning at agreed

levels This distribution has not been accounted for within the 2012 financial statements as it was proposed and

approved after the year end

Anglian Water
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

10 Employee information and Directors’ emoluments

L BUSINESS REVIEW '

a) Employee information 2012 20m
Em Em
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 122.7 ne2
Social security costs ne 109
Pension costs - defined contribution (see note 21) 4.1 45
Pension costs - defined benefit (see note 21(M)) ) X -] ns8
Staff costs excluding curtailment gain 155.0 146 4
Pension costs - curtailment gain (see notes 4 and 21) {41.3) -
w ns.7 146 4
5
< Staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2012 include £44 6 milhon (2011 £35 9 million) of costs that have been
% capitalised as ‘'own work capitahised’
w
>
8 2012 20m
Average number of full-iime equivalent persons employed (including Executive Directors)
Water Services 623 605
Wastewater Services 1,470 1,419
Customer Services 746 754
Asset Management and Other 926 218
" 3,765 3,696
.—
z
3
O b) Directors’ emoluments 2002 200
&IJ £'000 £000
E Total aggregate emoluments 2,107 2,052
9 Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 1o 209
E Benefits received under long-term incentive plans 480 284
2
)

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors comprise charges for salaries, taxable benefits and amounts payable under
annual bonus schemes Retirement benefits are accruing to one Director (2011 one Director) under a defined benefit
pension scheme Retirement benefits are accruing to four Directors (201 four Directors) under a defined
contribution pension scheme In addition to the aggregate emoluments above, certain Directors receive emoluments

—\’ from other AWG group companies
,"ﬁ ¢) Highest paid Director 2012 200
=z £'000 £000
8 Aggregate highest paid Director's emoluments and amounts received under long-term
8 incentive schemes 1,024 896
: Accrued defined benefit at year end 52 47
r
.Q The company's contribution in respect of the highest paid Director into defined contribution pension schemes was
ﬂ £7,000 (201 £46,000)
-]
8 1 Profit for the financial year
I The company has presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
The profit for the year, dealt with in the financial statements of the company 1s £259 6 million (2011 £265 6 milion)
I
108 Anglian Water
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12 Tangible fixed assets

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Group and company

buildings assets

Infra-

Land and structure  Operational
assets

£m Em Em

Vehicles, Assets

plant and under
equipment construction Total
Em £m £m

Cost

At 1 Aprit 20M

Additions

Transfers on commissioning

Disposals

387 31701 3,915

0.9 101.0 73.6
- - {0.3)

866.9 172.3 8,163}

- 4090 409.0

58.9 (234.49) -
6.9) - (72)

At 31 March 2012

39.6 32na 3,988.4

918.9 346.9 8,564.9

Grants and contributions

At 1 Apnl 201 -  (256.0) - - (0.1) (256.1)
Additions - an - - 0.4) (A )]
At 31 March 2012 - (267.7) - - a.5) (269.2)
Depreciation

At 1 Apni 201 (4.4) (881.6) (1,708.2) (634.0) - (3,2282)
Charge for the year (0.4) (75.9) (Q26.2) (59.9) - (262.4)
Disposals - - 0.2 6.9 - FAl
At 31 March 2012 (4.8) (857.5) (1,834.2) (687.00) - (3,483.5)

Net book value
At 31 March 2012
At 31 March 2011

348 2,0459 21542
343 20325 22069

25.9 3454 48122
2329 722 46788

Tangible fixed assets at 31 March 2012 include tand of £24 7 milion (2011 £24 5 milhion) which 1s not subject to
depreciation The group's interests in land and bulldings are almost entirely freehold

Assets held under finance leases and capitalised in the above

2012 20
£m £m

Cost
Aggregate depreciation

236.9 2369
(64.1) (1562)

Net book value

72.8 BO7

Capital commitments

The group has a substantial long-term investment programme which includes expenditure to meet regulatory
requirements, shortfalls in performance and condition and to provide for new demand and growth The commitments
shown below reflect the value outstanding of orders placed at 31 March 2012

2012 201
£m Em

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

220.0 424

Anglian Water
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

13 Fixed asset investments

Group and company

2012 20M
Em £Em
Loan to Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited 1,609.1 1,6091

Investment in Anghan Water Services Financing Plc - -

The loan of £1,6091 millon, made by the company to Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited, is repayable on the
later of 30 July 2038 and another date being the next interest payment date following a date which i1s two years and
one day after the final maturity date of the longest dated bond 1ssued from time to time by Anghan Water Services
Financing Plc Interest on the loan is calculated at 12% per annum Anglian Water Services Financing Plc, whose
principal activity 1s that of a financing company, 1s the sole subsidiary of the group 1t 15 100% owned, and 1s
registered, incorporated and operating in the UK at 31 March 2012

14 Stocks
Group and company
2012 201
£m £m
Raw maternials and consumables 9.2 96

The current replacement value of stocks does not matenally exceed the historical costs stated above

15 Debtors
Group Company
2012 201 2012 201
£m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 176.6 1678 176.6 1678
Amounts owed by other Anghan Water Group Limited group
undertakings 19 12 1.9 422
Other debtors 13.8 107 138 107
Prepayments and accrued income 1793 1505 179.2 1505

371.6 3302 3715 na
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Amounts owed by other Anglian Water Group Limited group
undertakings 0.9 n 0.9 n

3725 3313 3224 3723

Prepayments and accrued income as at 31 March 2012 includes water and wastewater income not yet billed of
£1731 mullion (2011 £144 2 million)

The amounts owed by other Anglian Water Group Limited group undertakings falling due after more than one year
represent prepayments and are not interest beanng

Anglian Water
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16 Creditors. amounts falling due within one year

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Group Company
20%2 201 2012 20m
£m Em £m £m
Current portion of long-term loans 210.5 1385 210.5 1285
Obhigations under finance leases 34 29 34 29
Short-term borrowings (see note 17) 213.9 1414 23.9 1414
Trade creditors 170.3 m7 170.3 m7
Amounts owed to other Anglian Water Group Limited group
undertakings 1.0 05 107.9 1056
Receipts in advance 121.0 59 121.0 Nns9
Corporation tax 78.2 624 78.2 624
Other taxation and social secunty 34 31 34 kY
Deferred grants and contrnibutions 8.1 78 8.1 78
Accruals 144.2 1347 40.6 295
Other creditors 526.2 4361 529.5 436 0

Receipts in advance includes £107 4 milhon (201 £101 6 milhion) retating to amounts received from customers for
water and wastewater charges in respect of bills that fali due in the following year

The current portion of long-term loans for the company relates to amounts owed to Anglian Water Services

Financing Plc

Anglian Water
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

17 Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments

BUSINESS REVIEW ,

Group Company

2012 201 2012 201
Em £m Em £m

Loans and other borrowings
£100 million 12 375% fixed rate 2014 (d), (f) 100.0 1000 100.0 1000
£250 milhon 5 B37% fixed rate 2022 (d), (F) 241.9 2477 2479 2477
— £200 milion 6 875% fixed rate 2023 (d), (f) 200.0 2000 200.0 2000
£200 million 6 625% fixed rate 2029 (d), (f) 200.0 2000 200.0 2000
—_\! £246 milion 6 293% fixed rate 2030 (d), (f) 2442 2441 244.2 2441
£275 million 7 882% fixed rate 2012/2037' (d), (f), (@), (1) 210.5 2745 210.5 2745
£250 mullion 5 25% fixed rate 2015 (b), (d), (f) 249.8 2498 249.8 2498
8 £150 mithon 5 5% fixed rate 2017/20402 (b), (d), (f), (@) 149.2 1481 149.2 1491
E £150 milion 4125% index-linked 2020 (c¢), (d), (f) 214.2 2036 214.2 2036
zZ £75 million 3 666% index-linked 2024 (c), (d), (f) 101.6 96 6 101.6 96 6
% £200 million 3 07% index-linked 2032 (c), (d), (F) 269.6 2561 269.6 2561
3 £60 million 3 07% index-linked 2032 (c), (d), (F) 8.3 774 81.3 774
0 Finance leases (b), (d), (1) 59.3 621 59.3 621
£150 million index-linked swap 2024 (e), (f) 16.0 62 16.0 62
£175 million index-linked swap 2030 (&), (f) 18.5 71 18.5 71
£258 million index-iinked swap 2013 (), (f) 78.6 627 78.6 627
_— €650 million 4 625% fixed rate 2013 (a), (b}, (d), {(f) 453.1 45320 4531 4530
US$195 million 7 23% private placements 201 (a), (@), (f) - 1385 - 1385
£402 milhion 2 40% index-linked 2035 (c), {(d), (f) 504.9 4800 504.9 4800
b’_ﬁ £50 million 1 7% index-linked 2046 (c), (d), (f) 60.7 577 607 577
Zz £50 mithion 17% index-linked 2046 (c), (d), (f) 60.5 576 60.5 576
8 £40 milion 17146% indexation bond 2056 (¢), (d), () 48.9 465 48.9 465
8 £50 million 16777% indexation bond 2056 (c), (d), (f) 611 581 611 581
« £60 mullion 17903% indexation bond 2049 (), (d), (f) 73.3 €97 73.3 €97
E £100 milhion 1 3784% indexation bond 2057 (¢), (d), (f) 121.4 Nns5 .4 1155
9 £50 million 1 3825% indexation bond 2056 (c), (d), (f) 60.7 577 60.7 577
2 £100 million Class A wrapped floating rate bonds (d), (f) 99.9 999 99.9 999
S £100 million index-linked swap 2057 (&), (f) 19.8 141 19.8 141
« £75 million 1449% indexation bond 2062 (c), (d), (F) 85.5 815 85.5 B1S
£50 million 152% indexation bond 2055 (¢), (d), (f) 56.9 543 56.9 543
JPY 15 bilhon 2 925% fixed rate bond 2018/2037 (&), (b), (d), (/) 65.9 659 65.9 658
£65 9 million index-linked swap 2059 (e), (f) 9.4 59 9.4 59
—‘] £N0 milhon Class A unwrapped floating rate bonds 2043 (d), (f) 109.9 1099 109.9 109¢
ﬂ £50 million index-linked swap 2043 (e), (f) 7.0 43 7.0 43
Z JPY 5 billion 3 22% fixed rate bond 2019/2038 (a), (b), (d), (F) 25.0 250 250 250
8 €500 mithon 6 25% fixed rate bond 2016 {a), (b, {ch, (f) 392.9 3927 392.9 3927
8 £25 milion 6 875% private placements 2034 (d), (f) 24.6 246 246 246
< £100 million Class B 6 75% fixed rate bond 2014/2024* (d), (f), (g) 890 g8 9 99.0 989
E EIB £50 million 1626% index-linked term faciity 2019 (¢), (d), (f) S6.1 536 561 536
(,2 EIB £50 rmullion 1 3% index-linked term facility 2020 (¢}, (f) 55.4 529 5§54 529
<_I, £130 million 2 262% index-linked bond 2045 (c), (d), (f) 1400 1336 140.0 1336
8 US$160 million 4 52% private placements 2021 (a), (b), (d), (f) 98.5 - 88.5 -
& USE410 million 518% private placements 2021 (a), (b), (d), (F 258.6 - 258.6 -
EIB £75 million 0 53% index-linked term facility* 2027 (c), (d), (f) 75.3 - 75.3 -
_,J EIB £75 million O 79% index-hnked term facility* 2027 (¢), (d), (F) 75.3 . 753 -

-t
=1
~
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Group Company
2012 201 2012 20m
£€m £m £m £m
Total loans and other borrowings 5,640.3 51884 65,6403 51884
Less amounts included in creditors faling due within one year (213.9) (1414) (213.9) (414
Loans and other borrowings due after mora than one year 54264 50470 54264 50470

(a) The group has entered into swap agreements which eliminate the risk of currency fluctuations in relation to the
US dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen loans The adjustment to the US dollar loans is £3 4 million (2011 £171 million),
the adjustment to the Euro loans 1s £(111 8) milhion (2011 £(168 6) milhon) and the adjustment to the Japanese
Yen loan s £(60 3) milhkon (2011 £{59 3) million)

(b) The group has entered into swap agreements that convert its debt into either floating rate, fixed rate or index-
linked debt in accordance with the group’s hedging policy (see page 103)

(¢) The value of the capital and interest elements of the index-linked loans are hnked to movements in the Retail
Price Index (RPI) The total increase in the capita!l value of index-linked loans during the year of £100 2 million
(201 £821 milhon) has been taken to the profit and loss account as part of interest payable

(d) These loans are shown net of 1ssue costs The i1ssue costs are amortised at a constant rate based on the carrying
amount of debt over the life of the underlying instruments

(e) The group has entered into six iIndex-linked interest rate swap agreements The values of the notional capital on
these swaps are hinked to movemants in the RPI The increase In the notional capital value 1s payable at the fina!
matunty date of the swaps The increase for the current year of £48 7 milhon (201 £272 million) has been
taken to the profit and loss account as part of interest payable In addition, a forward starting index-linked
Interest rate swap agreement for £25 O million has been contracted at 31 March 2012

(f) These loans are ‘back-to-back’ inter-group loans from Anghan Water Services Financing Plc to the company
Under the company/Anghan Water Services Financing Plc loan agreement, Anglian Water Services Financing
Plc on lends an equal amount to the sterling equivalent of each bond to the company on identical terms
Therefore each individual ‘back-to-back’ inter-group loan has been separately disclosed Anglian Water Services
Financing Plc charges the company an annual management fee in respect of entering into the company/
Anghan Water Services Financing Plc loan agreement

(g) Legal matunity of these instruments 1s the second of the years quoted Coupon ‘step-up’ is in the first of the
years quoted along with a ‘break clause’ allowing repayment in full at this date, which the company intends
to exercise

(h) A security agreement dated 30 July 2002 between Anghan Water Services Financing Plc, the company, Anglian
Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited and Deutsche Trustee
Company Limited (as Agent and Trustee for itself and each of the Finance Parties to the Global Secured
Medium Term Note Programme) creates a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the company to the
extent permissible under the Water Industry Act 1991 In addition there 1s a fixed charge over the 1ssued share
capital of Anghan Water Services Financing Plg, the company and Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings
Limited At 31 March 2012 this charge apphes to £5,640 3 milbon (201 £5,188 4 million) of the debt listed above

0) Amounts repayable wholly or partly within one year

' The coupon for this iInstrument will Increase to Floating rate LIBOR plus 6 0% effective July 2012 In addition, dunng the year to
31 March 2012 the company repurchased and cancelled £64 3 million bonds of this instrument

2 The coupon for this instrument will Increase to Floating rate 3 month LIBOR plus 3 5% effective October 2017

3 The basis for this instrument will change from fixed rate to floating rate 3 month LIBOR plus 10 9% effective June 2014

¢ These instruments are amortising from 2017 until the date of matunty shown

Angllan Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

17 Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments continued

For the company the current and long-term borrowings can be analysed as follows

2012 20m

Creditors Creditors  Creditors  Creditors

<1 year > 1year < 1year > 1 year

Em £m £m £m

Amounts cwed to group undertakings 0.6 5,3894 1385 50057
Debt 1ssue costs (0.7) 18.9) - a79

Obhgations under finance leases 3.4 56.0 29 593
Finance lease 1ssue costs - (0.1) - n

2139 65,4264

1414 50470

Maturity analysis of financial habihities

GOVERNANCE ' L BUSINESS REVIEW '

Group and company

L

After five years

2012 201

Em £m

Less than one year 215.8 1431
Between one and two years 6409 158
Between two and five years 682.0 8857

4136.6 4,808

56753 52254

This analysis 1s net of issue costs totalling £191 mullion (2013 £18 0 million)
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In addition to [oans and finance leases the above analysis includes other financial liabilities totalling
£310 million (2011 £261 mullion), of which £1 9 million falls due in less than one year {2011 £17 million)

Included above are amounts due under finance leases of £3 4 million (2011 £2 9 million) payable within one
year, £3 7 million (2011 £3 3 million) payable hetween one and two years, £18 4 million (2011 £16 8 million)
payable between two and five yvears and £33 8 million (2011 £391 million) payable after five years The above
matunty profile 15 determined by reference to the fixed dates on which the hability falls due

Borrowing faciities Group
2012 20m
Em £m

The group has the following unused committed borrowing facilities

Expinng within one year 355.0 3550
Expinng between one and two years - 3550
Expiring between two and five years 420.0 -
7750 7100

\ REGULATORY ACCOUNTS l
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Control of treasury

The Treasury team, which reports directly to the Managing Director of Finance and Non-Regulated Business,
manages the financing, including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange for the group Treasury policy continues
to be focused on the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the group The
treasury function will actively endeavour to

+  Ensure that lenders' covenants are met

« Secure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities

»  Manage mterest rates to mimimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs
» invest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk

-«  Maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies

«  Promote management techniques and systems

« Enhance controi of financial resources

Management of financial nisk

Financial risks faced by the group include funding, interest rate, contractual, currency, iquidity and credit nsks The
board regularly reviews these risks and has approved written policies covering treasury strategy and the use of
financial Instruments to manage risks The last review was Iin April 2012 and treasury matters are reported to the
board each month

A Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group (FTEPG), comprising the Managing Director of Finance and Non-
Regulated Business, the Group Treasurer, together with other Directors and senior managers, meets monthly with the
specific remit of reviewing treasury matters

The group aims to meet its funding requirements primarily through accessing a range of financial markets such as
public bond markets, private placements, bank loans and finance leases Surplus cash 1s invested in short-term bank
deposits, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, floating rate notes and AAA rated money funds

The group, via its financing subsidiary Anglian Water Services Financing Plc, also enters into derivative transactions
{principally currency and interest rate swaps) to manage the interest rate and currency nisks ansing from the
treasury policy

To ensure continued effectiveness and relevance, the board carries out a formal annual review of the treasury
organisation and reporting

Borrowing covenants

With the exception of asset-based funding, all the group’s borrowings are raised by Anghan Water Services
Financing Plc and guaranteed by the Anglian Water Services Financing group (see Directors’ Report on page 88)
The treasury function momitors comphance against all financial obligations and it 1s the group’s policy to manage the
balance sheet so as to ensure operation within covenant restrictions

a) Market risk

i) Foreign currency

The group has currency exposures resulting from debt raised in currencies other than sterling and very small
purchases in foreign currencies The group uses a range of instruments to hedge such exposures All hedges are
undertaken for commercial reasons with the objective of minimising the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on net
assets and profits The group has no material unhedged monetary assets and habilities denominated in a currency
different from the local currency of the company

1) Interest rate

The group’'s policy for the management of interest rate risk 1s to achieve a balanced mix of funding at indexed (to
RPD, fixed and floating rates of interest

) Commodity price risk

The group I1s exposed to commodity price risk In 1ts energy procurement and utilises forward energy instruments to
minimise Its exposure to price fluctuations

b) Credit risk

Placements of cash on deposit expose the group to credit risk against the counterparties concerned The group
has credit protection measures in place within agreements which provide protection in the event of counterparty
rating downgrade or default The group only places cash deposits with banks of high credit standing (as measured
by reputable rating agencies) and also seeks to diversify exposure such that concentration with individual banks

1s avoided

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

17 Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments continued

c) Lrquichty risk
The group's objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access to different
markets and debt instruments

Financtal instruments disclosures
Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from this note except for the comments on currency
exposures to the financial statements

Fair value of financial assets and financial llabilities 2012 201
Book Fair Book Fair
value value' value value'
£m £€m £m £m

The fair value of the group’s financial instruments at 31 March was

Cash at bank and in hand $64.6 564.6 5548 5548
Current asset investments 133.2 133.2 475 475
Short-term borrowings (213.9) (219.3) (1243 (1282)
Long-term borrowings (5,446.0) (6,235.3) (51745) (55488)
Interest rate swaps 168 7 2441 2108 2630
Index-linked swaps {149.1) (5834) (1004) (4491
Net debt (4,942 5) (6,096.1) (4,5861) (52608)
Energy hedging instruments - 0.7) - 248
Fixed asset investments 1,6091 11,8309 1,6091 11,9309
Provisions excluding deferred tax and pension obligations {31.0) (66.5) 2610 231

(3,364.4) (4,2324)

(3.0031 (3.3282)

' The fair value of the group’s financial instruments includes accrued interest on borrowsngs and swaps of £103 8 million (201
£105 4 milkion) The book value excludes accrued interest which 1s shown separately in the balance sheet within creditors amounts
falling due within one vear

The farr value of loans and other borrowings represents the market value of publicly traded debt instruments or, if In
respect of private debt, the cost which the group would incur if it elected to repay these borrowings before ther
maturity dates, calculated by discounting future cash flows at prevailing rates including credit spreads experienced
on publicly traded debt instruments In the fair value table above, the book values assigned to derivative instruments
are separately analysed from the book values of the underlying loans

The fair value of the group's energy hedging instruments is calculated to reflect the net gain or loss which would
have ansen If these contracts had been terminated on 31 March 2012 The value at that date was determined by
market rates, which fluctuate over time

The fair value of the group’s fixed asset investment s denived by discounting future interest cash flows receivable

In accordance with the group's accounting policy, leng-term borrowtngs are recorded using the contracted rates
implicit in the financial instruments used to hedge the group's exposure to fluctuations in currency and interest rates

interest 1s charged to the profit and loss account based on the contracted interest rates To determine the farr value
of interest rate swaps for inclusion in the above table, a calculation was made of the net gain or loss which would
have ansen If these contracts had been terminated on 31 March 2012 The value at that date was determined by
market rates, which fluctuate over time The fair value of the group's fixed asset investments I1s calculated by
discounting cash flows at prevailing rates reflecting the relative risks involved

Anglian Water
Annua! report and accounts 2012




STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

The fair value of interest rate swaptions, as included within provisions above, represents the cost which the group
would incur f it elected to terminate these contractual arrangements before their maturity dates, calculated by
discounting future cash flows at prevailling rates

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges

2012 200

Gains Losses Neot Gans Losses Net

Em £€m Em £m £m £m
Unrecognised at 1 Apnl 106.1 (374.8) (268.7) 1013 (3096) (2083)

Reversal of items unrecognised at 1 Apnil (5.0) - (5.0) zn 59 38

Recognised during the year (46.1) 504 40 (28 8) 440 152
Arising during the year 54.9 (180.3) (125.4) 357 51 (794)
Unrecognised at 31 March 109.9 (5050) (3950 1061 (3748) (2687)

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that 1s being hedged s itself
recogrused The total net unrecognised loss of £395 1 million (2011 £268 7 million) principally represents the
opportunity cost of protecting the group interest charge against movements in interest rates at a ttme when interest
rates were higher than at 31 March 2012

Of the unrecognised gains and losses at 31 March 2012, a net gain of £14 6 mitlion (2011 £34 9 million) 1s expected to
be included in the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the balance in future years

All the gains and losses on the hedging Instruments are expected to be matched by losses and gains on the hedged
transactions or positions Foreign currency borrowings are swapped into sterling and translated at the contracted
rates Consequently, the carrying value of the relevant berrowing effectively includes the gain or loss on the hedging

mstrument

Currency and interest rate analysis of net financial assets/(habi!ities) at 31 March 2012

Fixed rate Fixed rate
weighted weighted
index- Floating Fixed intarest average average
Total linked rate rate free Interest years to
£m £m Em £m £€m rate maturity
Total borrowings (all sterling)’ (5,640.3) (3,150.0) (574.2) (.916.3) - 7.0% 10.3
Cash, deposits and current asset
investments (all sterling) 697.8 - 697.8 - -
Net debt (4,942.5) (3,150.0) 1236 (Q9161) -
Fixed asset investments 1,609.1 - - 1,6091 - 12%
Prowvisions (31.0) - - - (31.0)
Net financial liabilities (3,364.4) (3,150.0) 1236 (307.0) (31.0)
' The underlying currencies of borrowings as set cut on page 112 have been swapped to sterling
Anglian Water
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

17 Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments continued

Currency and interest rate analysis of net financial assets/(liabilities) at 31 March 201

Fixed rate Fixed rate
weighted weighted
index- Floating Fixed interest avarage average
Total linked rate rate free interast yoars to
£m Em £m £Em £m rate maturity
Total borrowings (all sterling) (51884) (2,8508) (2801 (2,0575) - 70% 1326
Cash, deposits and current asset
investments (all sterling) 6023 - 6023 - -
Net debt (4,5861) (2,8508) 3222 (20575 -
Fixed asset investments 1,6091 - - 1,6091 - 12 0%
Provisions 261 - - - (267
Net financial habihties (3,0031) (2,8508) 3222 (448 4) (2671

' The underlytng currencies of borrowings as set out on page 112 have been swapped to sterling

Fioating rate cash and investments earn interest based on the London Inter Bank Bid rate (LIBID) for the relevant

currency Floating rate borrowings mcur interest based on LIBOR

18 Other creditors falling due after more than one year

Group and company

2012 20m

Em £m

Deferred grants and contributions 1323 13N
Amounts owed to other Anglian Water Group Limited group undertakings 4.0 109
1361 1420

The amounts owed to other Anglian Water Group Limited group undertakings falling due after more than one year

represent amounts due for utilisation of ACT and are not interest bearing

19 Provisions for liabilities

Group and company
Coupon

Onerous Other anhance- Defarred

loase ONerous mant tax
obligation contracts provision provision Total
£m £m Em £m £m
At 1 Apnl 201 17 12.7 1m.7 331 5§8.2
Charge/(credit) for the year - 4.6 - Qn 35
Unwinding of discount and change in discount rates {note 7) 0.1 - 2.7 - 2.8

Utiised in the year (0.2) - 2.3) - (25)

At 31 March 2012 16 17.3 121 320 630

Angtian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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The onerous lease provision relates to office space vacated by the group as part of the cost cutting programme to
achieve efficiency targets set by Ofwat The provision 1s discounted and 15 expected to be utihsed over the next
N years

The other onerous contracts provision 1s made for contractual obligations on financiat instruments that are not part
of a hedging relationship where a future net cash outfiow 1s forecast on the remamning life of the instrument The
provision 1s expected to be utihsed by 2046

The coupen enhancement provision of £121 million relates to coupon enhancement and other related costs incurred
on the transfer of debt from AWG Group Limited group to Anghan Water Services Financing Plc at the end of the
refinancing exercise in 2002 The provision relates to several instruments with varying maturity dates It 1s expected
to be utiised In varying amounts over the next 18 years and has been discounted

The deferred tax provision and the effect of discounting 1s analysed in note 20

20 Deferred tax

The total tax charge or credit in the current year includes provisions for discounted deferred taxation Conseguently,
changes in the medium-term and long-term interest rates used to discount deferred taxation assets and liabilities can
affect the amount of deferred taxation charged or credited i the profit and loss account

The deferred tax lability 1s stated net of Advance Corporation Tax (ACT) recoverable If changes in the tax legislation

were introduced which restricted the ability of comparnies to use ACT, this asset may no longer be recoverable and In
this event, an additional tax charge would anse in the profit and loss account of £63 8 million

Group and company

2012 201
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 5614 6298
Short-term timing differences (5.0) (6 9)
Surplus ACT asset (42.5) (405)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 413.9 4824
Discount (381.9) (4493)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 320 33
Deferred tax asset on pension habihity (see note 21(b)) 49 241
Total deferred tax included in the batance sheet 17 90
As at 1 April 201 9.0
Deferred tax charged to the profit and loss account {see note 8(a)) 12.9
Deferred tax credited to the statement of total recogrused gains and losses (2.8)
ACT written back in the year {2.0)
At 31 March 2012 171
Anglian wWater
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

21 Pension commitments

Pension arrangements for just under half of the group's empioyees are of the funded defined benefit type through the
AWG Pension Scheme (AWGPS) The group's actuary 1s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Consulting The defined benefit
arrangements are closed to new employees, who are ehigible instead for entry to Anglian Water Group’s defined
contribution schemes For the AWGPS, as a closed scheme, under the projected unit method, the current service cost
will tncrease as the members approach retirement The administration and investment of the pension funds are
mantained separately from the finances of the group The AWGPS disclosures below relate to the company's share of
the assets and habilities of the AWGPS

Following a comprehensive review process, in 2011/12 the group implemented significant changes to the AWGPS
defined benefit employee pension scheme to ensure its long-term sustainabiity These changes resulted in a non-cash
curtallment credit of £413 million

The group also manages an unfunded pension arrangement which has been valued by independent actuanes to take
account of the requirements of FRS 17 as at 31 March 2012 The provision for unfunded pension obligations relates to
the cost of enhancements to the pension entitlements of former employees, over and above therr entitlements in the
group’s pension schemes The majority of these employees ceased their employment following redundancy
programmes principally between nine and 18 years ago These pension enhancements are payable until the death of
the employees (or their dependants), and payments are expected to be made over approximately 25 years

In addition, the group operates a defined benefit scheme for the employees of the former Hartlepool Water Limited
acquired on 1 April 2000 and a defined contrnibution scheme which commenced on 1 April 2002

Contributions to the defined contribution pension scheme in the year were £4 1 milhon (2011 £4 5 million)

(a) Financial assumptions

The valuation used has been based on the full valuatton for AWGPS carried out as at 31 March 201 (summansed
below), updated by iIndependent actuaries to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 1in order to assess the
habilities of the scheme at 31 March 2012 The group contributed 21 2% of pensionable pay in the year and for the year
ending 31 March 2013 the expected contrnibution rate 15 12 5% In addition, the group paid £21 8 mifion in deficit
reduction payments in the year and anticipates it will pay £216 million in 2013

The habilities of the schemes have been valued using the projected unit method and using the following assumptions

L REGULATORY ACCOUNTS J
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2012 201
% pa % pa
Discount rate 4.8 55
Inflation rate
- RPI 313 34
- CPI. 2.5 27
increase to deferred benefits during deferment
- RPI 3.3 34
- CPI 2.5 27
Increases to inflation related pensions in payment
- RPI 32 35
- CPI 25 27
General salary increases’ 2.5/43 44

-

As a result of changes made to the benefits earned in the Anglian Water Pension Scheme that came into effect from 1 Apn 2012,
pensionable salary increases for employees that are members of the Anglian Water Group Pension Scheme (AWGPS) are restricted
to be no greater than the lower of RPl and 2 5% pa each year (for accruing benefits only) As the future pensionable salary increase
(4 3% pa) and RPI price inflation (3 3% pa) are both above 2 5% pa at 31 March 2012, the 2 5% cap on future pensionable salary
increases 15 assumed to apply Benefits earning to 31 March 2012 are no longer linked to pensionable pay/earnings and increase in
line with RPI up to a maximum of 3 5% pa over the period from 1 April 2012 to retirement or earlier leaving

Anglian Water
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2012 201
Longewvity at age 65 for current pensioners (years)
Men 23.0 235
Women 25.2 259
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners (years)
Men 24.8 255
Women 27.2 277

(b) Amounts recognised 1n the balance sheet
The long-term expected rate of return and the value of assets/(liabilities) in the scheme relating to the group at
3t March 2012 are

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions Hartiepool Total
Expocted
rate of
roturn  Fairvalue Fairvalue Fair value Fair value
% pa Em Em Em Em
Equities 6.3 63.6 n/a LA | 66.7
Corporate bonds 4.6 395.5 n/a - 395.5
Gilts 3.3 180.5 n/a 14.4 404.9
Property £33 42.3 n/a - 423
Alternatives 53 36.8 n/a - 6.8
Other 0.5 174 n/a - 17.4
Total assets 946.1 n/a 17.5 963.6
Fair value of scheme habilities (962.1) (45.6) (17.9) (1,025.6)
Deficit in the scheme (16.0) (45.6) (0.4) (62.0)
Related deferred tax asset 3.8 1n.0 0.1 14.9
Net pension liability 12.2) (34.6) €0.3) (47.01)

The long-term expected rate of return and the value of assets/(labilities) in the scheme relating to the group at
31 March 201 are

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions Hartlepool Total
Expected
rate of
return  Fair value Farvalue Farvalue Far value
% pa £m £m £m £m
Equities 73 2952 nfa 28 2980
Corporate bonds 55 2144 n/a - 214 4
Gilts 43 3041 nfa n7z 3158
Property 63 411 n/a . a1
Alternatives 63 142 n/a - 142
Other 05 54 n/a - 54
Total assets 874 4 n/a 145 8889
Fair value of scheme habihities (9216) (443 %7y (9816)
Deficit in the scheme 472 (44 3) a2 927
Related deferred tax asset 123 ns 03 241
Net pension hability (34 9) (328) (09 (68 6)

Angtian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

21 Pension commitments continued

{c)} Reconcihation of present value of scheme liabilities

Unfunded

AWGPS pensions Hartiepool Total

Em £€m £m £m
At 1 April 20N (8216) (44.3) Q5.7) (98186)
Current service cost (10.5) - 0.2 Qo7
Past service cost €0.9) - - (0.9)

Curtailment 413 - - 413
Members’ contributions (3.5) - {0.1) (36)
Interest cost (502) 2.49) (0.9) (53.5)

Benefits paid 33.2 26 0.4 36.2
Actuanal loss (49.9) Q.5) 0.49) (52.8)
At 31 March 2012 (962.1) (456) 7.9) (1,0256)

uUnfunded

AWGPS pensions Hartlepool Total

£m £m Em £m

At 1Apni 2010 (9431 489 (16 5) (1,0085)
Current service cost (e s) - (02 (M0
Past service cost (©8) - - 08
Members' contributions (36) - on («¥))]
Interest cost (525) 27 09 (561

Benefits paid N 26 04 341

Actuanal gain 581 47 16 644
At 31 March 201 (9216} (44 3) 57y (9816

Anglian Water

Annual report and accounts 2012
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(d) Reconcihation of fair value of scheme assets

Unfunded

AWGPS  pensions Hartlepool Total

£m £m Em £m

At 1 April 20M 874.4 - 14.5 888 9

Expected return on scheme assets 50.1 - 07 508

Members' contributions 35 - o1 36

Employer’s contributions 35.2 26 0.5 38.3
Benefits paid (33.2) (26) (0.4) (36.2)

Actuanal gain 161 - 2.1 18.2

At 31 March 2012 8461 - 17.5 963.6

Unfunded

AWGPS pensians  Hartlepool Total

£m £m £€m £m

At 1 April 2010 7989 - 135 8124

Expected return on scheme assets 4861 - 07 468

Members’ contrnibutions 36 - 01 37

Employer’s contributions 354 26 03 383
Benefits paid 1 (26) (04) 34N

Actuarial gain 215 - 03 28

At 31 March 201 874 4 - 145 888 g

The overall expected return on assets is calculated as the wetghted average of the expected returns on each
individual asset class net of Investment expenses The expected return on equities 1s determined as gilt yields

plus a 3% eguity risk premium The return on bonds 15 determined by the market yield on long-term bonds with
an adjustment for defaults The expected return on property 15 determined as gilt yields plus a 2% risk premum

The expected return on other assets 1s set by reference to base rates

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group's own financial iInstruments, nor any property cccupied by, nor

other assets used by, the Group

The actual return of the scheme assets in the year was £69 O mitlion (2011 £68 6 million)

(e) Amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions Hartiepool Total
£Em £€m Em Em
2012
Total actuarial (losses)/gain recogmised (33.8) (.5) 0.7 (34.6)
20N
Total actuanal gamns recognised 796 47 19 862

Cumulative actuanal losses recogrised 1n the statement of total recognised gains and losses are £180 4 million

(201 cumulative losses of £145 8 million)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the group financial statements continued

21 Pension commitments continued

() Analysis of amounts charged against profits

The group’s pension expense for its defined benefit schemes, in accordance with FRS 17, 1s set out below

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions Hartlepool Total
Em £m Em £m
2012 profit and loss account
Current service cost 10.5) - (0 2) 0.7
Past service cost (0.9) - - (0.9)
Pension curtaiiment (see note 4) 41.3 - - 1.3
Credited/(charged) to operating profit (see note 10) 29.9 - (0.2) 29.7
Expected return on pension scheme assets 50.1 - 0.7 50.8
Interest on pension scheme habihities (50.2) (2.4) (09 (53.5)
Amount charged to other finance charges (see note 7) (0.1) (2.49) (0.2) .7
Credited/(charged) to profit on ordinary activities before taxation 298 (2.4) (0.4) 270
Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
£m £rm £m £m

201 profit and loss account
Current service cost Qo 8} - (02) moy
Past service cost (0 8) - - (08)
Charged to operating profit {(see note 10) me) - (02) ms)
Expected return on pension scheme assets 461 - o7 468
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (52 5) (27) {09) 561
Amount charged to other finance charges (see note 7) (6 4) () (02 (93
Charged to profit on ordinary activities before taxation (18 O) ()] 04 (211)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




(g) Historical information

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

2012 201 2010 2009 2008
Em £m £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation (1,025.6) (9816) (1,0085) (7734) (832D
Plan assets 963.6 8889 8124 6746 7512
Deficit (62.0) ®27) g6n (988) (86 8)
Experience adjustments on plan assets 18.2 218 960 a7 (44 4)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 338 122 (9 0) 128 372

22 Commitment under operating leases

At 31 March 2012 the group and company had commitments to make payments during the next 12 months under

non-cancellable operating leases which expire as follows

Group and company

2012 20m

Lanc and Land and
buildings Other buldings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year - 0.2 02 06
Within two and five years 1.2 08 o7 12
After five years 1.8 - 19 -
3.0 0.8 28 18

23 Called up share capital

Group and company

2012 201
£m £m

Allotted, issued and fully paid
10 million (201 10 milhon) ordinary shares of £1 each 10.0 100

Anglian Water

Annual report and accounts 2012
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

24 Movement in shareholder’s funds

Group
Profit
Share and loss
capital account Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 201 10,0 11,3268 1,336.8
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year - 2349 2349
Dividends paid and committed - (483 6) (483.6)
At 31 March 2012 10,0 1,078 1,088
Company
Profit
Share and loss
capital account Total
£m £m £Em
At 1 Aprl 201 10.0 1,2825 1,2925

Profit for the financial year 259.6 259.6

Actuarnal loss recognised on the pension schemes (34.6) (34.5)

Current tax relating to the actuanal loss on the pension schemes - 6.3 6.3
Movemnent on deferred tax relating to the actuanal loss on the pension schemes - 2.7 2.7
Impact of change In tax rate on deferred tax on pension schemes - 01 [+A
Dividends paid and committed - (483 6) (483.6)
At 31 March 2012 10.0 1,033.0 1,043.0

25 Contingencies

At 31 March 2012 £142 5 milhon (2011 £140 5 million) of Advance Corporation Tax (ACT) has been surrendered to the
company by AWG Group Limited but remains unutiised As part of the financial restructuning in 2002, the company
1s required to pay AWG Group Limited on utihsation of ACT The amount recognised for payment to AWG Group
Limited for the utihsation of ACT has reduced to £4 0 million as at 31 March 2012 (201 £10 9 mullion) No further
provision has been recogrused in the group accounts as it 15 uncertain whether further ACT will be utilised (i 1t 1s not
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation)

The company, as part of the Anglan Water Services Financing group, guarantees uncondittonally and irrevocably all
the borrowings of Anghan Water Services Financing Ple, which at 31 March 2012 amounted to £5,729 8 million (201
£5,364 9 milhon) The borrowings of Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited and Anglan Water Services Cverseas
Holdings Limited are also guaranteed unconditionally and irrevocably by the company Excluding the £1,6091 million
loan made by the company to Anglan Water Services Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited
and Anglan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited had no outstanding indebtedness at 31 March 2012

During the year, Ofwat 1ssued a Statement of Cbjections to Anghan Water alleging that we may have infringed the
Competition Act 1998 in respect of our approach to pricing supplies to a housing development at Milton Keynes We
have refuted the allegations and await Ofwat’s deciston on how it intends to conclude its investigation The matter is
expected to be immaterial in the context of our overall business

There are no other matenal contingent liabilihies at 31 March 2012 for which provision has not been made 1n these
financial statements

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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26 Related party transactions

As part of the company’s usual relocation policy to assist key employees to relocate thetr main family home into the
region, on 28 Apnl 2010 the company purchased the family home of the Director Chris Newsome, for £407,500

The price paid was the market value of the property at the time, as assessed by independent surveyors At 31 March
20N the house was being marketed for sale by the company, and was included 1n the accounts within current assets
at its purchase price The house was sold by the company during the year to 31 March 2012

During the year, Anghan Water Services Financing Plc 1ssued two 10-year US dollar private placements through the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia, the parent company of Colomal First State Global Asset Management, one of the
consortium of investors owning Anghan Water Group Limited The Commonwealth Bank of Australia earned fees
which were agreed on normal commercial terms, of 25 and 50 basis points, for these transactions, equating to a
total of US$2,450,000

At the balance sheet date Key Management held vanous bonds tssued by the group totalling £0 4 milhon (2011
£0 2 mulhion)

27 Events after balance sheet date
The final dividend for 2011/12 of £86 O millicn was approved by the board on 1 June 2012

28 Ultimate parent company

The company's immediate parent undertaking 1s Anghan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, a company
registered in the Cayman Islands

Csprey Acquisitions Limited 1s parent company of the smallest group to consolidate the financial statements of
the company

Anghan Water Group Limited 15 the parent company of the largest group to consolidate the financial statements
of the company, copies of which ¢an be obtained from the Company Secretary, Anglian House, Ambury Road,
Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE29 3NZ

Copies of the accounts of Anghan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited
and Anglian Water Services Financing Plc can also be obtained from the Company Secretary at the above address

The Directors consider Anghan Water Group Limited, a company registered in Jersey, to be the ultimate parent
undertaking Anghan Water Group Limited 1s itself owned and controlled by a consortium of investors consisting of
the Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, Colonial First State Global Asset Management, Industry Funds
Management (IFM), and 3i

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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independent auditors’ report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Anglian Water Services Limited

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the ‘iinancial statements”) of Anghan Water
Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 which comprise the Group Profit and Loss Account, the Group
and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and Losses and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation i1s apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 91 the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibiity for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s and
parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the aucited finangial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the imphications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinton the financial statements

+ give a true and farr view of the state of the group’s and the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of
the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2008 requires us to report

to you If, in our opinion

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have naof received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

lohn Maitland (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Birmingham
1 June 2012

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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Regulatory accounts and required regulatory information

The regulatory accounts and required regulatory information on pages 131 to 157 are provided to comply with
Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of Anglan Water Services Limited as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991

The regulatory accounts are prepared in accordance with the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by Ofwat
There are differences between UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Regulatory Accounting

Guidelines Where different treatments are specified under each, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines take
precedence

A glossary of regulatory terms 1s shown on page 160
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for
regulatory information

Further to the reguirements of company law, the Directors are required to prepare accounting statements which
comply with the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of the company as a water and
sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by Ofwat

This additionally requires the Directors to

« Confirm that, in therr opimon, the company has sufficient financial resources and facilities, management resources
and methods of planning and internal control for the next 12 months

« Confirm that, in therr opimon, the company has sufficient rights and assets which would enable a special
admunistrator to manage the affairs, business and property of the company

» Confirm that, in their opimion, the company has contracts with any associate company with the necessary
provisions and requirements concerning the standard of service to be supplied to ensure complitance with the
company's obligations as a water and sewerage undertaker

* Report to Ofwat changes in the company's activities which may be material in relation to the company’s ability to
finance 1ts regulated activities

« Undertake transactions entered into by the appointed business, with or for the benefit of associated companies or
other businesses or activities of the appointed business, at arm’s length

* Keep proper accounting records which comply with Condition F

These responsibilities are additional to those already set out in the statutory financial statements

In the case of each of the persons who are Directors at the time when the report 1s approved under Section 418 of
the Companies Act the following applies

a} So far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware, and

b) He/she has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware
of that information

Angtian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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Notes on regulatory accounts

1 General

The company's activities are regulated by the conditions of a Licence granted to the company by the Secretary of
State for the Environment With certain exceptions, the regulatory provisions do not apply to business activities
which are not connected with the carrying out of the water and sewerage function, these business activities are
referred to as non-appointed business (see note 3 on page 139)

An analysis of the regulatory histoncal cost profit and loss account and regulatory hustorical cost balance sheet
between appointed and nen-appointed business 1s set out on pages 132 and 134 A current cost profit and loss
account and current cost balance sheet for the appointed business are shown on pages 144 and 145 Other current
cost disclosures appear on pages 146 to 156 Additional information required by the Licence 1s shown on pages 136
{0143

Under the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines the classification of certain balances within the regulatory accounts
differs from that disclosed In the statutory financial statements A reconcihation of the differences 1s provided on
page 135

2 Protection of the regulated business

{a) in the opimon of the Directors, the company will have available to it sufficient financial resources and facilities
to enable 1t to carry out, for at least the next 12 months, the regulated activities (including the investment
programme necessary to fulfif its obligations under the Instrument of Appointment)

(b) In the opinion of the Directors, the company will, for at least the next 12 months, have available to it
management resources and methods of planning and internal control which are sufficient to carry out the
regulated activities (including the investment programme necessary to fulfil its obligations under the
Instrument of Appointment)

(¢) In the optnion of the Directors, al! contracts entered into with any associate company include all necessary
provisions and requirements concerning the standard of service to be supphed to the company to ensure that it
15 able to meet all its obhgations as a water and sewerage undertaker

3 Arm’s-length trading
In the opmion of the Directors, the company was In compliance with paragraph 31 of Condition F of the Licence
throughout the year

Angllan Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Regulatory historical cost profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March

2012 20m
Non- Non-
Appointed appointed Total Appointed appointed Total
£m £Em Em £m £m £m
Turnover 1,123.3 147 1,380 10793 130 11,0023
Operating costs (before exceptional profit) (426.9) (7.4) (434.3) (3922) (65 (3987
Historical cost depraciation {253.7) (0.5) (254.2) (2481 (04) (2485)
Exceptional operating profit 413 - 41.3 - -
Operating income 1.3 - 1.3 22 - 22
Operating profit 485.3 6.8 4921 4412 61 4473
Net interest payable (188.4) - Qgs.4) (528) - (528}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 296.9 6.8 303.7 2884 61 2945
Taxation
- Current tax (29.4) 1.8) 3.2) 2 an 38
~ Deferred tax (12.9) - 12.9) asn - sn
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 254.6 5.0 259.6 2612 44 2656
Dvidends (478.6) (5.0) (483.6) (4437) (44) (4481
Transfer from reserves (224.0) - €224.0) (1825) - (1825)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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Regulatory historical cost statement of total recognised

gains and losses for the appointed business

for the year ended 31 March

2012 200

£€m £m

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 254.6 2612

Actuanal (loss)/gamn recognised on the pension schemes (34.6) 862

Current tax relating to the actuanal loss on the pension schemes 6.3 -
Movement on deferred tax relating to the actuarial loss/(gain) on the pension schemes 2.7 247

Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax on pension schemes 01 03

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 229 3236

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Regulatory historical cost balance sheet

as at 31 March

2012 201
Non- Non-
Appointed appointed Total Appointed appomnted Total
Em £m Em £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4,754.4 26 47570 46302 13 4,6315
Investments 1,609.1 - 1,609 1,6081 - 1,6091
Total fixed assets 6,363.5 26 6,366 62393 13 62406
Current assets
Stocks 9.2 - 9.2 96 - 96
Debtors 3724 - 3724 3723 - 3723
Cash at bank and in hand 142.0 1.8 143.8 1090 17 Nno7
Investments and short-term deposits 512.3 - s12.3 406 2 - 4062
Infrastructure renewals prepayment 55.2 - 55.2 473 - 473
Total current assets 1,091.1 1.8 1,092.9 944 4 17 9461
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Short-term borrowings (213.9) - (213.9) Q41 4) - aa14)
Cther creditors (440.6) (26) (443.2) (3644) (13 (3657
Corporation tax payable (76.4) (1.8) (78.2) (60 7) an (62 4)
Total creditors (720.9) (4.4) (735.3) (56605) (30) (5695
Net current assets 360.2 (2.6) 3576 3779 (13 3766
Total assets less current liabilities 6,723.7 - 6,723%.7 6.6172 - 6,6172
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
ane year
Loans and other borrowings (5,426.49) - {5,426.4) (5,0470) < (50470)
Other creditors (4.0) - (4.0) 09 - (109
Total creditors (5,430.9) - (5,430.4) (5,0579) - (50579)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax provision (32.0) - {32.0) 33D - (331
Other provisicns (31.0) - (3.0) (26 2) - (262)
Deferred income - grants and contributions 140.2) . (140.2) (1389) - 389
Defined benefit pension scheme habilities {47.1) - 47.1) (68 6) - (68 6)
(250.3) - (250.3) (2668) - (266 8)
Net assets employed 1,043.0 - 10430 12925 - 12925
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10.0 - 10.0 100 - 100
Profit and loss account 1,033.0 - 11,0330 12825 - 12825
Capital and reserves 1,043.0 - 1,043.0 12925 - 12925

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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Historical cost reconciliation between statutory
accounts and regulatory accounts

as at 31 March

Reconciliation between historical cost statutory and regulatory accounts for the appointed
and non-appointed business

2012 2012
Statutory Regulatory
UK GAAP  accounts
£m Em Explanation
Profit and loss account
Operating profit 492. 4921 No difference
Profit before tax 303.7 303.7 No difference

Balance sheet
Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets {net book value) 48122 4,757.0 The difference of £55 2 millicn 1s
attributable to the infrastructure
renewals prepayment which s

Current assets excluded from the fixed asset net

Infrastructure renewals prepayment - 55.2 book value and shown separately
on the balance sheet within current
assets In the regulatory accounts
In accordance with Regulatory
Accounting Guidance 3 06

Current assets
Investments and short-term deposits 133.2 512.3 Deposits with a matunty of greater
than one day but less than three
Cash at bank and in hand 522.9 1438 months of £3761 million 15 shown
as cash at bank and in hand within
the statutory accounts but i1s shown
as investment n the regulatory
accounts

Deferred income - grants and contributions

Short-term and long-term other creditors (140.2) - Deferred grants and contributions
within the statutory accounts

are analysed between creditors
amounts falling due within one

year (£81 million) and amounts
falling due after more than one year
(£1321 million) This 1s In contrast

to the regulatory accounts, which
show total deferred grants and
contributions of £140 2 milhon within
provisions for labilities and charges

Provisions for liabihties and charges - 140.2)
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Additional information required by the licence

1 Historical cost accounting policies

The accounting policies are set out In the statutory financial statements, except that, as noted on page 131, under
the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines certain balances are treated differently in the regulatory accounts

BUSINESS REVIEW J

Cumulative infrastructure renewals expenditure, net of depreciation, has been included within current assets in the
regulatory histoncal cost balance sheet in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 3 06 This represents
a departure from the accounting policy adopted in the company's statutory financial statements and Financial
Reporting Standard (FRS) 15, which require this amount to be inciuded within fixed assets

|

The following detailed policy on revenue recognition supplements the turnover accounting policy within the
statutory financial statements

J

1) The revenue recognition policies in the statutory and regulatory accounts are aligned resulting in a consistent
reported turnover in the two sets of accounts

1y Occupied properties are chargeable for water and sewerage and revenue 1s recognised based on services
supplied The identity of the occupier 1s ascertained by either contact initiated from the occupier, completion
of a questionnaire sent out by the company to the premises, a visit by a customer services representative
or searches of publically available property data Unoccupied properties are non-chargeable and therefore
no biliing 1s raised and no turnover recognised The status of a property as unoccupied/void I1s confirmed
by reading of the meter to ascertain changes in consumption or in relation to unmeasured properties
through providing a questionnatre for completion and return by any occupier plus an inspection where
considered necessary

GOVERNANCE

(a) Household and Non-Household charges apply to vacant premises In certain circumstances as set out 1n our
tegal Charges Scheme as approved by Ofwat on an annual basis, and revenue 1s recognised on these properties
consistent with occupied properties Vacant premises which attract charges include
* Premises which are left unoccupied for periods of time but are left with bedding, a desk or other furniture so
that they may be used as a dwelling or as office or commercial premises

» Furnished premises used for multiple occupation with shared facilities

+ Furnished premises used as holiday, student, hostel or other accommaodation

* Furnished premises used for short-term occupation or letting where the occupation or term of the tenancy Is
for less than six months

* Premises in respect of which renovation or buillding work is being undertaken

* Premuses which are not normally regarded as being occupied such as cattle troughs and car parks

* All metered premuses (furnished and unfurnished) where water 1s being consumed

L

(b) Further, the following provisions are applied in respect of disconnections

* Premises listed in Schedule 4A of the Water Industry Act 1991 (eg any dwelling occupied by a person as s or
her only or principal home) cannot be disconnected for non-payment of charges

* If the water supply to any premises i1s disconnected for any reason but we continue to provide sewerage
services to those premises, the customer will be charged the appropriate Sewerage Unmeasured Tanff unless
It can be demonstrated that the premises will be unoccupied for the pericd that the premises are
disconnected, in which case there 1s no charge Revenue is recognised for sewerage services up to the point
we are aware the property becomes unoccupied

« If it 1s found subsequently that the premises were occupied for any period when we were adwised that the
premises would be unoccupied the appropriate Sewerage Unmeasured Tanff will then apply to that penod,
approprate retrospective bills are raised and revenue recognised at that point

= In the event that we suspect that a property 15 occupied but we have no record of the occupier, we take steps
to establish the identity of the occupier in order that biling can commence and revenue be recognised
Occupter s defined to include any persen who owns premises as set out in part 1) (a) above and also any
person who has agreed with us 10 pay water supply and/or sewerage charges in respect of any premises
(eg a Bulk Meter Agreement)

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS
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w) Charges on income relating to debt recovery costs, which are chargeable to customers, are credited to
operating costs and charged to the relevant customer account Turnover 1s unaffected by these debt recovery
costs Histonically we have only sought to recover court and solicitors’ fees where we have made a court
summons From 2009/10 the legal Charges Scheme was amended to allow debt recovery agency fees to be
recharged to customers

) AS sooh as new properties are occupied, habihty for water and sewerage charges commences, and revenue
starts to accrue

2 Link between Directors’ pay and standards of performance

Directors' pay comprises a package of base salary together with an annual performance related bonus and eligibihty
for an award under a long-term incentive plan which I1s also company performance related Directors’ bonuses paid by
the Company are inked to the standards of performance of the Company, and therefore, in accordance with RAG

3 06 the following disclosures deal with these bonuses only

Base satanes for the Managing Director and his direct reports are set and reviewed by the Anghan Water Group
Remuneration Committee These decisions take into account external benchmark comparators

Annual performance bonus

Drrectors’ bonuses relate to both company performance and personal objectives At the start of the performance
year, the Remuneration Committee determines appropriate performance measures for the company, and sets base
and stretch targets for each measure

The Remuneration Committee also sets stretching personal targets relevant to each Director Maximum bonus 1s
only payable for achievement of stretch targets

For the year ended 31 March 2012 the results against the company performance measures resulted in the following
assessment

2012 2012 2012 Impact
Performance measure Achieved % Target % Achievement on bonus
Financial Performance 55.0 $5.0 Stretch target achieved Full payout of this element
Capital Delvery Index 150 15.0 Stretch target achieved  Full payout of this element
Overall Performance 6.4 10.0 Performance was just Partial payout - just above
Assessment (OPA) higher than base but base
below stretch target
SIM 12.0 20.0 Remuneration Partial payout - base level
Committee assessed

base target achieved
(see note' below)

Total - 88.4 100.0

-

The overall 5IM target has two parts - Anghan Water's score in Ofwat’s customer satisfaction survey (the qualitative part), and the
level of custemer contacts which indicate poor services, such as wnitten complaints and telephone calls classed as unwanted (the
quantitative part) On the customer satisfaction survey, Anglian Water came second among water and waste water companies
Companies’ overall 5IM scores, which include the quantitative part, had not been published when the accounts were finalised The
Remuneration Committee has therefore approved a payment at base level reflecting the qualitative ranking and significant
improvement compared to the prior year on our customer contact quantitative score Later in the year, when overall SIM scores are
available for all water and waste water companies, the Committee will consider whether this part of the bonus should be adjusted
either by a further payment or, should the results warrant 1t, a clawback of bonus already paid

The performance assessments for Mr Simpson and Mr Longhurst relating to the regulated business are based on 9194%
rather than the 88 4% set out In the table above as the contracts for Mr Simpson and Mr Longhurst provided for 75% of
their bonus to be paid for achievement of base targets, with up to 100% for stretch performance Other senior executives
receive 60% for achievement of base targets

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Additional information required by the licence continued

2 Link between Directors’ pay and standards of performance continued

Annual performance related bonuses linked to the standards of performance of the company, and paid by the company
to Directors are as follows

‘ BUSINESS REVIEW ‘J

2012 201

E'000 £'000

P Simpson 397.5 3775
S Longhurst 236.2 2509
C Newsome 162.9 1601
J Spencer 821 795

For 2012/13 annual performance bonuses, the company performance will be measured based on Financial
performance, Capital delivery index, basket of Operational Performance Metrics, Service Incentive Mechanism
{SIM) Base and Stretch targets have been set by the Remuneration Committee

Long-term incentives
During the year, the following Directors received benefits under the 20089 long-term incentive scheme Each award

covers a period of three years and 1s inked to a basket of financial and non-financial performance measures set by the
Remuneration Committee at the start of the three-year penod These measures may vary from scheme to scheme

GOVERNANCE

The Remuneration Committee assessed performance against these targets at 90% compared with 57% for the 2008
scheme This resulted in the following payments to Directors

——
2012 201
£'000 £000
1‘2 P Simpson 229.7 1381
Z C Newsome 1327 753
8 J Spencer nzs 706
O
<<
>.
[a g
O 2009 2009
5 Performance moasure Achieved % Target %
E Base Business Plan 20 20
5 Overall Performance Assessment (OPA)Y/SIM 10 15
Opex Relative Efficiency 5 10
! Capital Efficiency 15 15
Return on Investment 40 a0
Detractors - .
Total 90 100

The long-term incentive scheme for Mr Longhurst 1s entirely inked to the performance of Anghan Water Group
Limited and is not paid for by the company
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3 Information in relation to allocations and apportionments between the appointed and any other
business or activity of the appointee or associated company

The non-appointed business relates mainly to legal searches to locate utility infrastructure, domestic emergency
and personal accident insurance cover, recreation services, leisure services and the provision of consultancy
services The North Tees water supply agreement to the Huntsman Petrochemical site, which is not in the Anglian
Water area, has also been treated as non-appointed business

A proportion of the operating costs relating to these activities 1s directly incurred and does not require allocation
Other retevant costs have been allocated according to time spent on these activities, volume of water supplied to
customers, or in proportion to direct costs

4 Allocation to principal service

(a) Operating costs are incurred directly by specific service and have not required allocation Indirect ¢costs are
allocated on either a causal ink basis or according to local managers’ assessments The allocation to principal
service of the charge for infrastructure renewals 1s based on the Asset Management Plan (AMP)

(b) Capital costs, and hence the related depreciation charges, are incurred directly by specific service and have not
required allocation

5 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any
associated company

To the best of the Directors' knowledge, all appropriate transactions with associated companies have been
disclosed in notes (a) to (h) below

(a) On 30 July 2002 £1,6091 million was lent by the company to Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited
Receivables totalling £19 million were outstanding from other group companies at 31 March 2012
(20N £42 2 milhion), of which £nil was owed to Anglian Water Services Financing Pl¢, the company's
financing subsichary (2011 £411 milion)

An amount of £3 4 mition was owed to Anghan Water Services Financing Pl¢, at 31 March 2012 (201 £nil)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Additional information required by the licence continued

S Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any
associated company continued

Sums borrowed including accrued indexation by the appointee from Anghan Water Services Financing Plc at
31 March 2012, were

Principal amount (iv) Repaymant Interest rate
Type of loan Em date %
Fixed rate 000 2014 12375
Fixed rate 2000 2023 6 875
Fixed rate 2000 2029 6625
Fixed rate 2460 2030 6293
Fixed rate (u) 2107 2012/2037 7882
Fixed rate 2500 2022 5837
Fixed rate () 750 2017/2040 5500
Fixed rate 3940 2016 14
Fixed rate 250 2034 6875
Fixed rate 636 2021 5180
Fixed rate (m) 1000 2014/2024 6750
Index-linked (1) 2142 2020 4125
Index-linked (1) 2723 2032 2070
index-nked (1) 821 2032 3070 '
Index-linked (1) 1021 2024 3666
Index-linked (1) 5065 2035 2400
Index-linked (1) 610 2046 1700
index-linked (1) 606 2046 1700
Index-linked (1) 489 2056 17146
Index-linked (1) 612 2056 16777
Index-linked (1) 733 2049 17903
Index-inked (1) 1214 2057 13784
Index-flinked (1) 607 2056 13825
Index-linked (1) 855 2062 1449
Index-linked (1) LY 2055 1520
Index-linked (1) 563 2019 1626
Index-=linked (1) 554 2020 1300
Index-linked (1) 1417 2045 2262
Index-hinked (1) 754 2027 0530
Index-linked (1) 754 2027 0790
Floating rate 4522 2013 LIBOR plus 0 9775 *
Floating rate 2500 2015 LIBOR plus O 375
Floating rate () 750 2017/2040 LIBOR plus O 682
Floating rate 1000 2057 LIBOR plus O 340
Floating rate (u) 659 2018/2037 LIBOR plus O 530
Floating rate Mo 2043 LIBOR plus O 850
Floating rate 251 2038 LIBOR plus 1130
Floating rate 891 2021 LiBOR plus © 8875
Floating rate 1971 2021 LIBOR plus 2 64056
Sub total carried over to next page 54508

Anglian Water
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Principal amount (iv) Repayment Interest rate
Type of loan Em date *%
Sub total brought forward 54508
Index-linked swaps (1) 785 2013 -
index-linked swaps (1) 16 0 2024 -
Index-linked swaps (11) 185 2030 -
Index-linked swaps (1) 198 2057 -
Index-linked swaps {n) 94 2059 -
Index-inked swaps (1) 70 2043 -
Swaption - 2046 -
Swaption - 2046 -
5,600.0

LIBCR is the London Inter Bank Offer Rate

() The value of the capital and interest elements of the index-linked debt I1s inked toc movements in the Retail Price
Index (RPI)

(1) The values of the notional capital on these index-linked swaps are inked to movements in RPl The increase in
the notional capitat value i1s payable at the final maturity date of the swaps

(n) Legal matunity of these instruments i1s the second of the years quoted Coupon ‘step up'1s in the first of the
years quoted

(v) All loans are presented on a post-hedge basis to reflect the effect of the related swaps

(b) Dividends payable

A dividend of £478 6 million 1s payable for the year (2011 £443 7 miliion) Of this dividend, £193 6 milhon

(2011 £1931 milkon) was paid/committed to Anglan Water Services Holdings Limited, a parent undertaking,

in order for it to service the interest payable to the company on the inter-company loan of £1,6091 milhon (see
note 5(a) on page 139) The overall amount of the company's normal dividends will not exceed the free cash flow
(defined as operating cash flow less interest and capital maintenance payments} generated by AWS and in practice
will be imited to a net debt to regulatory capital value (RCV) gearning ratio of 83% The dividends declared or paid
will not impair the ability of the company to finance the Appointed Business, and the dividend policy 1s compliant
with Condition F of the Licence

() Guarantees/securities

The company, as part of the Anghan Water Services Finan¢mg group, guarantees unconditionally and irrevocably
all the borrowings of Anghan Water Services Financing Plc, its wholly owned subsidhary, which at 31 March 2012
amounted to £5,729 8 million (2011 £5,364 9 million) The borrowings of Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited
and Anghan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited are also guaranteed unconditionally and irrevocably by the
company Excluding the £1,6091 million loan made by the company to Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited,
Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited and Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited had no
outstanding indebtedness at 31 March 2012 (2011 £nitl)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Additional information required by the licence continued

5 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any
associated company continued

(d) Supply of services

Recharges by the appointee to associated companies

Value
Nature of transaction Company Terms of supply £€m
Legal AWG Group Limited Actual costs 02
Human resources and payroll charges AWG Group Limited Actual costs 07
Corporate responsibility and communications AWG Group Limited Actual costs 07
Treasury charges AWG Group Limited Actual costs 05
Laboratory charges AWG Group Limited Actual costs 01
IT charges AWG Group Limited Actual costs 01
Accommodation charges AWG Group Limited Actual costs 02
Land rental Alpheus Environmental Ltd Actual costs o1
Trade effluent charges Alpheus Environmental Ltd Actual costs 02
Sewerage and tankering and transport services AWG Group Limited and
Alpheus Environmental Ltd Actual costs 03
Services supplied to the appointee by associated companies excluding amounts paid for taxation group relief
Turnover of
associsted
company Vaiue
Nature of transaction Company £m Terms of supply Em
Directors’ costs AWG Group Limited - Time apportionment 05
Internal audit services AWG Group Limited - Negotiated 04
Insurance admnistration AWG Group Limited - Negotiated 06
Taxaticn services AWG Group Limited - Negotiated 02
External audit services AWG Group Limited - Negotiated oz
Pension admin, advice and audit AWG Group Limited - Pass through o1
Building rental AWG Group Limited - Pass through 01
10-year office lease Ambury Developments 08 Other market testing o2
Rental of office accommedation Ambury Developments 08 Other market testing 02
Bulk purchase of water Ardleigh Reservoir
Committee 12 Actual costs 08
33

Anglian Water
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(e) Chantable and political donations
During the year, Anghan Water donated £40,000 (2011 £40,000) to WaterAud, its recognised charity

No political donations were made (2011 £nil)
The company made available £0 57 million (2011 £0 75 milhon) to the Anghan Water Assistance Fund, which paid a
total of £06 mithon (201 £0 6 million) directly to customers who qualified for assistance, and that amount 1s

included as an operating cost in these financial statements

(fY Omissions of nghts
No material ormissions took place during the year

{g) Waivers
There were no material warvers duning the year

(h) Ring fencing
The company has been complhant with Condition K31 of the Licence throughout the year

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Current cost profit and loss account for the
appointed business

for the year ended 31 March

2012 200
Appointed Appointed
Notes Em £m
2 Turnover 1,123.3 10793
4 Current cost operating costs (8074) (7581
3 Operating iIncome 0.2 08
Exceptional operating profit a3 -
357.4 3220
3.9 wWorking capital adjustment (2.8) 27
Current cost operating profit 354.6 3193
Net interest payable (88.4) (1528
9 Financing adjustment 14.1 21
Current cost profit before taxation 180.3 1876
Current tax (29.4) azn
Deferred tax 12.9) ash
Current cost profit attributable to shareholder 138.0 160 4
Dividends (478.6) (4437
8 Current cost transfer from reserves (340.6) (2833

The notes on pages 147 to 156 form part of these current cost financial statements
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Current cost balance sheet for the appointed business

as at 31 March

Notes

2012 20m
£m £m

Fixed assets
5 Tangible assets
Third-party contributions since 3t March 1920

38,858.8 29,6895
(9,062.2) (9154)

29,796.6 28,7741

6 Working capital
Cash at bank and in hand
Investments and short-term deposits
Infrastructure renewals prepayment

40 784
1420 1080
5123 406 2

55.2 473

Net operating assets

30,546.2 29,4150

Non-operating assets and liabilities
7 Short-term borrowings

Non-trade debtors

Non-trade creditors due within one year

lnvestments - loan to group company

Corporation tax payable

(213.9) (141 4)
6.5 451

Qo6.7y (1069)
1,609, 1,6091

(76.4) 607

Totat non-operating assets and liabilities

1,218.6 13452

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
7 Loans and other borrowings
Other creditors

(5,426.4) (50470}
40) (0 9)

Total creditors falling due after more than one year

(5,430.4) (5.0579>

Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax

Defined benefit pensicn scheme labilities
Qther provisions

(32.0) G331
471 (686>
(31.0) (267)

Total provisions

Mmo.y) Q278)

Net assets

26,224.3 255745

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Profit and loss account
9 Current cost reserve

10.0 100
(194.9) 1712
26,409.2 253933

L SINNOIOV AHOLNIVLS ’ \ AINVYNYIAOD l \ M3IIATH SSINISNY ,

Total capital and reserves

26,2243 255745

The notes on pages 147 to 156 form part of these current cost financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 1 June 2012 and signed on its behalf by

Peter Simpson Scott Longhurst
Diector Director

leie § %&7 .
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Current cost cash flow statement
2
g for the year ended 31 March
1]
o
w 2012 20m
W
w Non- Non-
Z Appointed appointed Total Appointed appointed Total
g Notes £m £m Em £m £m £€m
@ i0(a) Net cash inflow from operating activities 654.7 6.8 6615 6260 61 6321
Returns on investment and servicing
of finance
Interest received 197.3 - 197.3 1970 - 1970
Interest paid (229.2) - €229.2) (2220) - (222 0)
Interest element of finance lease
w rental payments (3.1) - (3.1 (33 - (33
(2’ Net cash outflow from returns on
e investments and servicing of finance (35.00 - (350) (283) - (283)
z
&
8 Taxation
D] Corporation tax paid - (1.8) 1.8) (05 an (22}
Payments to other Anglhan Water Group
Limited group undertakings {16.2) - (16.2) 251 - (257
Taxation {16.2) (1.8) 18.0) (25 6) a7 (273
Capital expenditure and financial
investment
i Gross cost of purchase of tangible
% fixed assets (274 7) - 274.7y (2037) - {203 7)
8 Receipts of grants and contributions 22.7 - 22.7 240 - 240
&) Infrastructure renewals expenditure (83.9) - (83.9) (73 6) - (73 6)
> Disposal of fixed assets 14 - 14 23 - 23
@
'9 Net cash outflow from investing activities (334.5) - (334.5) (2510) - (2510)
s
P Equity dividends paid (478)  (S.0) (4831) (4437)  (44) (448D
wn
Management of liquid resources
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
management of liguid resources (62.0) - (62.0) 222 - 222
"
s Net cash outflow before financing @n.y - @ND (1004 - (1004)
jus'
9
v Financing
i Increase In loans 5098 - 509.8 1300 - 1300
5 Repayment of amounts borrowed (202 9) - (202.9) (BO5) - (8O5)
g Capital element of finance lease rentals (2.8) - (2.8) (2 5) - (25
8 Net cash inflow from financing 3041 - 3041 470 - 470
w
(]
increase/(decrease) in cash 330 - 33.0 (534) - (53 4)

The notes on page 156 form part of this cash flow statement
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Notes to the current cost financial statements

1 Current cost accounting policies

(a) General

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by
Ofwat for modified real terms financial statements suitable for regulation in the water industry

They measure profitability on the basis of real financial capital maintenance, in the context of assets which are
valued at their current cost value to the business

The regulatory accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the company There are differences
between the United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and the basis of preparation of
information provided in the regulatory accounts because the Reguiatory Accounting Guidelines specify alternative
treatment or disclosure in certain respects Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines do not specifically
address an accounting issue, then they require UK GAAP to be followed

The accounting policies used are the same as those adopted in the statutory financial statements, except as set
out below

() Turnover
Turnover includes all amounts billed to customers in respect of those items detailed in the accounting policy on
page 136 as required by RD 05/08

() Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets have been valued In accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guideline 104 (Guideline for
accounting for current costs and regulatory capital values) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis

Depreciation 1s charged over the estimated remaining economic ife of the asset infrastructure assets are not
depreciated

Additions during the year are taken at theirr histonc cost values Disposals are stated at the value of the
replacement assets

(1) Land and buildings

Non-specialised operational properties are valued on the basis of open market value for existing use as part of the
periodic Asset Management Plan (AMP) reviews and are expressed in real terms by indexation using the Retail Price
Index (RPI) thereafter

Specialised operational properties acquired since 31 March 1990 are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement
cost and recoverable amount, restated annually between periodic AMP reviews by adjusting for infiation or
deflation as measured by changes in the RPI The unamortised portion of third-party contnibutions recerved is
deducted in arriving at net operating assets (as described below)

(1) Infrastructure assets
Mains, sewers, iImpounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalis are
valued at replacement cost, on an MEA basis, determined principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP

A process of continuing refinement of asset records 1s expected to produce adjustments to existing values when
periodic reviews of the AMP take place In the intervening years, values are restated to take account of changes in
the general leve! of Inflation or deflation, as measured by changes in the RPI over the year

(1) Other fixed assets
All other fixed assets are valued periodically at depreciated replacement costs Between periodic AMP reviews,
values are restated for inflation or deflation as measured by changes in the RPI

(v) Surpius land
Surplus land 1s valued at recoverable amount, taking into account that part of any proceeds to be passed on to
customers under Condition B of the Licence

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the current cost financial statements continued

1 Current cost accounting policies continued

(d) Modern equivalent asset (MEA) valuation

A review of the MEA valuation and asset stock 1s undertaken as part of each five-year periodic review The revised
values arising from this review, once deemed effective by Ofwat, provide the basis for calculating the MEA in the
current cost financial statements

{e) Grants and other third-party contributions

Grants, infrastructure charges and other third-party contributions receved since 31 March 1990 are carried forward
as deferred income to the extent that any balance has not been credited to revenue The balance carried forward 1s
after restatement for the change in the RPI for the year

(f) Real financial capital maintenance adjustments
These adjustments are made to histoncal cost profit in order to arrive at profit after the maintenance of financial
capital in real terms

Depreciation adjustment - this 1s the difference between depreciation based on the current cost value of assets 1n
these financial statements and depreciation charged in arriving at hustoncal cost profit

Disposal of fixed assets adjustment - the difference between the values of realised assets in these current cost
financial statements and in the historical cost financial statements

The depreciation adjustment s incorporated within operating costs In the profit and loss account The disposal of
fixed assets adjustment 1s incorporated within operating income In the profit and loss account

Working capital adjustment - this is calculated by applying the changes in the RP! over the year to the opening
working capital as set out in note 6

Financing adjustment - this 1s calculated by applying the changes in the RP! over the year to the opening balance
of net finance, which comprises all monetary assets and habilities in the balance sheet apart from those included in
working capital, deferred tax, dividends payable and index-linked debt

Anglian Water
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2 Turnover for the appointed business

REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

2012 20m
Water Sewerage Appointed Water Sewerage Appointed
service sorvice total service service total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Measured 289.4 aNn.s 7012 2650 3893 6543
Unmeasured 127.3 199.3 326.6 1292 2072 3364
Trade effluent - 8.4 84 - 77 77
Large user and special agreement 339 3.6 65.5 18 288 606
Non-potable large user and special agreement 11.9 - ne na - 114
Rechargeable works 0S5 - 05 04 - 04
Bulk supples/inter-company payments 6.7 1.6 8.3 61 17 78
Third-party services (including non-potable water) 1841 1.6 20.7 179 17 196
Other sources 0.8 . 0.9 08 (on o7
Total turnover 470.6 652.7 11233 4447 6346 10793

3 Operating income and working capital adjustment for the appointed business

2012 20Mn
Water Sewerage Appointed Water Sewerage Appointed
service service total service service total
Em £m £m £m £m £m
Current cost profit/{loss) on disposal of
fixed assets 0.2 - 0.2 15 0N 08
Working capital adjustment 1.4) (1.4) (2.8) a4 3) 27

Anglian Water

Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the current cost financial statements continued

4 Analysis of operating costs and fixed asset net book values by service

2012 Service analysis
Water service Sewerage service
Sewage
Sludge treatment
Rasources Water treatment and Sowerage
and service Sewage and disposal sarvice
treatmont Distribution  subtotal Seworage trostment  disposal  subtotal  subtotal
£m Em £m £m £m Em Em £m

Direct costs:
Employment costs 8.2 75 15.7 10.9 20.3 13.0 333 44.2
Power 13.7 8.5 23.2 k%] 159.0 0.3 19.3 231
Hired and contracted services 4.0 13.4 17.4 9.4 120 12.8 24.8 342
Matenials and consumables 4.9 2.3 7.2 31 8.1 14.8 239 27.0
Services charges 12.8 - 12.8 11 56 - 86 67
Bulk supply imports 1.2 - 1.2 - - - - .
Other direct costs 0.2 0.7 0.8 1.2 05 0.3 0.8 20
Total direct costs 45.0 134 78.4 29.5 66.5 4.2 107.7 137.2
General and support
expenditure n.e 104 22.3 6.9 153 9.5 248 nz
Total functional expenditure 56.9 438 100.7 36.4 8l.e 50.7 132.5 1689
Business activities:
Customer services 15.4 194
Scientific services 6.8 40
Other business activities 2.1 37
Total business activities 24.3 271
Rates i8S 23.6
Doubtful debts 14.9 19.0
Exceptional items - -
Total less third-party services 178.4 2386
Third-party services 93 0.5
Total operating costs 1877 2391
Capital costs:
Infrastructure renewals
charge 34 40.8 44.2 nz - - - 7
Depreciation' (allocated) 615 309 924 426 1285 229 1514 194.0
Amortisation of deferred
grants [EA)) (5.0)
Business activities
depreciation' (non-allocated) 8.4 12.7
Capital maintenance
excluding third-party services 141.9 2334
Third-party services - capital
maintenance 4.1 1.2
Total capital maintenance 146 O 234.6
Total operating costs? 3337 4737
Current cost accounting
{modern equivalent asset values)
Service activities 1,280 74084 8,688.5 28,270.5 1,674.5 225.3 1,899.8 30,1703
Business activities (23.9) (35.8)
Service totals 8,664.6 30,3145
Service assets for third parties (52.6) (69)
Total 8,6120 30,1276

' On a current cost basis

2 |ncluded within total operating costs are reactive and planned maintenance expenditure on infrastructure assets of £19 8 mdlion
This 15 sphit £13 2 milhon water distnbution and £6 6 millon sewerage

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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201 Service analysis

Water service

Sewerage service

Sewage
Sludge  treatment
Resources Water treatment and  Sewerage
and service Sewage and disposal service
treatment Distnbution subtotal Sewerage treatment cisposal subtotal subtotal
Em Em m £m m £m £m £m

Direct costs:
Employment costs 80 82 162 98 198 124 322 420
Power 123 94 227 48 192 04 196 24 4
Hired and contracted services 36 103 1329 63 102 131 233 296
Materials and consumables 43 21 64 25 81 ns 199 224
Services charges ns8 - ne n 55 - 55 66
Bulk supply imports 12 - 12 - - - - .
Other direct costs 03 05 08 03 02 02 04 07
Total direct costs 425 305 730 248 630 379 1009 1257
General and support
expenditure 15 100 215 59 140 92 232 291
Total functional expenditure 540 405 945 307 770 471 1241 1548
Business activities:
Customer services 153 196
Scientific services 65 37
Other business activities 21 37
Total business activities 239 270
Rates 34 196
Doubtful debts 149 189
Exceptional items - -
Total less third-party services 647 2203
Third-party services 67 06
Total operating costs 174 2209
Capital costs:
Infrastructure renewals
charge 03 341 344 375 - - - 375
Depreciation' (allocated) 589 288 877 45 1254 226 1480 1895
Amortisation of deferred
grants e4:) 49
Business activities
depreciation’ (non-allocated) 78 n7
Capital maintenance
excluding third-party services 1270 2338
Third-party services - capital
maintenance 39 1"
Total capital mamtenance 1309 2349
Total operating costs? 2023 4558
Current cost accounting
{modern equivaient asset values)
Service activities 1,226 2 71265 B,3527 19,4727 16558 2083 18641 21,3368
Business activities 199 (298)
Service totals B8,3328 21,3070
Service assets for third parties sa7n (78)
Total 8,2781 21,2092

' On a current cost basis

2 Included within total operating costs are reactive and planned matntenance expenditure on infrastructure assets of £18 5 miliron
This 1s spht £13 5 million water distribution and £5 O million sewerage

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012

JONVYNYIA0O ' ‘ M3IIATYH SSINISNG '

|

SINNODIOVY AHOLNLIVIS

L

pel
m
9]
C
r
b
-
®
x
<
>
0}
0
O
c
z
—
%]

151




REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the current cost financial statements continued
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5 Fixed assets Non-
Specialised speciatised infra- Other
operational operational  structure tangible
assets properties agsets assets Total
£m Em £m £m £€m

(a) Fixed assets by type - water service
Gross replacement cost

At 1 Apnl 20M 2,8355 185 71204 2108 101852
RPI adjustment 101 07 2542 77 3637
Disposals oo - - (06} (96)
Additions 1012 02 241 170 1425
At 31 March 2012 3,028.8 19.4 7,398.7 234.9 10,6818
Depreciation

At Apni 20M (1,6627 19)] - (165 4) (1,832
RP! adjustment 593 (02) - (58) (65 3)
Disposals 90 - - 05 95
Charge for the year (86 5) (0 4) - (181) (050)
At 31 March 2012 (1,798.9) (5 6) - {188.8) (1,993 %)
Net book value at 31 March 2012 1,229.9 13.8 7,398.7 46.1 8,688.5
Net book value at 31 March 2011 1173 4 125 71204 454 B,3527
(b) Fixed assets by type - sewerage service

Gross replacement cost

At 1 April 201 6,4498 206 188938 326 4 256906
RPI adjustment 2309 o €74 5 e 917
Disposals (14) n - (08) 3
Transfer of private sewers and drains’ - - 81000 - 800
Additions 128 3 - 272 254 1809
At 31 March 2012 6,807.6 20.6 27.695.5 362.6 34,8863
Depreciation

At 1 Aprii 201 (4,076) (53 - (240 9) (4,353 8)
RPI adjustment (146 6) on - 88 (1555)
Disposals 03 - - 08 n
Charge for the year (180 5) (02 - (271  (2078)
At 31 March 2012 (4,434.4) ({5.6) - {276.0) (4,716.0)
Net book value at 31 March 2012 2,373.2 15.0 27,6955 86.6 30,170.3
Net book value at 31 March 2011 23422 152 18,8938 855 213368
(c) Fixed assets by type - total

Gross replacement cost

At 1 Apnl 201 92853 391 26,0142 5372 358758
RPI adjustment 3320 o8 9287 193 1,2808
Disposals (10 4) (on - (14> map
Transfer of private sewers and drains’ - - 81000 - 81000
Additions 2295 02 53 424 3234
At 31 March 2012 9,836.4 40.0 35,0942 5975 45,5681
Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 201 (5,7697) (10 3) - (4063) (6,863)
RP! adjustment {205 9) (03 - (146 (2208)
Disposals 93 - - 13 106
Charge for the year (2670) (086 - (45 2) (312 8)
At 31 March 2012 (6,233.3) Mm.2) - (464.8) (6,709.3)
Net book value at 31 March 2012 3,603.1 28.8 35,094.2 132.7 X8,858.8
Net book value at 31 March 201 35156 288 26,0142 1308 29,6895

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

In accordance with RAG 104 110 9 the estimated Modern Equivalent Asset Value '"MEAV® of the private sewers transferred to Anglian

Woater on 1 October 2011 has been included i the current cost accounts Using the best availlable data on the length of the private sewer
network and the current replacement cost per metre, MEAV has been estimated at £8,100 milion This has been accounted for as an
increase in the total gross MEAY of fixed assets, with an equal increase in ‘third party contributions’ and therefore no change in current
cost net assets The MEAV of the private sewers Is expected to be reassessed at the time of the next regulatory price review

(d) in the preparation of its statutory financial statements, the company has followed common industry practice
and adopted the infrastructure renewals accounting basis as required by FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets However,
for the purposes of the regulatory financial statements, Ofwat has requested that FRS 1515 not applied for
infrastructure renewals accounting, thereby providing a basis consistent with prior years A reconciliation to the

tangible fixed assets shown in the statutory financial statements Is set out below

Tangible fixad assets

£m
Cost
At 31 March 2012 per regulatory financial statements 45,5681
Adjustment to opening balance at 31 March (37,0871
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in the year 839
At 31 March 2012 per statutory financial statements? 8,564.9
Grants and contributions
At 31 March 2012 per regulatory financial statements -
Adjustment to opening balance at 31 March (269 2)
At 31 March 2012 per statutory financial statements (269.2)
Depreciation
At 31 March 2012 per regulatory financial statements (6,709 3)
Adjustment to opening balance at 31 March 3307
Depreciation charge for infrastructure renewals expenditure (759
At 31 March 2012 per statutory financial statements? (3,483.5)
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 per regulatory financial statements 388588
Adjustment to opening balance at 31 March (34,054 6)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in the year 839
Depreciation charge for infrastructure renewals expenditure (759)
At 31 March 2012 per statutory financial statements? 4,812.2
Infrastructure renewals prepayment
At 31 March 2012 per regulatory financial statements 552
Less infrastructure renewals prepayment (552)

At 31 March 2012 per statutory financial statements

2 The statutory financial statements include non-appointed fixed assets with net book value at 31 March 2012 of £2 6 million

(200 £13 million)

Anglian Water

Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the current cost financial statements continued

6 Working capital
2012 201
Em £m
Stocks 9.2 96
Trade debtors - measured household 73.8 763
Trade debtors - unmeasured household 63.4 611
Trade debtors - measured non-household 19.0 139
Trade debtors - unmeasured non-household 0.9 05
Other trade debtors 19.4 159
Measured income accrual 173 144 2
Prepayments and other debtors 16.3 153
Trade creditors (82.7) (561D
Deferred income - customer advance recerpts (121.0) ms 9
Short-term capital creditors (87.6) (555)
Accruals and other creditors (43.7) (309
Total working capital 40. 784
7 Net debt analysis
Interest rate risk profile at 31 March 2012 Total ‘IlI‘:I::I Floa:‘:: Fl::t:
£m £m £m Em
Loans and other borrowings
Less than one year 213.9) - - (213 9)
Between one and two years (6355) (336.5) (195.2) (103.8)
Between two and five years (661.1) (249.8) - {41.3)

Between five and 20 years
In more than 20 vears

(1,843.4) (461.5) (195.5) (1,186.4)

(2,286.4) (2,102.2) (850)

(99.2)

Total borrowings

(5,640.3) (3,150.0) (475.7) (2,014.6)

Cash 142.0
Short-term deposits 512.3
Net debt (4,986.0)

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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Interest rate risk profile at 31 March 201 index-  Floating Fixed
Total linked rate rate
£m £m £m £m
Loans and other borrowings
Less than one year 4 4) - - (141 4)
Between one and two years (33 - - (33
Between two and five years (8824) (5704) (951 {16 9)
Between five and 20 years (15912) (4129) - (3178 3)

In more than 20 years

(25701 (1,8675) (85 0) (617 6)

Total borrowings

(51884) (2,8508) (2801) (2,0575)

Cash 1090
Short-term deposits 406 2
Net debt (46732)
8 Current cost profit and loss account
2012 201
£m Em
At beginning of the year 17.2 (4579)
Transfer from profit and loss account for the year (340.6) (2833)
169.4) (7412)
Actuanal (loss)/gain recognised on the pension schemes (34.6) 862
Current tax relating to the actuarial loss on the pension schemes 6.3 -
Movement on deferred tax relating to the actuanal loss/(gain) on the pension schemes 2.7 (247)
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax on pension schemes 0.1 03
Capital reduction - 8500

At end of year

(194.9) 1712

9 Current cost reserve

2012 200
Em £m

At beginning of the year

RP! adjustments

~ Fixed assets

- Working capital

- Financing

- Grants and third-party contnbutions

25,393.3 239460

1,059.9 .52

28 27
(4 @)
32.7) (455}

At end of year

26,409.2 253933

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Notes to the current cost financial statements continued

10(a) Reconciliation of current cost operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities for the

appointed business

2012 201

£m £m

Current cost operating profit 354.6 3193
Working capital adjustment 28 27

Movement in working capital

Current cost depreciation

14.9) (344)
3047 2939

Current cost profit on sale of fixed assets {0.2) 08
Infrastructure renewals charge 75.9 720
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions (26 7) (26 5)
Exceptional operating profit (non-cash item) . (41.3) -
Net movement in provisions {0.2) (02
Net cash inflow from operating activities 654.7 6260

10(b) Analysis of net debt

1 April Cash Non-cash 31 March

20n flows movements 2012

Em Em Em Em

Cash 109.0 33.0 - 142.0

Deposits and investments 406.2 1061 - 5123
Finance leases due within one year (2.9) 28 3.3 (3 4)
Finance leases due after one year (62.1) - 6.2 (55 9)
Cther debt due within one year (138.5) 138.5 (210.5) (210.5)
Other debt due after one year (4,984.9) (442.3) 56.7 (5,370.5)
(4,673.2) (161.9) (150 9) (4,986.0)

Non-cash movements comprise iIndexation of index-linked 10an stock, indexation of Retail Price Index (RPI} swaps,
transfers between categories of debt, amortisation of discounts and expenses relating to debt 1ssue costs and

amortisation of ‘mark to market' adjustments

Angllan Water
Annual report and accounts 2012




Supplementary regulatory information

REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

1 Regulatory capital value (RCV)

B

M3IATY SSINISNY

2012

Em

RCV at 31 March 2011 as published in RD06/09 5,868.6

Indexation 209.5

RCV at 31 March 2011 in March 2012 prices 6,078.1

Capital expenditure {excluding IRE) 481.3

Infrastructure renewals expenditure (iRE) 83.8
Infrastructure renewals charge {759.6)
Grants and contributions (35.4)
Depreciation (256.4)
Outperformance of regulatory assumptions (five years in arrears) 5.7

Closing RCV 6,266.1

Average RCV 6,082.4

RCV figures are extracted from those published by Ofwat on 7 May 2010 in their RD04/10 letter at 2009/10 prices
These have been Indexed upwards to 2011/12 prices using an RPI factor of 240 8/220 7 (RP1 at 31 March 2012/RPI at
31 March 2010) to give the current year figures 1n the table excluding average RCV The average RCV 15 derived by
indexing the average RCV pubiished in RDO4/10 by the RPI factor of 2373/215 8 (average RPI for the year ended

31 March 2012/average RPI for the year ended 31 March 2010) The indices that have been used to inflate the RCVs

to 2011/12 prices have been extracted from those published by Ofwat on its website

The table shows the RCV used in setting the price hmits for 2011/12 The differences between the assumptions for
the component parts such as capital expenditure shown above and the actual amounts do not affect the price
limits 1in the current review period Capital efficiencies achieved in the current price-setting period will be taken into
account in the caiculation of the RCV used to set prices for the next review period Other adjustments to the RCYV
used for the next review period will be agreed with Ofwat through the process of logging up/logging down of
caplital expenditure

Anglian Water
Annual report and accounts 20712
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Independent auditors’ report

Independent auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation Authority (the Authority, referred to as
the ‘WSRA’) and the Directors of Anglian Water Services Limited

We have audited the regulatory accounts of Anghan Water Services Limited (‘the Company') for the vear ended
31 March 2012 on pages 131 to 156 (the ‘Regulatory Accounts’) which comprise

BUSINESS REVIEW '

« the regulatory historical cost accounting statements, comprising the regulatory historical cost profit and loss
account, the regulatory historical cost statement of total recognised gains and losses for the appointed business,
the regulatory historical cost balance sheet and the hustorical cost reconcihation between the statutory financial
statements and the Regulatory Accounts, and

= the regulatory current cost accounting statements comprising the current cost profit and loss account for the
appointed business, the current cost balance sheet for the appointed business, the current cost cash fiow
statement and the related notes

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies
set out In the Additional iInformation required by the Licence and the notes to the current cost financial statements

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the Company and the WSRA in order to meet the
requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the Environment
to the Company as a water and sewage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 ('Condition F') Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company and the WSRA those matters that we have agreed to
state to them in our report, in order (&) to assist the Company to meet 1ts obligation under Condition F to procure
such a report and (b) to faciitate the carrying out by the W5RA of its regulatory functions, and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the WRSA, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

GOVERNANCE I

-

Respective responsibihties of the WSRA, the Directors and Auditors

As explarned more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 130, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts and for their fair presentation in accordance with the basis
of preparation and accounting policies Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory
Accounts in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland), except as stated in the ‘Scope of
the audit of the Regulatory Accounts’ below, and having regard to the guidance contained in Audit 05/03 ‘Reperting
to Regulators of Regulated Entities’ 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales Those
standards reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the Regulatory Accounts In addition,
we read all the financial and nen-financial information in the Regulatory Accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory Accounts If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

STATUTORY ACCOUNTS

L

We have not assessed whether the accounting polictes are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company
where these are laid down by Condition £ Where Condrtion F does not give specific gudance on the accounting
policies to be followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies adopted in respect of
the transactions and balances required to be included tn the Regulatory Accounts are consistent with those used in
the preparation of the statutory financial statements of the company Furthermore, as the nature, form and content
of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy of the presentation
of the information, which would have been required If we were to express an audit option under International
Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland)
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Opinion on Regulatory Accounts
In our opinion the Regulatory Accounts

« farrly present in accordance with Condition F, the Regutatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by the WSRA and the
accounting policies set out on page 147 to 148, the state of the Company's affairs at 31 March 2012 on an historical
cost and current cost basis, and 1ts histoncal cost and current cost profit and its current cost cash flow for the
year then ended, and

- have been properly prepared in accordance with Condition F, the Reguilatory Accounting Guidelines and the
accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Without modifying cur opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the accounting policies set out in the
statement of accounting policies and, In the case of the regulatory historical cost accounting statements, under the
historical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the Company and have not been
prepared under the basis of United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP") Financial
information other than that prepared on the basis of UK GAAP does not necessarily represent a true and fair view
of the financial performance or financial position of a company as shown in statutory financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 Furthermore, the regulatory histornical cost accounting statements on
pages 132 and 134 respectively have been drawn up in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidehne 306 1n
that infrastructure renewals accounting as applied in previous years should continue to be applied and accordingly,
that the relevant sections of Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be disappited The effect of thus departure
from Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and a reconctiation of the balance sheet drawn up on this basis to
the balance sheet drawn up under the Companies Act 2006 1s given on page 135

Opmion on other matters prescribed by Condition F
Under the terms of our contract we have assumed responsibiity to provide those additional cpinions required by
Condition F in relation to the accounting records In our opinion

« proper accounting records have been kept by the appointee as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F, and
« the Regulatory Accounts are in agreement with the accounting recerds and returns retained for the purpese of
preparing the Regulatory Accounts

Other matters

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the WSRA It 1s not appropriate for us to
assess whether the nature of the information being reported upon 1s suitable or appropnate for the WSRA's
purposes Accordingly we make no such assessment

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts is separate from our opinion on the statutory financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 on which we reported on 1 June 2012, which are prepared for a different
purpose Our audit report In refation to the statutory financial statements of the Company (our ‘Statutory audit’)
was made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our Statutory audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in a statutory audit report and for no other purpose In these
circumstances, to the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibihty for any other
purpose or to any gther person to whom our Statutory audit report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save

here wi reed by owr consent In writing
LA

ricewaterhouseCoopprs LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Birmingham
1June 2012

1 The mamtenance and integrity of the Company’s web site 1s the responsibility of the Directors and the maintenance and integrity of
the Regulator's web site is the responsibility of the Regulator, the work carned out by the auditors does not involve consideration
of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the Regulatory
Accounts since they were initially presented on the web sites

2 Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements

and Regulatory Accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
Anglian Water

Annual report and accounts 2012
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REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

Glossary of regulatory terms

AMP adjustment - The revision in the real value of fixed assets arnising periodically from improved information, notably in
the five-year Asset Management Plan process

Appointed business - The appointed business compnises the regulated activities of the company which are activities
necessary in order for a company to fulfil the function and duties of a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water
Industry Act 1991

Arm’s-length trading - Arm’s-length trading 1s where the company treats the associate companies on the same basis as
external third parties

Assot Management Plan (AMP) - A plan agreed with Ofwat on a five-yearly basis for the management of water and
wastewater assets The plan runs for a five-year penod AMPA4 covered the investment period April 2005 to March 2010
AMPS covers April 2010 to March 2015

Associate company - Condition A of the Licence defines an associate company to be any group or related company
Condition F of the Licence requires all transactions between the company and its associated companies to be disclosed
subject to specified matenahty considerations

Capital Incentive Scheme (CI5) - Mechanism introduced by Ofwat to encourage companies to submit challenging and
accurate estimation of their capital investment requirements at Price Reviews

Final Determination - This 1s the conclusion of discussions on the scale and content of the Asset Management Pian for the
forthcoming five-year period It 15 accomparued by a determination of the allowable 'K’ factor for the forthcoming five-year
pernicd

Financing adjustment - The mpact of general inflation (RP!) on the real value of net finance for the business

‘K’ factor - The annual Increase, set by Ofwat, in charges that compan:es in the water industry can make The amount by
which a company can increase (or must decrease) its charges is controlled by the price mit formula RPI + or - 'K' + ') RPI
15 expressed as the percentage increase in the Retail Price Index in the year to November before the charging year 'K’ 15 a
number determined by Ofwat for each company, usually at a Price Review, for each year to reflect what it needs above or
below inflatron 1n order to finance the provision of services to customers, and ‘I 1s the amount of 'K’ not takenup by a
company In previous years

Licence - The Instrument of Appointment dated August 1989 under Sections 11 and 14 of the Water Act 1989 (as in effect
on 1 August 1989} under which the Secretary of State for the Environment appointed Anghan Water Services Limited as a
water and sewerage undertaker under the Act for the areas descnbed in the Instrument of Appointment, as modified or
amended from time to time

Modern Equivalent Asset {(MEA) - The cost of an asset of equivalent productive capability to satisfy the remaining service
potential of the asset being valued If the asset would be worth replacing, or the recoverable amount if it would not The
gross MEA value 1s what it would cost to replace an old asset with a technically up-to-date new asset with the same service
capability allowing for any difference both in the quality of output and in operating costs The net MEA value is the
depreciated value taking Into account the remaining service potential of an old asset compared with a new asset, and 15
stated gross of third-party contributions

Non-appointed business - The non-appointed business activities of the company are activities for which the company as a
water and sewerage undertaker 1s not a monopoly suppher (for example, the sale of laboratory services to an external
organisation) or involves the optional use of an asset owned by the company {for example, the use of underground assets
for cable television)

Ofwat - The name used to refer to the Water Services Regulation Authority (WSRA) The WSRA acts as the economic
regulator of the water industry

Periodic Raeview - The price determination process undertaken by Ofwat every five years Each water and sewerage
undertaker submits an Asset Management Plan covering the five-year period for which Ofwat will determine prices (the

‘K’ factor - see above)

Price fimit - This is the name given to the combination of the Retail Price Index {RPI), 'K' and '’

Regulatory Accounting Guidelines (RAG) - The accounting guidelines for regulatory accounts issued, and amended from
time to time, by Ofwat

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) - The capital base used In setting price imits The value of the appointed business that
earns a return on investment It represents the initial market value (200-day average), including debt at privatisation, plus
subsequent net new capital expenditure including new obligations imposed since 1988 The capital value 1s calculated using
the Ofwat methodology e after current cost depreciation and infrastructure renewals accrual)

Reporter - The Reporter to Ofwat 1s a named individual and independent professional appointed by the company to act as
a commentator and certifier on its regulated activities, In accordance with the company's licensing condition

Retail Price Index (RP1) - The RPI1s compiled and published monthly by the Office for National Statistics RP s an average
measure of change in the prices of goods and services bought for the purpose of consumption by the vast majority of
households in the United Kingdom

Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) - Ofwat's measure of customer satisfaction based on surveys of customers who have
contacted the company and the number of contacts received which express dissatisfaction

Third-party contributions since 1989/90 - Grants and third-party contributions received in respect of infrastructure assets
and any deferred income retating to grants and third-party contributions for non-infrastructure assets

VSAT - Very Satisfied - An Anghan Water tool for monitoring engomg customer satisfaction based on customer surveys
Working capital - The aggregate of stocks, trade debtors and trade creditors, if matenal

Working capital adjustment - The impact of general inflation (RPI) on the rea! value of working capital to the business
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